Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
take no responsibility for the contents of this announcement, make no representation as to
its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this
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Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited
MEBBRERBR QA

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda with limited liability)
(Stock Code: 8086)

ANNOUNCEMENT OF AUDITED ANNUAL RESULTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021

The board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings
Limited (“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is pleased to announce
the consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2021. This announcement,
containing the full text of the 2020/2021 annual report of the Company, complies with the
relevant requirements of the Rules (“GEM Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities
on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) in relation
to information to accompany preliminary announcements of annual results. Printed version of
the Company’s 2020/2021 annual report will be delivered to the shareholders of the Company
and available for viewing on the websites of the Stock Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk and of
the Company at www.sinovisionworldwide.com on 30 September 2021.

For and on behalf of the Board
Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited
Lo Pak Ho
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 September 2021

As at the date of this announcement, the executive Directors are Mr. Lo Pak Ho, Mr. Bai Long
and Mr. Huang Qing; and the independent non-executive Directors are Ms. Liu Pui Shan, Mr.
Chiam Tat Yiu and Ms. Xu Yilei.

This announcement, for which the Directors collectively and individually accept full
responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this announcement is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make
any statement herein or this announcement misleading.

This announcement will remain on the “Latest Company Announcements” page of the GEM
website at http://www.hkgem.com for at least 7 days from the date of its publication and on
the website of the Company at http://www.sinovisionworldwide.com.
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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG
LIMITED (THE "STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies fo which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Main Board. Prospective investors
should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only
affer due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
fraded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities fraded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of the Company (the "Directors”) collectively and individually accept full
responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of
the Stock Exchange (the "GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company.
The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or
deceptive and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading.
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Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the Board (the "Board”) of directors (the "Directors”)
of Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited (the "Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, referred to as the "Group”), | would
like to present the audited annual results of the Group for the
year ended 30 June 2021 (the "Year”) together with the Group’s
strategy and prospects.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

As impacted by the pandemic associated with the novel
coronavirus (COVID-19) which started in early 2020 and
the adverse business environment, the Group recorded
a loss of approximately HK$48,487,000 for the Year (2020:
HK$154,678,000).

The Group’s consolidated loss attributable to the owners
of the Company for the Year amounted to approximately
HK$44,227,000 (2020: HK$139,371,000).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Continuing Operation

E-commerce and provision of online sales platform
The Group engaged in the businesses of e-commerce and
provision of online sales platform (the “E-commerce Business”)
mainly through its business-to-customer ("B2C") foreign
trade e-commerce on-line sales platform, namely DX.com.
The E-commerce Business of the Group has been adversely
affected by the increasingly intensifying competition within the
e-commerce industry in recent years. The Group’s E-commerce
Business recorded a confinuous decrease in revenue, from
HK$43,096,000 for the previous year to HK$12,644,000 for the Year,
representing a decrease of approximately 70.7%. Gross profit
margin increased from approximately 23.6% to approximately
40.5%.

To cope with the adverse business environment, the Group has
adopted fiscal austerity policies to control its cost and extended
the range of its frading products to those with higher profit
margin which led to an increase in gross profit margin for the
Year. Further, the Group is streamlining its back-end system and
shopping process as well as its mobile devices applications to
enhance users’ experience and our competitiveness.
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Intellectual Property ("IP”) rights licensing and
international IP development, media integrated
marketing and distribution agency and trading of
sports and related products business

In 2017, the Group commenced the IP rights licensing and
infernational IP development and the media integrated
marketing business (the "IP Rights Licensing Business”) upon
the completion of the acquisition of Sense Media Group Limited
("Sense Media” and Sense Media together with its subsidiaries,
the “Sense Media Group”) ("Sense Acquisition”). The Sense
Media Group positioned itself as a comprehensive operation
platform for IP rights, specialising in media integrated marketing
business, including provision of infegrated marketing, planning
and design service for brands. It capitalises on the abundant
resources available within the Greater China region and the
strong operational flexibility of the Company, and conducts
product design and commercial operation in respect of licensed
IP rights and brands. Sense Media Group is also a pioneer of the
‘“Intellectual Property + Augmented Reality + Food & Beverage”
business concept in China. The licensed IP rights “Le Petit Chef”
and "“'Dinner Time Story’: Marco Polo” were licensed out by
the Sense Media Group fo various users and had generated
new business opportunities and revenue to the Group. During
the Year, the revenue of approximately HK$19,091,000 (2020:
HK$18,282,000) was generated from Sense Media Group.

Further, in January 2018, the Group acquired Strong Network
International Limited ("Strong Network” and Strong Network
together with its subsidiaries, the "Strong Network Group”), a
service provider for distribution agency, sales and marketing
channel of licensed IP products, with its distribution channel
within the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC") through
engagement with various cooperation partners which cover
different provinces of the PRC (the "Strong Network Acquisition”).
In addition, Strong Network Group commenced its business of
distribution agency and frading of sports and related products
in February 2018. During the Year, the Strong Network Group
confributed a revenue of approximately HK$3,474,000 (2020:
HK$37,832,000) to the Group.
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During the Year, the business has been adversely affected by
the unexpected COVID-19 pandemic, in particular, the food
and beverage catering market in the PRC and the business of IP-
themed restaurants operated by the cooperative partners were
severely affected by the implementation of strict quarantine
measures, causing the collapse of our IP distribution network;
and the decrease in revenue growth was further caused by
the adverse effect of the intensified Sino-US frade war on the
PRC economy causing decline in the end-consumers’ appetite
affecting businesses which rely on the usage of IP-related
products or licenses.

In response to the current business environment, the Board
adopts various cost control management measures such as
restructuring Shanghai and Shenzhen office so as to streamline
the Group’s corporate structure and reduce the labour cost.
At the same time, we aim fo effectively allocate and increase
our financial and other resources to restore our IP distribution
channels.

Money-lending business

During the Year, the revenue of money-lending business
(the "Money-lending Business”) amounted to approximately
HK$8,773,000 (2020: HK$9,350,000). The Group offered loans to
clients at inferest rates ranging from approximately 8% to 12%.
The impairment of loan receivable amounted to HK$38,607,000
as at 30 June 2021 (2020: HK$33,016,000). The Group will
confinue to review its loan portfolio so as to control the default
risks while continue to explore opportunities to maintain a
balance.

Chairman’s Statement
FERE

RAFE  ZEBIRMEROFETRAESRIT
AT E  LHEFENERTSARAERH
KENANMBERTBEEREBEE AR REE
EMXEBBRERE - EEEPIROMBERE D HBHK
AR - R REZBONB S T ELEN TN
—FEHURAE R TR - EMEHKRE P HRE
1 7 355K RE A S0 580 2 R AR B 7 SRR M O {62 P O
EBELZE -

REMENERRE  EEGRNESERAEZFE
B - NEE L FORYIPF RSB AR B
REVRERR DB TR - R - HAPE £
7 BE N8 N8 75 e LA B R AR TE AN EE R ) 2R
i o

EEXK

RAFE EEEXEB(EEEXEB]D 2BRADR
8,773,000/ 7T (—F —F 4 : 9,350,000/ 7T) °
AEEREPREEZERMEN FHI8%E2%°
RZB-—FXA=1TH EBREFRFRER
38,607,000 7T (ZZ —F4 : 33,016,000 L) °
REEBEBERETAES AEFIENRR - R
EBER M AMRIF T -

2021 £ | FEEBEZERARAAF



Chairman’s Statement
FERE

PROSPECT

As affected by the intensifying China-United States frade
frictions and the COVID-19 pandemic, the Year was particularly
challenging for the Group. Nevertheless, the Group still strived
to seek for new opportunities to generate fruitful returns for its
shareholders (the “Shareholders”).

In respect of each business segment of the Group, as
continuously affected by the domestic and overseas economic
downturn and the intensifying competition within the industry,
our E-commerce Business recorded a decrease in revenue
for the Year. However, the Group will continue to implement
various measures, including increasing profit margin, cost-
control and broadening its income source. The Board still
believes that the outlook of licensed IP rights business is still
promising with huge potential for development. However, as
the distribution and agency channel of the Group’s IP Rights
Licensing Business is relatively relied on the food and beverage
industry as well as the retail industry, the agency network of the
Group’s IP Rights Licensing Business continued to be adversely
affected by the pandemic. Furthermore, under the unfavourable
economic conditions, the Board made adjustment in respect
of default expectation of customers of our Money-lending
Business. Accordingly, our Money-lending Business recorded an
impairment during the year.

Despite the continuous financial assistance and other support
from the Group, the E-commerce segment failed to turn around
the decline in its revenue. Adversely affected by the increasingly
intensifying competition within the e-commerce industry in
recent years, the segment recorded losses for a few consecutive
years. The Group expects that global economic activities will be
hindered under the influence of the COVID-19 which has caused
the blockade of borders of countries around the world and
materially affected the global productivity. In order to optimise
the Group's existing resources, we will streamline and restructure
the existing business segments of the Group and relieve the
financial burden and negative impact imposed on the Group.
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In view of above, the Group will continue to devote efforts
in seeking for new potential business opportunities, so as fo
generate new profit growth points for the Group. In particular,
the Group sfill believes that the outlook of e-commence is
still promising. Leveraging on its industrial knowledge, the
Group is keen to explore suitable business opportunities in the
e-commence ared locally or overseas. The Group may make
suitable investment should such opportunities arise. On 25 March
2021 and 1 April 2021, the Group entered info agreements to co-
operate with two well-known companies (the "JV Partners”) which
operate local and overseas e-commerce platforms. Under the
agreements, the Group and the JV Partners join fogether to form
two joint venture companies which are infended to be principally
engaged in the business of e-commerce and provision of online
sales platform in China, Hong Kong and Southeast Asia. Please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 25 March
2021 and 1 April 2021 for further details.
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Review of Operations

e AEI)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Review

Continuing Operations

Revenue

As affected by the COVID-19 pandemic, the intensified market
competition and the escalating Sino-US frade friction impacting
the business environment which the Group operates in, the
Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$43,982,000
(2020: approximately HK$108,560,000), representing a drop of
approximately 59.5%.

The consolidated revenue for the Year was mainly contributed
by the revenue from (i) the e-commerce and provision of on-
line sales platform business of approximately 28.8% (2020:
39.7%); (i) the franchise income arising from IP rights licensing,
international IP development, media integrated marketing, and
distribution agency and trading of sports and related products of
approximately 51.3% (2020: 51.7%); and (iii) the Money-lending
Business of approximately 19.9% (2020: 8.6%).

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The gross profit dropped from approximately HK28,013,000 for
the previous year to approximately HK$27,833,000 for the Year,
representing a drop of approximately 0.6%, while the gross profit
margin increased to approximately 63.3% (2020: approximately
25.8%). The gross profit remains stable. The significant increase
in the gross profit margin is mainly attributable to the significant
decrease in cost of sales from the E-commerce Business and the
IP and the media integrated marketing business and distribution
agency and trading of sports and related product business.

Selling and Distribution Costs

The selling and distribution costs of approximately HK$4,798,000
(2020: HK$13,247,000) are mainly attributable to the selling and
distribution costs from the Group’s E-commmerce Business. There
has been a drop in the expenses during the Year due to the
decrease in revenue of the E-commerce Business leading fo less
sales and distribution resources required for it and the adoption
of fiscal austerity policy.
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Administrative and Other Expenses

The decrease in the administrative and other expenses during
the Year to approximately HK$58,695,000 from approximately
HK$66,717,000 of the corresponding period of 2020 was mainly
due fo a series of fiscal austerity policies adopted by the Group.

Impairment loss on goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combination is allotted
to the Group'’s cash-generating units ("CGUs") and is tested
annually for impairment in accordance with the Company’s
accounting policies and in compliance with the Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (HKAS) and the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRS).

The impairment loss on goodwill during the Year amounted
to approximately HK$1,000,000 which was attributable to the
Group’s Money-lending Business.

In assessing the value-in-use of the CGUs of the IP Right Licensing
Business and the Money-lending Business, the Company
appointed an independent valuer to conduct valuation to
determine the recoverable amount of the CGUs allocated
to the Sense Media Group (the "Sense Media CGUs") for the
IP Rights Licensing Business and the Success Beauty Group
(the "Success Beauty CGUs") for the Money-lending Business
using the discounted cash flow method. The discounted cash
flow method was adopted in compliance with the Hong Kong
Accounting Standard 36 Impairment of Assets ("HKAS 36"), and
the values of the Sense Media CGUs and the Success Beauty
CGUs are calculated based on the historical data and the cash
flow forecasts prepared according to the financial budgets
of the Sense Media Group and the Success Beauty Group
covering a five-year period from 2022 to 2026 as approved by the
management of the Group.
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Review of Operations
FI5EEE

Due to the spreading of the COVID-19 pandemic, the business
and financial operations of the IP-themed restaurants operated
by cooperation partners were adversely impacted, causing
disruption to the distribution channels of the Group’s IP Rights
Licensing Business. In view of the adverse impact and the
uncertainties brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic
affecting the IP Rights Licensing Business, the Group reassessed
the financial forecasts and its key assumptions, in particular,
average growth rate in the budget period (being one of the
key assumptions used in the valuations of the Sense Media
CGUs) were adjusted downwards. As the recoverable amount
of the Sense Media CGUs was estimated to be higher than
the respective carrying amount and the impairment loss on
goodwill arising from the Sense Media CGUs of approximately
HK$65,860,000 were recognised in the last year, no further
impairment of the Sense Media CGUs was recognised for the
year. For details of the value-in-use calculations leading to the
impairment loss, please refer to Note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

Impairment loss on loan and interest receivables
Pursuant to HKFRS @ Financial Instruments, the Company
performed an impairment assessment under the expected credit
loss ("ECL") model and appointed an independent valuer to
perform a valuation (the "ECL Valuation”) in relation to the ECL of
the loan and interest receivables as of 30 June 2021. Assessments
on the value of the inputs used in the ECL Valuation were made
based on and under the assumptions in accordance with the
Company’s historical credit loss experience, and were adjusted
by factors that were specific to each loan and inferest receivable
(including the payment due date, the probability of default and
loss given default) in order to determine the recoverability of
these loan and interest receivables.

During the Year, as certain outstanding loan and interest
receivable(s) had past due for more than six months, such
outstanding loan and interest receivable(s) were no longer
expected to be recoverable by the Group and were fully
impaired. As such, impairment losses under ECL model on loan
and interest receivables recognised increased to approximately
HK$38,607,000 (2020: HK$33,016,000). For details of the loan and
interest receivables, please refer fo Note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.
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Finance Costs

The finance costs during the Year amounted to approximately
HK$8,124,000 (2020: HK$13,509,000). The finance costs mainly
comprised of the imputed interest expense of the convertible
bonds and inferest on bond payable and other borrowing.

Loss for the Year

The Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$48,487,000 for
the Year representing a decrease of 68.7% compared with that
of last year of approximately HK$154,678,000. During the Year,
the Group also recorded a loss atftributable to the owners of the
Company amounted to approximately HK$44,227,000 (2020: loss
of approximately HK$139,371,000).

The decrease in the loss of the Year was mainly attributable to
(i) the decrease in revenue and gross profit amid the COVID-19
pandemic, adverse market conditions and Sino-US frade frictions;
(i) the decrease in provision for impairment loss on goodwill to
approximately HK$1,000,000 (2020: HK$74,508,000) in relation
to the Group’s IP Rights Licensing Business and Money-lending
Business.

Review of Operations
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Financial Key Performance Indicators

The Board monitored a number of financial key performance
indicators (*KPIs”) to measure the Group’s performance over
time. The KPIs may subject fo refinement in accordance with
the needs and changes of business. Details of the Group's
performance against each of the finance-related KPIs are set out
below:

BREARRRER
EECERSEMBHARRARER (FRERRE
=1 LAerEK%@E*EﬁE%F‘EEJWE’HEIE - AR
RAEBHNBRAREBRELEH MM - A&H
ifﬁéﬁxlﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁE§E%ﬁ%fﬁ%%ﬂ@%ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ’\%iww
LI

KPI measures 2021 2020 Definition/Calculation Comments
BERBEENE —E--% ZECEF ERHE BB
(audited) (audited)
(RER) (RER)
Basic loss per share (18.92) Cents  (88.59) Cents A basic earning per share is based  The porfion of a company’s loss
BREAER g Il Ml on the loss for the year atfributable  allocated to each outstanding
to ordinary equity holders of the share of common stock
Company and the weighted BREAEIMITRRMENDF

average number of ordinary shares BB %5
in issue during the year
BRERBFTRAR AL BRER R
BEAREENER AREFRBETE

ARz METHEGE

Return on investments (3.010%) (752%) It divides net loss by net assets A profitability measures that
AR H FEREFEELX evaluates the performance of a

business by dividing net profit by
net worth
BRFFEROFET A — AR
RRMBMENFIETA

Gearing ratio 90% 84%  Aratio of net debt (liabilities less Degree of leverage
BRAELE cash and cash equivalents) over  1EIE12E
fotal capital plus net debt
EHFE(RERReKREEEER)
BRABER I LERFE
Current ratio 93% 101% A ratio of current assefs over current It measures a company’s ability
BN & liabilities to pay short-term obligations
MBEELRE AR E E8 N AH X R ER AL

Capital Structure

The Group mainly finances its operation with infernal resources
and proceeds from various fund raising. The Group continues to
exert stringent control over treasury policies.

Save as disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated financial

statements, there is no material change to capital structure of
the Group.
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Fund Raising Activities

Placing of ordinary shares under specific mandate
On 9 October 2020, the Company entered into a placing
agreement (the "Placing Agreement”) with DL Securities (HK)
Limited (the "Placing Agent”), pursuant to which, the Placing
Agent conditionally agreed to place (the "Placing”) on a best
effort basis up to 1,500,000,000 ordinary shares (the “Placing
Shares”) of HK$0.01 each fo not less than six placees at a placing
price of HK$0.016 per Placing Share.

At the special general meeting of the Company held on 20
November 2020, a resolution was passed in respect of confirming
and ratifying the entering into of the Placing Agreement dated
9 October 2020 entered into between the Company and DL
Securities (HK) Limited (as amended and supplemented by
the Supplemental Agreement dated 23 October 2020), and all
tfransactions contemplated thereunder, including the specific
mandate fo allot and issue up to 75,000,000 consolidated
shares (instead of 1,500,000,000 new existing shares prior to the
20-to-1 share consolidation) to be placed to not less than six
placees at the placing price of HK$0.32 per consolidated share
(instead of HK$0.016 per existing share prior to the 20-to-1 share
consolidation) on a best effort basis.

The Placing was completed on 2 December 2020. A total
of 75,000,000 Placing Shares were placed to not less than
six independent placees at a placing price of HK$0.32 per
Placing Share. The net proceeds from the Placing amounted
to approximately HK$23,160,000, of which HK$15,000,000
and HK$8,160,000 were credited to the share capital and the
share premium account respectively. The net proceeds of
approximately HK$22.86 million are intended to be used for the
seftflement of the December 2017 CB matured on 30 November
2020 or the Group’s other debts and liabilities as they fall due.
As at 30 June 2021, all the net proceeds from the Placing of
approximately HK$22.86 million had been utilised for settlement
of the principal and interest of the convertible bonds issued in
December 2017 as intended and all outstanding principal and
interest of December 2017 CB were settled.

Financial and liquidity position of the Company

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had net current liabilities of
HK$10,383,000 (2020: net current assets of HK$2,231,000). The
change from net current asset to net current liabilities during the
year was mainly attributable fo the change in the market value of
the listed equity investment from approximately HK$14,141,000 in
last year to HKSNil in 2021. As one of the listed equity investment
received a termination of listing during the year, the market
value of the equity investment is accessed to be HKSNil (2020:
approximately HK$5,198,000).
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E3C1)

Material Acquisitions, Disposals and Significant BEAKWEEE HESEREARE

Investments

() Acquisitions and Disposals () UEBEFARLEFR
The Group did not have materials acquisitions and REERAFEI|EAMWBRHESE -
disposals during the Year.

(i) Significant Investment (i) EARE
The Directors consider that there were no individual EERA UEMEEAESERRENRZ
investment with a market value that accounts for more BMEEBBASLEARNKREBREARE -
than 5% of the Group'’s total assets as at the end of the R-ZE——F X NA=ZTHTE@ERIEEZT
reporting period as significant investments. No individual BEEREEZEEEBRHSS -

investment with a market value that accounts for more
than 5% of the Group’s total assets as at 30 June 2021.

Percentage of Percentage of
total issued Percentage fo total issued Percentage fo
share capital the Group's share capital the Group’s
Number of o the investee Carrying audited Numberof ~ of the investee Carmying audted
shares held company amount  total assets shares held company amount fofal assefs
os ot as at as af os ot osaf osaf osaf os af
Description of investment 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30June 30June 30June
2021 2021 202 2021 2020 2020 2020 2020
HERRENT hx&E {FRRERT hAEE
H-%=-% HIB=-% WIZZEE KoZIEE
RZB=-% RAZTH  HoB=-f AAETR RIToRE ~ZTE  RZE2Ef ~A=TH
AB=TH BRRx  AA=tH LR ﬂ tB BEfik®  AA=tH 2850
ReERd FiRit®E  ABZAML JBEE BEEZEAL RO%A  BEZEAM EHEE 2BEZEMM
HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn Thn
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
BROVEFABEEREE
Listed investments, at fair value
tiRE RATE
Other listed equity investments
Afp FRARE N/ATER N/ATER - N/ATER 2,250,000 N/AZER 5,689 258%
Unlisted fund investment, at fair value
FLnEehE BATE N/ARER N/ATER - N/ARER N/ARER N/ARER 8452 3.83%

= 14141
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Liquidity and Financial Resources
During the Year, the Group financed its operations by internally
generated cash flow and placing of new shares.

As at 30 June 2021, the consolidated shareholders’ equity, current
assets and net current liabilities of the Group were approximately
HK$1,613,000 (2020: HK$20,582,000), HK$147,746,000 (2020:
HK$194,646,000) and HK$10,383,000 (2020: net current assets of
the Group were approximately HK$2,231,000), respectively.

In respect of the Group’s total current assets, inventories
accounts for approximately 0% (2020: 0.2%), trade receivable
(net of impairment loss on trade receivables) accounted for
approximately 0% (2020: 0.02%), loan and interest receivables
(net of impairment loss on loan and interest receivables)
accounted for approximately 62.9% (2020: 52.2%), financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss accounted for 0%
(2020: 7.3%), whilst cash and cash equivalents accounted for
approximately 2.3% (2020: 14.5%). As at 30 June 2021, the Group
holds cash and cash equivalents amounted to approximately
HK$3,451,000 (2020: HK$28,157,000).

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents were denominated in
Hong Kong dollars, Pound sterling, Euro, Renminbi, Canadian
dollars, Swiss Franc, Australian dollars, Mexican Peso, Russian
Ruble, Singapore dollars, Japanese yen and United States
dollars.

As at 30 June 2021, the Group has other borrowings and bond
payable amounted to approximately HK$75,205,000 (as at 30
June 2020: HK$4,000,000).

However, there were no other bank borrowings and revolving
loan facility from other financial institution (as at 30 June 2020:
Nii).

Gearing Ratio

As at 30 June 2021, the gearing ratio of the Group as a ratio of
the net debt divided by the total capital plus the net debt, was
approximately 90.0% (2020: 83.6%). The net debt includes frade
payables and other payables, deposits received and accruals,
contract liabilities, bond payable and convertible bonds less
cash and cash equivalents.
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Foreign Currency Risk

The Group mainly generated revenue and incurred costs in Hong
Kong dollars, Renminbi, Australian dollars, Canadian dollars,
Euro and United States dollars.

In accordance with the Group'’s stringent treasury policy, the
Group did not enter intfo any forward contract for hedging during
the Year. The Group will keep on monitoring the foreign currency
risk and will consider any tool for hedging if necessary.

As at 30 June 2021 and 30 June 2020, the Group has no
outstanding forward foreign exchange contract.

Contingent Liabilities
The Group had no significant contingent liability as at 30 June
2021 and 30 June 2020.

Deployment on Human Resources

As at 30 June 2021, the number of staff of the Group was 32 (2020:
60). The decrease in the number of staff for the Year is due to the
restructuring of Shanghai and Shenzhen office to streamline the
Group’s organisation structure. Staff remuneration is reviewed
once a year, or as the management considers appropriate.
Changes in remuneration are based on a range of factors
including the Group’s performance, the competitiveness of
remuneration with the external market, and individual employee'’s
performance during the Year. Employees were entitled fo fixed
remuneration, with discretionary bonus and other benefits
including medical insurance, mandatory provident fund, share
options and all other necessary training.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors and of the senior
management of the Group are set out below.

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. LO Pak Ho, aged 39, is an executive Director. Mr. Lo has over
ten years of experience in auditing, faxation, internal control and
management, corporate governance and financial advisory.
Mr. Lo graduated from Monash University, with a bachelor’s
degree in accountancy. He is currently a practising member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He
worked in an infernational accounting firm from February 2007
to September 2010 where his position was senior associate. He is
the founder of Goted CPA Limited for which he has been acting
as a director since its incorporation in February 2014. During the
period from 14 December 2015 to 1T March 2018, Mr. Lo served
as an independent non-executive director of Changgang
Dunxin Enterprise Company Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange with stock code 2229, and
from 5 March 2018 to 3 April 2018, he served as an independent
non-executive director of Moody Technology Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Wang Tai Holdings Limited), a company listed
on Main Board of the Stock Exchange with stock code 1400.

Mr. BAIl Long, aged 31, is an executive Director. Mr. Bai has
over 12 years of experience in sales and marketing. After
graduating from secondary school, Mr. Bai has been working as
a marketing manager and marketing director in Guangzhou,
the PRC, focusing on network terminal design and network
management. Mr. Bai has experience in managing the network
terminal data, operating and managing the network platform,
participating in setting up the marketing strategy on the internet
network, promoting sales on the internet network, operating B2B
platform and training staff. Mr. Bai has also been responsible for
conducting market research in the PRC market.
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Mr. HUANG Qing, aged 39, is an executive Director. Mr. Huang
graduated from Shanghai Lixin Higher College of Accounting*
(LBIEEFESEERER) (now known as Shanghai Lixin
University of Accounting and Finance)* (L& E €t £ @ E20)
in 2003. Mr. Huang has over five years of experience in product
and sales management in the information technology industry in
China. From 2017 fo 2019, Mr. Huang occupied managerial role
in a company principally engaged in information technology
and software development business in China. During the period
from 14 March 2019 fo 10 September 2019, Mr. Huang served
as an executive director of Shenzhen Mingwah Aohan High
Technology Corporation Limited* (77 JI 11 B 2= 8% &L iR 15
& 2 ®]), a joint stock limited company incorporated in the PRC
and the issued H Shares of which is listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange with stock code 8301.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. LIU Pui Shan, aged 34, is an independent non-executive
Director. Ms. Liu is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. She holds a bachelor degree in
Business Administration (Professional Accountancy) from Hong
Kong Baptist University and has over 7 years of experience in
audit and assurance field. She currently serves as the financial
confroller of Far East Hotels and Enfertainment Limited, a
company listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange with stock
code 00037. From 10 May 2017 to 14 June 2019, she served as
the financial controller and company secretary of Shenzhen
Mingwah Aohan High Technology Corporation Limited* (% 3l i
B ZRZ B IR 5 B R A Al), the H shares of which are listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange with stock code 8301.

Ms. XU Yilei, aged 43, is an independent non-executive
Director. Ms. Xu has over 8 years of experience in the media
industry. Ms. Xu has been a vice president of Shanghai Xiyue
Media Technology Company Limited since June 2012. Ms. Xu
graduated from Changzhou Technical Teachers College (now
known as Jiangsu University of Technology) with a bachelor
degree in computer science and technology in June 2001.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

Mr. CHIAM Tat Yiu, aged 37, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Chiam holds a Bachelor of Business Administration
in Accounting from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology. Mr. Chiam has extensive experience in finance
and accounting sectors. He worked in the Assurance &
Advisory Business Services Department in Ernst & Young and
worked at various positions in various companies including
CCB Infernational (Holdings) Limited, CITIC International Assets
Management Limited, Tai Shing International (Holdings) Limited
(stock code: 8103), a company listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange, China Huarong Overseas Investment Holdings
Company Limited and so on. Since February 2020, Mr. Chiam
has been an independent non-executive director of China Oil
Gangran Energy Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8132), a
company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. TAM Hon Fai, aged 38, has over 13 years of experience in
accounting and auditing fields and about 4 years professional
experience in company secretarial and corporate governance
matters of companies, including listed companies in Hong Kong.
Mr. Tam worked at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from September
2006 to August 2011 with his last position as a senior in the
audit department. From December 2011 to July 2013, Mr. Tam
was a company secretary of Zhonghua Gas Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Northern New Energy Holdings Limited and
Noble House (China) Holdings Limited) (stock code: 8246), a
company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, responsible for
general corporate governance affairs. From February 2014 to
September 2014, Mr. Tam was a financial controller of Bamboos
Health Care Holdings Limited (stock code: 2293), a company
listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange in July 2014 and fransferred
to the Main Board in March 2017, responsible for financial
operations and management. Mr. Tam has been an audit
partner of CTY & Co. since January 2012, an executive director
of JMG Corporate Advisory Limited, a firm principally engaged
in provision of corporate advisory services, since August 2017,
and an executive director of Marksman Corporate Services
Limited, a firm principally engaged in provision of corporate
secretarial services, since June 2019. Since August 2019, Mr.
Tam has been an independent non-executive director of S&T
Holdings Limited (stock code: 3928), a company listed on Main
Board in September 2019, responsible for providing independent
judgement on strategy, performance, resources and standard of
conduct.
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Report of the Directors
EFGRE

The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Group was principally engaged in (i) e-commence and provision
of on-line sales platform; (ii) intellectual property (*IP") rights
licensing and international IP development, media integrated
marketing and distribution agency and trading of sports and
related products business; and (iii) money-lending business.

Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in
note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group's business during the Year, which includes
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties regarding
the future of the Group, particulars of important events that
have occurred and affected the Group since the end of the
financial year ended 30 June 2021, an indication of likely
future developments of the Group’s business and an analysis
using financial key performance indicators are set out in the
paragraphs headed “Risks and Uncertainties”, "*Chairman’s
Statement” and "Review of Operations” of this annual report and
notes 41 and 43 to the consolidated financial statements. The
review forms part of this directors’ report.

KEY RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group recognises that employees, customers and suppliers
are the keys fo the sustainable development fo the Group. The
Group is committed o build a close and caring relationship with
its employees and suppliers, and improves the quality of services
and products to the customers.

Employees are regarded as the most vital and valuable assets
of the Group. The Group ensures all staff are reasonably
remunerated, and continues to improve, review and update its
policies on remuneration and benefits, training, occupational
health and safety on a regular basis.

The Group is always proactive in its ongoing communication with
its customers and suppliers through various channels such as
telephone, electronic mails and physical meetings to obtain their
feedback and suggestions.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s loss for the year ended 30 June 2021 and the
Group’s financial position as at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements from pages 63 to 195.

The Board did not recommend any payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 30 June 2021 (2020: Nil).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements
and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 196.
This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in share capital and share options of the
Company during the year are set out in notes 31 and 33 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Company has identified principal risks and uncertainties
that the Group faces with respect to economic risks, operational
risks, regulatory risks, credit risks and financial risks. The
Group’s business, future results of operations and prospects
could be materially and adversely affected by those risks and
uncertainties. The following highlights the principal risks and
uncertainties of the Group, and it is not meant to be exhaustive.
There may be other risks and uncertainties which are not known
to the Group or which may not be material now but turn out to
be material in the future.

Economic risks
= A severe or prolonged downturn of the global economy.

= Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, inflation
and fluctuations of interest rates would adversely affect the

customers’ spending senfiment.

= Advent of infernational frade protectionism.
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Operational risks
= Failure fo compete in the competitive environment which
the Group operates in.

- Unable to keep pace with the technological advances in a
fimely and cost-efficient manner.

- Unexpected network interruptions or undetected
programming errors or defects.

- Any fechnical interruption or inadequacy to the system
of the payment gateways may cause delay in receipt of
customers’ payment.

Regulatory risks

- Infringement of valid patents, copyrights or other
intellectual property rights held by third parties may lead to
significant penalties.

- Failure to adhere to laws, regulations and rules, or to obtain
or maintain all applicable permits and approvals.

- Any change in laws and regulations in different customers’
countries may affect its business.

Credit risks

- The borrowers cannot repay or delay in repayment of
loan which may have a significant impact on the financial
position to the Group.

Financial risks
- Details of financial risks are set out in note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws
or the laws of the Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the listed securities of the Company
during the Year.

Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2021

R m bk
- AREREELEMAEZIHFIRBP B

—  ERNEUARAMER T SRR R o

—  EA[BEE AR PE SRR IR 2B TR
R AR KR FE o

—  XIHABAR FR SR () B R T kB ARS RT A
BHEP 2 WFIER -

EEAR
- BILE=ZFEEH ﬁ?ﬁ( M - RS H At
MBERSYHEREST €

- REBESFEE
P E R A] &Tttxﬁ

15 e 5 7€ S ERAS kM 5

—  TREPHMBZIARMZEMREMEB A

RERBEER -

= E & ks

—  (WERAELEENEEEEER gD
HAREBOMBEAKAERERNTE -

S EE R

—  TRERFEENAAS M IERRM S -

BiEEE
AR A P R T E B E RS -
57 2 FIB A SR A L 1B 4 37

BE BOxHEAQA LD
i 55

RAERR AR ARREAHER L EMBE -
BESMEARTZEDLTES -



DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
Company’s contributed surplus is available for distribution to the
Shareholders. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(a) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable fo
pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of the Company’s assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate amount of its liabilities and its
issued shares and share premium account.

At 30 June 2021, the Company did not have reserves available
for distribution. However, the Company’s share premium
account, in the amount of HK$328,386,000, may be applied to
pay up unissued shares to be issued to the Shareholders as fully
paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, sales to the Group'’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 50% (2020: approximately 40%) of
the total sales for the Year and the largest customer included
therein amounted to approximately 23% (2020: approximately
26%).

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 85% (2020: approximately 91%) of the total
purchases for the Year and purchases from the largest supplier
included therein amounted to approximately 46% (2020:
approximately 54%).

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
shareholders, which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital or
had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers
or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The members of the Board during the Year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. LO Pak Ho (Chairman)
Mr. WANG He
(resigned on 8 December 2020)
Mr. BAl Long
(appointed on 14 July 2020)
Mr. HUANG Qing

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Ms. LIU Pui Shan
Mr. LOU Sai Tong
(resigned on 6 November 2020)
Mr. WEI Wei
(appointed on 14 July 2020 and
resigned on 4 January 2021)
Mr. YEUNG Wing Nam
(resigned on 14 July 2020)
Ms. XU Yilei
(appointed on 6 November 2020)
Mr. CHIAM Tat Yiu
(appointed on 4 January 2021)

Pursuant to the Bye-laws 83(2), 84(1) and 84(2), two of the
existing Directors, namely, Mr. Lo Pak Ho and Mr. Chiam Tat Yiu,
shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. All the above retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the said meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group are set out on pages 19 to 21 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meetfing of the Company has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permifted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors
is currently in force and was in force throughout the Year. The
Company has maintained appropriate Directors” and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Group.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of employees of the Group is set up by the
Board on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The Directors’ remuneration are subject to shareholders’ approval
at general meetings. Other emoluments are recommended by
the Company’s Remuneration Committee and determined by
the Board with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the result of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as the related party fransactions disclosed in note 39 fo the
consolidated financial statements, no Director nor a connected
entity of a Director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to the business of the Group fo which the holding
company of the Company, or any of the Company’s subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entfered into or existed during the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Issuance of convertible bonds

Details of the issuance of convertible bonds are set out in
"Review of Operations” of this annual report and note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Share Option Scheme
Details of the share option scheme are set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Save as the above, the Company has no other equity-linked
agreements entered during the Year.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS UNDER PART XV
OF THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES ORDINANCE
(THE “SFO")

A. Directors and Chief Executive

As at 30 June 2021, none of the Directors nor the chief
executives of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified o
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
required standard of dealings by directors of the Company
as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS UNDER PART XV
OF THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES ORDINANCE
(THE “SFO") (CONTINUED)

B. Substantial Shareholders
As at 30 June 2021, the following parties, other than the
directors or chief executive of the Company, had inferests
of 5% or more in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required fo be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Ordinary shares of the Company
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Name of substantial shareholder Capacity Short position interested capital*
BEERZ HEBRT

TERRER L) BE/ KR ZERYA BREBDL *
Mr. Lok Wai Ming Beneficial owner 76,347,953 28.35%
REXEL ERBEAA
Mr. Lok Wai Ming Interest of controlled 1,210,400 0.45%
RELEE corporations (Note (1) (H5# (1))

RESEE RS

Nofe:

0) These 1,210,400 shares of the Company were held by Sunny
Faith Consultants Limited, a corporation wholly owned by Mr.
LOK Wai Ming. Accordingly, Mr. LOK Wai Ming is deemed to
be inferested in the shares of the Company held by Sunny
Faith Consultants Limited.

- The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares
interested divided by the number of issued shares of the
Company as at 30 June 2021.

As at 30 June 2021, so far as is known to any Director or
chief executive of the Company, no person had registered
an inferest or a short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company that was required to be recorded
under Section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Apart from those as disclosed in the above paragraph under
"Disclosure of interest under Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance - A. Directors and Chief Executives”, at no time
during the Year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Directors or their respective spouse or children under 18
year of age, or were any rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s fotal number of issued shares were held by the public
as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors and controlling shareholders of the
Company has an interest in a business which competes or may
compete with the business of the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to building an environmental-friendly
corporation that pays close attenfion to conserving natural
resources. The Group strives to minimize the environmental
impact by saving electricity and encouraging recycle of office
supplies and other materials.

Further details are disclosed in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” of the Company prepared in accordance
with Appendix 20 to the GEM Listing Rules which will be published
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in due
course.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Directors are aware, during the Year and up to
the date of this report, the Group has complied in all material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on its business and operations.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the Shares.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Subsequent important events occurred between the end of the
financial year ended 30 June 2021 and the date of this annual
report are as follows:

(@) On 8 July 2021, the Company granted total 14,040,000
share options to three directors, two employees and a legal
adviser of the Group with exercise price of HK$0.20 of each
option and exercise period of ten years. For detail, please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 8 July 2021.

(b) On 10 September 2021, the Company issued a convertible
bond with nominal value of HK$8,000,000 carrying
a coupon rate of 1% due in 9 September 2022 with
an independent third party. The convertible bond is
convertible into the ordinary shares of the Company at
an initial conversion price of HK$0.2 per conversion share.
For detail, please refer to the Company’s announcements
datfed 1 September 2021 and 10 September 2021.

Details of the other events after the end of the reporting period
of the Group are set out in note 40 fo the consolidated financial
statfements.
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Report of the Directors
EFGRE

AUDITORS

Ascenda Cachet CPA Limited ("Ascenda Cachet”), who was the
auditor of the Group from 2016 to 2020, resigned as the auditor
of the Group with effect from 29 June 2021. Ascenda Cachet, in
their letter of resignation, confirmed that there were no matters
in connection with their resignation that needed to be brought
to the attention of shareholders of the Company. The Board
also confirmed that there was no disagreement or unresolved
matter between the Company and Ascenda Cachet, and that
they were not aware of any matters in relation to the resignation
of Ascenda Cachet as auditor of the Group that needed to
be brought to the aftention of shareholders of the Company.
The Company has appointed Elite Partners CPA Limited (“Elite
Partners”) as the auditor of the Company with effect from 29
June 2021. Elite Partners will retire and, being eligible, offer
itself for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. A resolution fo reappoint Elite Partners and to authorise
the Directors to fix its remuneration will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

LO Pak Ho
Chairman

Hong Kong
29 September 2021
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The Directors present this Corporate Governance Report for the
year ended 30 June 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate
governance in maintaining its corporate fransparency and
accountability. The Board sets appropriate policies and
implements corporate governance practices appropriate to the
conduct and growth of the Group's business.

The Board considers that for the period from 1 July 2020 fo
the date of this annual report, the Company has applied the
principles and complied with the code provisions set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code”) contained
in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules, except for the code
provision A.2.1. Key corporate governance principles and
practices of the Company as well as the details of the deviation
from the foregoing (if any) are summarised below.

A. THE BOARD

Al. Responsibilities and Delegation

The overall management and control of the Company’s
business are vested in its Board. The Board is responsible
for establishing policies, strategies and plans, providing
leadership in the attainment of the objective of creating
value to shareholders, and on behalf of the shareholders,
overseeing the Company’s financial performance.
All Directors carry out their duties in good faith and in
compliance with the standards of applicable laws and
regulations, take decisions objectively and acts in the
inferests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters
of the Company, including the approval and monitoring
of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets,
internal control and risk management systems, material
fransactions (in particular those that may involve conflict
of interests), financial information, appointment of directors
and other significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and services of the
Company Secretary and senior management, with a view
to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed. Each Director is normally able
fo seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expenses, upon
reasonable request made to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are led by the senior management of the
Company. The delegated functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obfained from
the Board prior to any significant transactions enfered into
by the foregoing officers and senior management.
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A2. Board Composition

During the Year and up fo the date of this report, the Board

comprised the following Directors:

Executive directors:
Mr. LO Pak Ho

Mr. WANG He

Mr. BAI Long

Mr. HUANG Qing

(appointed as Chairman of
the Board and chairman of
the Nomination Committee
on 8 December 2020)

(resigned as executive Director,
Chairman of the Board and
chairman of the Nomination
Commiftee on 8 December 2020)

(appointed on 14 July 2020)

Independent non-execufive directors.

Ms. LIU Pui Shan

Mr. LOU Sai Tong

Mr. WEI Wei

Mr. YEUNG Wing Nam

Ms. XU Yilei

Mr. CHIAM Tat Yiu

(chairman of the Audlit Commiftee
and Remuneration Commiftee,
and member of the
Nomination Committee)

(resigned as independent
non-executive Director,

as members of the Audit Committee,

Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee
on 6 November 2020)

(appointed as independent
non-executive Director,
as members of the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee
on 14 July 2020 and resigned
on 4 January 2021)

(resigned as independent
non-executive Director and
members of the Audlit Commiffee
and Remuneration Commiftee
on 14 July 2020)

(appointed as independent
non-executive Director,

as members of the Audit Committee,

Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Commiftee
on 6 November 2020)

(appointed as independent
non-executive Director,
as members of the Audit Commiftee
and Remuneration Commiffee
on 4 January 2021)
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A3.

For the period from 1 July 2020 to the date of this annual
report, the Board has met the requirements of the GEM
Listing Rules 5.05 and 5.05A of having at least three
independent non-executive Directors (representing at
least one third of the Board) with one of them possessing
appropriate professional qualifications and accounting
and related financial management expertise.

All Directors have brought a wide range of valuable
business expertise, experiences and professionalism fo the
Board for its efficient and effective functioning. Through
active participation in Board meetings, taking the lead in
managing issues involving potential conflict of interests
and serving on Board committees, all independent non-
executive Directors make various contributions to the
effective direction of the Company.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out under
"Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies” in this
annual report. None of the members of the Board is related
to one another.

The Company has received a written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive Director of his
independence pursuant to the requirements of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent non-
executive Directors to be independent in accordance with
the independence guidelines set out in the GEM Listing
Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The Company has compiled with the code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code”) set
out in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules throughout the
Period, except for the following deviation:

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the
roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should
be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual.
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To achieve clear division of responsibilities between the
management of Board and the day-to-day management
of business and hence to ensure balance of power and
authority, there are separation of duties for the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company (as stipulated
under the Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code). However,
affer the resignation of Mr. CHOW Siu Kwong as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company on 23 September
2016, the previous Chairmen (Mr. POON Man Sum and
Mr. Al Kuiyu and Mr. WANG He prior to their respective
resignations) had, and the Chairman (Mr. LO Pak Ho) of
the Board has, temporarily taken up the function as Chief
Executive Officer of the Company since 18 May 2017
and this represented a deviation from the code provision
A.2.1 since then. The Group has been looking for suitable
candidate to fill for the post of Chief Executive Officer.

Appointment and Re-Election of Directors

Each of the non-executive Directors is appointed for a
specific term of 2 years and is subject to retirement by
rofation once every three years.

According to clause 84(1) of the Bye-laws, at each annual
general meeting one third of the directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one third) shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every director shall
be subject to retirement at least once every three years.
Besides, according to clause 83(2) of the Bye-laws, any
new director appointed fo fill a casual vacancy or as
an addition to the Board shall submit himself/herself for
re-election by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment. The Company'’s circular, which will be sent to
the Company’s shareholders, contains detailed information
of the reftiring directors as required by the GEM Listing Rules.

Training and Continuous Professional
Development of Directors

All Directors receive comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction on appointment, so as to ensure understanding
of the business and operations of the Group and directors’
responsibilities and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules
and relevant regulatory requirements.
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Directors are confinually updated on developments in
the statutory and regulatory regime, and the business
and market changes to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities and obligations under the GEM Listing
Rules and relevant statutory requirements. Continuing
briefings and professional development for Directors will be
arranged as necessary.

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Company (i)
has organized fraining conducted by Howse Williams and
Dennis Fong & Co. (in association with Llinks Law Offices),
for its Directors namely, Ms. XU Yilei and Mr. BAI Long
respectively, on the GEM Listing Rules and amendments;
and (ii) has provided reading materials on regulatory
update to all the Directors for their reference and studying.

Directors’ Attendance Records

The attendance records of each Director at the Board and
Board committee meetings and the general meeting of the
Company held during the Year are set out below:
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Sino Vision

Mr. BAI Long appointed as an executive Director on 14 July
2020. A total of 21 Board meetings and the annual general
meeting were held from the date of his appointment to 30
June 2021.

Mr. WANG He was resigned as an executive Director, the
Chairman of the Board and the chairman of the Nomination
committee on 8 December 2020. A total of 12 Board
meetings and 4 Nomination Committee meetings were held
to the date of his resignation.

Mr. LOU Sai Tong resigned as an independent non-
executive Director and members of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
on 6 November 2020. A total of 7 Board meetings, 2 Audit
Committee meetings, 2 Remuneration Committee meetings
and 2 Nomination Committee meeting were held from 1 July
2020 to the date of his resignation.

Mr. WEI Wei appointed as an independent non-executive
Director and members of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee on 14 July 2020 and resigned
on 4 January 2021. A total of 13 Board meetings, 3 Audit
Committee meetings, 6 Remuneration Committee meetings
and the annual general meeting were held from the date of
his appointment to the date of his resignation.

Ms. XU Yilei appointed as an independent non-executive
Director and members of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
on 6 November 2021. A total of 14 Board meetings, 4 Audit
Committee meetings, 4 Remuneration Committee meetings,
3 Nomination Commitfee meetings and the annual general
meeting were held from the date of his appointment to 30
June 2021.

Mr. CHIAM Tat Yiu appointed as an independent non-
executive Director and members of the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee on 4 January 2021. A tofal of 8
Board meetings and 3 Audit Committee meetings were held
from the dafe of his appointment to 30 June 2021.
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A7. Required Standard of Dealings

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ dealings in the Company’s securities
(the "Own Code") on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules (the "Required Standard of
Dealings”). Specific enquiry has been made of the Directors
and all of them have confirmed that they have complied
with the required standards set out in the Required
Standard of Dealings and the Own Code throughout the
year ended 30 June 2021.

The Company has also established written guidelines no
less exacting than the Required Standard of Dealings (the
"Code for Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees”)
for securities transactions by employees who are likely fo
be in possession of unpublished inside information of the
Company. No incident of non-compliance of the Code
for Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees by the
employees was nofed by the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES & CORPORATE
FUNCTIONS

The Board has three Board committees, namely, the
Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and
the Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees
have been established with defined written terms of
reference, which are posted on the Company’s website
“www.sinovisionworldwide.com” and on the GEM website
“www.hkgem.com”. All the Board committees should report
to the Board on their decisions or recommendations made.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their dutfies and, upon reasonable request,
are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.
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Remuneration Committee

As at 30 June 2021, the Remuneration Committee
comprised a total of three members, namely Ms. LIU Pui
Shan (Chairman), Ms. XU Yilei and Mr. CHIAM Tat Yiu. All of
the Remuneration Committee members are independent
non-executive Directors.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee include making recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s remuneration policy and structure and
the remuneration packages of Directors and members
of senior management (i.e. the model described in the
code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code is adopted).
The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for
establishing tfransparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no
Director or any of his/her associates will participate in
deciding his/her own remuneration, which remuneration
will be determined by reference to the performance of the
individual and the Company as well as market practice
and conditions.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee has
generally reviewed the remuneration policy and structure
of the Company; reviewed the remuneration package
of Directors and senior management of the Company;
reviewed and recommended the remuneration package
of Mr. LO Pak Ho, Ms. XU Yilei and Mr. CHIAM Tat Yiu upon
their appointment as Chairman and independent non-
executive Directors (as the case may be).

The aftendance records of each Committee member at
the Remuneration Committee meeting held during the year
ended 30 June 2021 are set out in section A6 above.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
annual remuneration of the senior management for the
year ended 30 June 2021 falls within the bands from nil to
HK$1,000,000 and from HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000.

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the
year ended 30 June 2021 are set out in note 8 fo the
consolidated financial statements.
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Audit Committee

As at 30 June 2021, the Audit Committee comprised a fotal
of three members, namely Ms. LIU Pui Shan (Chairman),
Ms. XU Yilei and Mr. CHIAM Tat Yiu, all of whom are
independent non-executive Directors. The Chairman of
the Audit Committee also possesses the appropriate
accounting and financial management expertise as
required under Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules. None of
the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of
the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are reviewing
the financial information and reports of the Group and
considering any significant or unusual items raised by the
financial officers of the Group or external auditors before
submission to the Board; reviewing the relationship with
and the terms of appointment of the external auditors and
making the relevant recommendation to the Board; and
reviewing the Company’s financial reporting system and
risk management and internal control systems.

During the Year, the Audit Committee has reviewed the
consolidated financial statements, results announcements
and reports for the year ended 30 June 2020, for the three
months ended 30 September 2020, for the six months
ended 31 December 2020 and for the nine months ended
31 March 2021; the financial reporting and compliance
procedures; the report from the management on the
Company’s risk management and internal control review
and process; the arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about possible improprieties; and considered the
re-appointment of external auditors.

The external auditors have attended two of the Audit
Committee meetings held during the year ended 30
June 2021, without the presence of executive Directors, fo
discuss with the Audit Committee on issues arising from the
audit and financial reporting matters.

The aftendance records of each Committee member at
the Audit Committee meetings held during the year ended
30 June 2021 are set out in section A6 above.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the appointment of external auditors.
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Nomination Committee

As at 30 June 2021, the Nomination Committee comprised
a total of three members, being executive Director, namely
Mr. LO Pak Ho (Chairman) and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Ms. LIU Pui Shan and Ms. XU
Yilei.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
include reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board on a regular basis and recommending any
changes to the Board; identifying qualified and suitable
individuals to become Board members and selecting and
making recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships; assessing the
independence of independent non-executive directors;
and making recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of directors and succession planning for directors in
particular, the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company.

In selecting candidates for directorship of the Company,
the Nomination Committee may make reference to certain
criteria such as the Company’s needs, integrity, experience,
skills, professional knowledge and the amount of time and
effort that a candidate will devote to carry his/her duties
and responsibilities. External recruitment professionals
might be engaged to carry out selection process when
necessary.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed
the structure, size and composition of the Board fo ensure
that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate fo the requirements for the business of the
Group; recommended the re-election of the retiring
Directors standing for re-election at the Company’s annual
general meeting held on 31 December 2020; considered
and made recommendation to the Board on the
appointment of Mr. BAI Long, Mr. WEI Wei, Ms. XU Yilei and
Mr. CHIAM Tat Yiu as executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors (as the case may be) and
assessment of the independence of all the independent
non-executive Directors.
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B4.

The Board has adopted the “Board Diversity Policy” setting
out the approach to diversity on the Board. It is believed
that a truly diverse board will include and make good
use of differences in the skills, regional and industrial
experience, background, gender and other qualities of
members of the board. These differences will be taken into
account in defermining the optimum composition of the
Board. The Nomination Committee is responsible for setting
annually measurable objectives for implementing diversity
on the Board and recommends them to the Board for
adoption. The “"Board Diversity Policy” shall be reviewed by
the Nomination Committee, as appropriate, fo ensure its
effectiveness.

The aftendance records of each Committee member at
the Nomination Committee meeting held during the year
ended 30 June 2021 are set out in section A6 above.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions set out in the code provision D.3.1 of
the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed and monitored the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management, the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Required Standard of Dealings and the
Code for Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees,
and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 30 June 2021.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear
and understandable assessment of quarterly, interim and
annual reports, inside information announcements and
other disclosures required under the GEM Listing Rules
and other regulatory requirements. The management
has provided sufficient explanation and information to
the Board as necessary to enable the Board to make an
informed assessment of the financial information and
position of the Group put forward to the Board for approval.

Code provision C1.3 of the CG Code stipulates that,
unless it is inappropriate to assume that the company
will confinue in business, the directors should prepare the
accounts on a going concern basis.

During the Year, the Group incurred a net loss of
approximately HK$48,487,000 and had current liabilities
which included the outstanding other borrowing and Bond
of principal amounts of HK$15,000,000 and HK$58,400,000,
respectively; whilst the Group has only cash and cash
balances of approximately HK$3,451,000 as at 30 June
2021 to meet its financial obligations.

Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2021

C.

EENARAMBRR M
RIS

BENREARRARABE_ZT_—FX
B=+TRLFEEZHBHRER 2 EM -

$ETFGEML$%EEJJ&EI@§*A%EE Exg
ARAERERT BWERZHZEZE  $H
NEZREFTE - ABHS QM EEMBEE
ZRE - -EREERNESSRUERAZT AR
ER - UBEFEERR2ETEREZAE
[ 81 7% R R AR AIB R

CREATAZFURIECIIFRE B
FBRATVGEHBEEEBLTRE T
RIS F B AT R R RARE -

RAGEE ARBELFEEFED

48,487,000 B TH EEERBEE  BEA
& %89 5l 415,000,000 % 7t K& 58,400,000 7%
T HMAEEEMERLES  MASEER
—E-—FXRA=THE#HBEREAESE
#R#73,451,000 8 L ABITE S EE -



The Directors, having considered (i) on 10
September 2021, the Company issued a convertible
bond with a principal amount of HK$8,000,000
carrying coupon rate of 1% for 1 year; and (ii)
On 29 September 2021, the maturity date of one
of the bonds payable with principal amount of
HK$4,000,000 agreed to extend for one more year to 1 July
2023, are of the opinion that it is appropriate to prepare
the consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis. The consolidated financial statements do not include
any adjustment that would result from a failure fo obtain
such funding which indicates the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Should
the Group be unable to continue in business as a going
concern, adjustments would have been made to restate
the value of assetfs to their recoverable amounts and to
provide for further liabilities which might arise. For further
details, please refer to the paragraph *Material uncertainty
relating to going concern basis” of the Independent
Auditor's Report and note 2 fo the consolidated financial
statements.

Save as disclosed above, there are no material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

Goals and Objectives

The Board has the overall responsibility to evaluate and
determine the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to
take in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives, and
fo ensure that the Company establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems.

The Board acknowledged that the risk management
and internal control systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Main features of the risk management and
internal control systems

The Group'’s risk governance structure and the main
responsibilities are summarised below:

Board

0 To evaluate and determine the nature and extent of
the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group's
strategic objectives, and ensuring the implementation
of an effective risk management and internal control
systems;

0 To oversee the management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems; and

. To ensure that the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programs and
budget of the Company’s accounting and internal

audit.
Management
o Designs, implements and monitors the risk

management and internal control systems;

0 Identifies and assesses the risks which threaten the
achievement of the strategic objectives;

. Reviews the risk areas and risk level;
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Advises on matters raised by employees and the
holding company;

Coordinates and promotes risk management
by ensuring that risk and activities processes
are operated efficiently and effectively and in
compliance with GEM Listing Rules; and

Reports periodically to the Board.

Process Used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage
Significant Risks

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks by the Group were summarized as follows:

Risk Identification

Identified the risks through discussion with the
management. Risk assessment questionnaire
was used to document the risk identified by the
responsible parties.

Risk Assessment

Identified the existing controls and analysing risks in
terms of consequence and likelihood in the confext
of those controls.

Risk Response

.

Categorised and prioritized the identified risks;

Determined the strategy to handle the identified risk;
and

Developed the risk register and internal control audit
plan and determined the frequency of review and
control festing on key controls.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

On-going communication of monitoring results to the
Audit Committee which enables it to assess control of
the Group and the effectiveness of risk management
during the year, including:

- Risk questionnaires completed by the
management, risk register and internal audit
plan; and

= Fact finding report with recommmendations on
the review and testing of infernal controls on
certain operating cycles and areas.
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Internal Audit Function

With the assistance of the external consultant, the Group's
infernal audit function is performed by the management
of the Company, including analysing and appraising
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems.

The Company has engaged an external consultant to
assist the Company fo:

0 Perform the risk assessment on identified area and
report the findings and recommendations to the
management; and

0 Conduct various agreed upon reviews on material
controls and perform testing of internal controls on
certain operating cycles and areas in accordance
with the Company’s Internal Control Audit Plan.

For the year ended 30 June 2021, the Board has conducted
a review and assessment of the effectiveness of the
Company’s risk management and infernal confrol systems
including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management. Such review have been made by
discussion with the Audit Committee, management and
external infernal control consultant of the Company from
fime to time, but at least once a year. The Company also
has an internal audit function to assist the Audit Committee
and the management to conduct internal control review
periodically. The Board will put in place fo address
the identified area that shall be enhanced. The Board
considered that the existing risk management and internal
control systems are adequate and effective.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditors of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the Company'’s
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2021 is set
out in the section headed ‘“Independent Auditor’s Report”
in this annual report.

The fees paid/payable to Elite Partner CPA Limited, the
Company’s external auditors, in respect of audit services
and non-audit services for the year ended 30 June 2021
are analyzed below:

\

TEERRSE

5N S A% B B2 4% 55 B B <

ARABRIINEZBOMRBEE—_T - —FX
=STRLEFERRBABBRERZ ARBR
TER 2 BN AR FR B LREENHRE ]

£ o

~

| 3

RBEZT-—FRXA=ZTHLFE oE
AR R IEE L RIS E AT A T A A RS
BREE AT EESMEBAERA RN
BRAWT

Type of services provided by the external auditors Fees paid/payable
MNEZBE TR 2 REEE Bt ENEA
(HK$'000)
(F&x)
Audit services - audit fee for the year ended BERE-HE_T=—FA=1H
30 June 2021 WHFEZEZE 830
Non-audit services - tax service fee, fee relating to FBEZRE -RERBE  THE
the special audit, working capital forecast ER 2EACTRAERER
review fee and profit forecast review fee kAN BEEANEEER -
TOTAL: FEE 830
COMPANY SECRETARY F. REIMWE

According fo Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules, Mr. TAM
Hon Fai, the Company Secretary, has taken no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training fo update his
skills and knowledge during the year ended 30 June 2021.
Biographical details of Mr. Tam are set out in the section
headed "Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies”
in this annual report.
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TERERRS
G. COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

AND INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations
and investors” understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. The Group also recognizes
the importance of transparent and fimely disclosure of
corporate information, which enables shareholders and
investors to make the best investment decision.

The Company maintains a websife at www.sinovisionworidwide.com
as a communication platform with shareholders and
investors, where the Group’s business developments and
operations, financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are available for public
access. Shareholders and investors may send written
enquiries or requests to the Board to the Company's
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit 2004-6,
20/F, Strand 50, 50 Bonham Strand, Sheung Wan, Hong
Kong.

Inquiries are dealt with in an informative and timely
manner.

Besides, shareholders’ meetings provide an opportunity for
communication between the Board and the shareholders.
The Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of
the Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee, or in their albsence, other members
of the respective committees, and where applicable, the
independent Board committee, are available to answer
questions at the shareholder’'s meetings.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on
each substantial issue, including the election of individual
directors, for shareholders’ consideration and voting. The
Company’s shareholders may convene a special general
meeting or put forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings
as follows:

(1) Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company may request the Board
to convene a special general meeting pursuant
to clause 58 of the Bye-laws by sending a written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary at
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong. The objects of the meeting must be stated in
the written requisition.
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(2) Shareholder(s) representing not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights at the date of the
requisition or not less than 100 shareholders may
put forward a proposal at a shareholders” meeting,
pursuant to the laws of Bermuda by sending a written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary
at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong. The proposal should be stated in the
written requisition and such written requisition should
be submitted as early as practicable to enable the
Company to make necessary arrangement (in case
of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution, not
less than six weeks before the meeting; and in case of
any other requisition, not less than one week before
the meeting).

(8) If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other
than a retiring director for election as a director of
the Company at a general meeting, pursuant to
clause 85 of the Bye-laws, the shareholder (other
than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to
attend and vote at the general meeting shall send a
written notice, duly signed by the shareholder, of his/
her infention to propose such person for election and
also a notice signed by the person fo be proposed
of his/her willingness to be elected. These notices
should be lodged at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong, or the office of the
Company’s branch share registrar. The period for
lodgement of such notices shall commence on the
day affer the dispatch of the nofice of such general
meeting and end 7 days prior to the date of such
general meeting.

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must provide
their full name, contact details and identification, in the
originally signed written requisition, notice or statement
(as the case may be), in order to give effect thereto.
Information of shareholder(s) may be disclosed as required
by laws. Shareholders may refer to the Bye-laws for further
details of the rights of shareholders.

During the Year, the Company has not made any
significant changes to the Bye-laws. An up-to-date version
of the Bye-laws is available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. Shareholders may refer to the
Bye-laws for further details of the rights of shareholders.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetfings of
listed issuers shall be voted by poll pursuant to the GEM
Listing Rules. The poll voting results shall be posted on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company after
each shareholders’ meeting.
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I. DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy in which the
declaration of future dividends will depend on, among
others, the Group’s earnings, the business environment
in which the Group conducts its business, the business
strategies of the Group, the capital needs of the Group in
the future and the tax implication of the dividend to our
Group. The potential investors should note that dividend
payments should not be regarded as an indication of
future dividend policy. After considering the factors set out
above, the Board did not recommend any payment of a
final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2021 (2020: Nil).

J. INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information, the
Company is fully aware of its obligations under the Part
XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571
of the Laws of Hong Kong effective from 1 January 2013
and the GEM Listing Rules. In September 2013, a policy
has been adopted by the Board which sets out guidelines
to the Directors, officers and all relevant employees of the
Group o ensure inside information of the Company is fo be
disseminated o the public in equal and timely manner.

On behalf of the Board

LO Pak Ho
Chairman

Hong Kong
29 September 2021
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

elite
partners

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the members of Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and re-domiciled and
continued on 21 August 2015 in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sino
Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited (the "Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the "Group”) set out on pages 63 to 195, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 30 June 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
tfrue and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 30 June 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the "Code”), and we have fulfilled our
ofther ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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SAVEPE LGRS

Material uncertainty relating to going concern
basis

As described in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group incurred a net
loss of approximately HK$48,487,000 during the year ended 30
June 2021 and, as of that date, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by approximately HK$10,383,000.
These conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. Should the Group be unable to continue
in business as a going concern, adjustments would have been
made to restate the value of assets to their recoverable amounts
and to provide for further liabilities which might arise. We consider
that the fundamental uncertainty has been properly disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements. Our report is not qualified
in respect of the fundamental uncertainty relating to the going
concern basis.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separatfe opinion on these matters. In addition fo the matter described
in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters fo
be communicated in our audited report.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
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BN AZ BN RE

FARETEE»

Key audit matter
BRETSE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
REFFEEFARBITIR 2T E

»

Allowance for impairment of the loan and interest receivables

EWE R FSHEHM 2R EREE

Reference is made to notes 2.4 and 3 to the
consolidated financial statements for the
Directors’ disclosures of the related accounting
policies, judgements and estimates and note
18 to the consolidated financial statements for
further information.

The carrying amount of the Group’s loan
and interest receivables was approximately
HK$92,986,000, as at 30 June 2021, net
of impairment losses of approximately
HK$38,607,000.

The Group has applied the general approach
for impairment assessment of loan and interest
receivables and recognised lifetime expected
credit loss ("ECL") where significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition was identified.

For the purpose of assessing the ECL, the
Directors engaged an independent professional
valuer to perform a valuation (the "ECL on Loan
and Inferest Receivables Valuation”) regarding
ECL on loan and interest receivables based on
the management’s assumptions. Significant
management judgement was used to deftermine
the key assumptions underlying the ECL on Loan
and Inferest Receivables Valuation, including
(i) the probability of default (*PD") and loss
given default ("LGD"); and (ii) the selection and
use of reasonable and supportable forward-
looking information without undue cost or effort
in the ECL model, which involves management’s
judgements and assumptions and the valuation
technique involves significant unobservable
input.
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Our procedures in relation fo management’s
assessment of the allowance for impairment of the
loan and interest receivables included:

We discussed with management and the valuer
to understand the basis of valuation approach,
data used and methodology;

We challenged the valuer on the adoption
of the assumptions and estimations in the
valuation;

We evaluated the independence,
professionalism and the accuracy of the work
performed by the valuer;

We assessed the appropriateness of whether
loan receivables with no significant increase in
credit risk since inifial recognition have been
grouped based on common risk characteristics
and assessed for 12m ECL on a collective basis;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FARETEE»

Key audit matter
BEREGEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
REFHEEBEREENSEZLSZE

EREFRFIL 2 mERERE (E)

()  Allowance for impairment of the loan and interest receivables (Continued)

In determining whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group performed assessment on each of the
loan and inferest receivables on an individual
basis and considered both reasonable and
supportable quantitative and qualitative
information. The Group, amongst other factors,
assessed whether there was a significant drop
in the value of the collateral at the end of
the reporting period, which could indicate a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.

When no significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition was identified, the Group
grouped the loan and interest receivables on
the basis of shared credit risk characteristics and
measured impairment at 12-month ECL ("12m
ECL") on a collective basis.

Based on the above, the Group has provided an
allowance for impairment of loan and interest
receivables of approximately HK$5,591,000
during the year.

For the above reasons, we identified the
allowance for impairment of loan and interest
receivables as a key audit matter.
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- We evaluated the reasonableness and
appropriateness of the ECL on Loan and Interest
Receivables Valuation and the assumptions,
information and parameters used in the model,
including PD, LGD and forward-looking factors;

- We checked with the information used by
management in the calculation of ECL on
Loan and Interest Receivables Valuation (i.e.
loan term and collateral as mentioned in loan
agreements);

- We checked seftlement from customers after
the financial year end relating fo the loan and
interest receivables as at 30 June 2021 on a
sample basis; and

- We recalculated the provision of impairment of
the loan and inferest receivables, if any, and we
assessed the sufficiency of impairment as at 30
June 2021.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
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FARETEE»

Key audit matter
BEREGEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
REFHEEERENSEZSZE

(i)

Impairment assessment for goodwill
BB B E TG

Reference is made to notes 2.4 and 3 to the
consolidated financial statements for the
Directors’ disclosures of the related accounting
policies, judgements and estimates and note
15 to the consolidated financial statements for
further information.

The carrying amount of the Group’s goodwill
was approximately HK$6,869,000 as at 30 June
2021, net of impairment losses of approximately
HK$125,048,000, which were recognised arising
from business combinations regarding the
acquisition of (i) money-lending business;
and (ii) the operation (the "IP Operation”) of
intellectual properties (*IP*) rights licensing
and international IP development, media
integrated marketing, distribution agency and
trading of sports and related products business,
respectively.
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Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment of goodwill included:

We discussed with management and the valuer
to understand the basis of valuation approach
and methodology, which is prepared based on
the Forecasts;

We challenged the valuer on the adoption of
the assumptions and estimations in the Business
Valuations;

We evaluated the independent, professionalism
and the accuracy of the work performed by the
valuer;

We evaluated the reasonableness and
appropriateness of the Business Valuations and
the assumptions, information and parameters
used in the models, including the discount rate,
growth rate, terminal growth rate, gross margin
and turnover, used by the management in
assessing the recoverable amount of the CGU;
and

We recalculated the provision of the impairment
of the gooduwill, if any, and assessing the
sufficiency of the impairment as at 30 June 2021.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FARETEE»

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

MEETSER RETEERREENTEZEE
(i) Impairment assessment for goodwill (Continued)
BB AT ()

For the purpose of the impairment assessment
of the goodwill, the Directors engaged an
independent professional valuer to perform
certain valuations (the "Business Valuations”)
regarding the goodwill allotted to itfs
corresponding cash generating units ("CGUs")
based on the management’s assumptions. The
management has prepared future cash flow
forecasts (the “Forecasts”) to determine the
recoverable amount of each CGU. Significant
management judgement was used fo determine
the key assumptions underlying the Business
Valuations and the Forecasts, including the
discount rate, growth rate, terminal growth rate,
gross margin and furnover.

Based on the above, the Group has provided
an impairment of goodwill of HK$1,000,000 on
the money-lending business during the year.

For the above reasons, we identified the
impairment assessment of goodwill as a key
audit matter.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

OTHER INFORMATION

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is fo read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such infernal control as the Directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability fo continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Directors either intend fo liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those changed with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

0 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
infernal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Directors.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability fo continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw aftention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

B 2 AN S

BB REFF RS IR HRARE
Z2EF =

c HEERAKELEGH AR ZREHEL
o URIBMENZENEE WESE
FEREEXBEREBIERTHARARE
femAEEHY BERBEZBEKEHRNE
EBARE - HMESRRFEEATHBAERE
= AELEERBERETRECAET
ERAMBMRP ZABNE - HAMKE
TR REFIEEER -ESHERmNERE
ERHBERE B A LAEUS 2 B5HRE - A
- RRFEKBERA LG BEEEEE

+ 438 g A
FHELE -

c AfEEe M BRRCEBERTA  BER
NE - BREEEER UREEMB®RERE
BRERBRAEBERZMER

c B EEENERAXB LD U BERE
MARKEE 2 BABE  UEHEGESHK
BREXER - BFRBKEEFZTMA
EEMANT BERERERALZMEME -

EEHEBEELARNALHR (AR Fit 253
BE HRTHERBEAEAERER ZFERE
BESEENERER B 2 AR EE Z EMEAR
Lo

EENAASEANATIELRR EHEECH
EEBB M AAREEES  WHEESERA A
WEERASYETEBIUM I AABELEME
B AR AEREE IR RTTE) 5 E A MR 85 i
(@A) -

2021 4 | FHERERERAT

61



62

Independent Auditor’'s Report
AV G TR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chan Wai Nam, William with
Practising Certificate Number P05957.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
10/F, 8 Observatory Road
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon
Hong Kong

29 September 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
meEBmR

Year ended 30 June 2021 HE=ZT=_—FA=THILFE

N

2021 2020
=B —F —E2THF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
s FTER FHET
REVENUE ON 4,5 43,982 108,560
Cost of sales and services 845 KBRS A AR 6 (16.149) (80,547)
Gross profit EH 27,833 28,013
Other income and gains H A A R M 2= 5 6,223 3,796
Selling and distribution costs HE KD HEAKA (4.798) (13,247)
Administrative expenses and other 1T ER K E M E A
expenses (58.695) (66,717)
Impairment loss recognised on ERREEREER
goodwill 6,15 (1,000) (74,508)
Impairment loss recognised on other B &R H b & 2 & E R EE 1B
intangible assets - (1,0006)
Impairment loss recognised on loan B ##:2 E U E 7 &% F B BR3¢
and inferest receivables WEEE 6,18 (5.591) (9.421)
Impairment loss reversed/ DEE (DR EKRES
(recognised) on frade receivables  BRFREET1E 6, 20 1,060 (5.502)
Impairment loss recognised on other B 72 H b & WK B R (E 518
receivables 6 (1.513) (2.482)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HEWRB AR ZEE 6, 34(b) - (960)
Share of profit/(loss) of an associate FE(EE: & A al@F,~ (E8) 17 67 (10)
Finance costs BE KA 7 (8.124) (13,509)
LOSS BEFORE TAX BRBLA A 6 (44,538) (155,553)
Income tax (expense)/credit et (BA) H2 10 (3.949) 875
LOSS FOR THE YEAR 25 4 548 (48,487) (154,678)
Loss attributable to: A&7 R RS
Owners of the Company ZIN/NCIEZ SN (44,227) (139,371)
Non-controlling interests SRR & (4.260) (15,307)
(48,487) (154,678)
Cents Cents
AL AL
(Restated)
(k&E75)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ARAREEAELZERER
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 12
Basic and diluted BERREE
- Loss for the year —KFEEE (18.92) (88.59)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
e 2 E R E
Year ended 30 June 2021 HE-Z = —FXA=THILFE

2021 2020
—E-—F TECTF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTET FHET
Loss for the year REEEE (48,487) (154,678)
Other comprehensive income/ Hip 2wz (FX) AlgEE AR
(expenses) that may be reclassified to B E#HH BB ¢
profit or loss in subsequent periods:
- Exchange differences arising on — BRI EBREE 2
translation of foreign operations ME 5 =5 1,213 (1.379)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSES AEEXEBXAHE
FOR THE YEAR (47,274) (156,057)
Total comprehensive expenses FEMh2ERT A%
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZN/NEIEZZ SN (42,934) (141,051)
Non-controlling inferests SRR & (4.340) (15,0006)
(47,274) (156,057)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

fre AR

30 June 2021 —E-—FXA=+H
2021 2020
—E-—fF —EFF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
s FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ARBEE
Property, plant and equipment ERN: e Y 13 1,277 1,011
Right-of-use assets EREEE 14(a) 896 1,180
Goodwill [EES . 15 6,869 7,869
Other intangible assets HmpmiPEE 16 3,900 3,900
Interests in an associate N NI i 17 850 783
Deferred tax assets BERIEE E 30 - 3,721
Total non-current assets M EELTE 13,792 18,464
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories T8 19 - 393
Trade receivables FEWE 5 8RR 20 - 34
Prepayments, other receivables and  FB {4 7118 « H{th i U 7018 &
other assets Hih&BE 21 51,309 50,324
Loan and inferest receivables Y E R T A B AR AR 18 92,986 101,597
Financial assets at fair value through  #& A FEEF ABZEZ
profit or loss TREE 22 - 14,141
Cash and cash equivalents Re kRS EEIEH 23 3,451 28,157
Total current assets MEVEEBEE 147,746 194,646
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade payables BTSSR 24 32,010 27.874
Other payables, deposits received  EMhE[FIE « BWIZS
and accruals LEGTER 25 23,496 16,000
Contract liabilities aHAaE 26 27,683 15,586
Lease liabilities HEaE 14(b) 462 1,087
Other borrowing HnfEm 27 15,000 -
Bond payables FERES 29 58,860 4,000
Tax payables eI & 618 615
Convertible bonds AR ES 28 - 127,253
Total current liabilities MEN B EBEE 158,129 192,415
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS %8 (&f8) &&FE (10,383) 2,231
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBER
Lease liabilities HEEE 14(b) 451 113
Bond payables FEfESH 29 1,345 -
Total non-current liabilities InBAEERE 1,796 113
Net assets EEFE 1,613 20,582
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of NRARHER AELER
the Company
Share capital fi& < 31 53,859 36,793
Reserves & 32 (36,551) (4,856)
17,308 31,937
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR & (15.695) (11,355)
Total equity RSB 1,613 20,582
The consolidated financial statements on pages 63 to 195 were  F63HEF 15BN GEATBREADEES SN

approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
29 September 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

LO PAK HO
EARE
Director

EZE

TR FAASTARHERRETIE - I H A
TEERREE

HUANG QING
=5E
Director

EZE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BARREHE

Year ended 30 June 2021 E=—T=—F X A=+HILFE

Year ended 30 June 2021 BZE-_Z-—-FXA=tHLEFE
Attributable fo owners of the Company
ADARENEE
Treasury
share
Confribufed ~~ reserve/
Convertible surplus/ Capital Exchange Accumu- Non-

Share Share  bonds equity Capital  redemption  Share option  fluctuation Other lated controlling Total

capital ~ premium Teserve reserve reserve reserve reserve Teserve losses Total interests equiy
EERS

TERES REBR/ BR/RE
BE  ROER  REEE  RAER  GERE  BRESE EXRBER  ARER  RMER & FEREE  REAR
HKS'000 HK§'000  HK§'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK§'000  HK§'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL THL TR TER TEn TER THL TR TERL T#n Tén TER

AT July 200 RZB-ELA-B

Loss for the year rEEER

Other comprehensive TEREMpRERE:
income for the year:
Forelgn operations franslafion diference BEHAEER

Total comprenensive income for e year TERREAREE

Issue of shares (note 31(t) B (HE31(0))

Issue shares under exercise of share opfions REERERLIRE

Lapse of share opfions BRERR

Redempfion of equity component of converble BT 2R % 2 B£ 5
bonds

Eoityseffled share option artongements G RRERS (13
(nofe 33)

At30 June 2021 R-F--£/A=1H
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Consolidated Statement of Chonges in EqQuity

Year ended 30 June 2020

== \ 7/ Z"
— X\ man
e EER

Year ended 30 June 2021 HE=ZT=_—FA=THILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KLAEEARE
Treasury
shore
Contibuted resenve/ Fair volue
Convertiole surplus/ Captal reseve  Exchonge Accumu- Non-
Share Share  bonds equity Copital  redemption  Share opfion (non-fluctuation Other lafed confroling Totol
capiial ~ premium resene fesene Tesenve feseve  recycing) resene fesene [osses Total interesfs equity
ERRH
£4R8/ HE/ER RVERE
Rx  BbEE E ARRE  WERE BRESE (TUER) EXRUEE LR A B fobEE  ERER
HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000
Tin T TiEn TR TR TR Thr Tin TR T T TR FiEn
At July 2019 RZF-NELA-A 30601 304,304 2033 77,068 35% 6,351 - (2081) (634)  (91003) 148495 3651 152146
Loss for he year KERER : : - - - - - - S (N3 (33T (15307)  (154678)
Other comprehensive TEREDRENE
income for the year:
Foreign operations fransiafion R
difference - - - - - - - (1.680) - - (1.680) 30 (1379
Totol comprehensive income forthe  AEE2A4ZLE
year - - - - - - - (1,680) - (1031 (141,081) (15008) (156,057
Issue of shares (nofe 31(0)) RiA (8 6132 1459 - - - - - - - - 20730 - 20730
Lopse of share opfions - - - - - (6.351) - - - 6351 - - -
Equity-seffled share opfion
arrangements (nofe 33) - - - - - 3763 - - - - 3763 - 3763
At 30 June 2020 793 318902 208° 77,068* 352" 3768 - (3761)" (834 (44083)" 31987 (11,355) 20582

: These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves with ~ * ZERBROSERAMBMRARTHNEE R
a negative balance of HK$36,551,000 (2020: HK$4,856,000) in the 36,551 OOO/%E(_g_‘?i 4,856,000/ 7T) KI4R
consolidated statement of financial position.

Bt -
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Consolido’red Statement of Cash Flows

P
,ﬂ: ﬂ%ﬂimu%%%
Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ZE-=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B AE FHExT FiET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& XK cRERE
Loss before tax BRELRTE R (44,538) (155,553)
Adjustments for: HE
Finance costs A& A AR 7 8.124 13,509
Bank inferest income RITH B A 5 (5) a3)
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets ?ﬁ’&i@ SFABRZ® miﬁ
at fair value through profit or loss ERTEEE (W 5.6 6,328 (84)
Loss on disposal of financial assets at fair Ed%?ﬁ’&iféﬁ)\?éiﬁéz
value through profit or loss CRIEEEIE 6 87 3,771
Depreciation of rightto-use assets TREEECTE 6, 14(a) 1,121 1,785
Depreciation of property, plant and W BERREZITE
equipment 13 753 1,103
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant st ’% Y- BEMEREZ
and equipment @) /R 6 (548) 447
Written off of lease liabilities, net fﬂ&\’ﬁ &2 58 F R 5 - 4
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HEN B AR 2 B8 34(b) - 960
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEWB AR 2 AT 5, 34(a) - (28)
Impairment loss on other intangible assets £ {th & /12 & Z 6 & 5518 6,16 - 1,006
Impairment loss on loan and interest BERERRFEERZ
receivables REEE 6,18 5,591 9,421
Impairment loss (reversed)/recognised on (B EE) CHREWKE S
trade receivables R OB E R 18 6, 20 (1.060) 5,502
Impairment loss on other receivables Hfth E WK IE R B 1B 6 1,513 2,482
Equity-settled share option expenses ARG E EIRER 33 2,872 3,763
Impairment loss on goodwill [EEDEREY =] 15 1,000 74,508
Amortisation of other intangible assets HitvmEEE#H 6,16 - 704
Share of (profit)/loss of an associate FEREE R A CEF) B5E 17 67) 10
Written off of property, plant and VI~ BB MR 2 s
equipment 6,13 - 100
Reversal of provision of long services BERARGSSEE
payment - (354)
Reversal of provision for litigation and BEFL R EEEREE
legal fee 5 - (665)
Reversal of of provision of maintenance BORE RIS EE
service 5 (3.600) -
(22.429) (37,640)
Decrease/ (increase) in inventories FERL (g 393 (232)
Decrease in trade receivables FEWE 5 BEFOR D 1,094 6,943
Decrease/(increase) in loan and interest JE W B R R R B BRFURL
receivables (&) 3,020 (17.366)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, other 81 518 « H b 8 FRIE &
receivables and other assets Hh & 7 (3 ) R (2.498) 7,027
Increase in contract liabilities aHBEEN 12,097 4,699
Decrease in financial assets BEAFEFABR EREE
at fair value through profit or loss Ve 8.366 13,724
Increase in trade payables JEHE 5 BRFRIE N0 4,136 6,291
Increase in other payables, deposits HibEAg0E - EldEE Rk
received and accruals FEETE R 10,743 2,691
Cash generated from/(used in) operations &% HE, (FrA)RE 14,922 (13,863)
Taxes paid B IR (225) (2,430)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating e EBME/ (FTR)RE
activities BT 14,697 (16,293)

Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2021




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

4rEe T

N

BEmRER

Year ended 30 June 2021 HE=ZT=_—FA=THILFE

2021 2020
—E_—F —E-F
NOf?S HK$'000 HK$’000
Bt & FaxT FHT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES Eﬁ%@jfﬂﬁﬁi
Bank interest received BEERITHIE 5 13
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEME - V%& #H2IER
equipment 13 (1.626) (342)
Net cash outflow regarding the disposal of BRI EWER A 2EE
subsidiaries L FRE 34 - 78)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant LEWE - BEREHZ
and equipment ZECEexE 1,235 925
Net cash flows (used in)/from investing REERYH (A FEHRE
activities mEFE (386) 518
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEZTHRERE
Interest paid EAFLE 36 (2.820) (2,500)
Proceeds from issue of bonds BITEF IS NIE 36 54,043 4,000
Capital element of lease rentals paid EHTE?’TTE%ZK%*B;% 36 (1.125) (1,751)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENHEERSF B 36 (42) 119)
Repayment of convertible bonds BEREABRRES 36 (130,000) -
Proceeds from other borrowings H &Rz TS KIE 36 15,000 -
Proceeds from placing of shares Bl & AR 19 P15 38 31 23,160 20,730
Proceeds from exercise of share options TERREZ RS KIE 2,273 -
Net cash flows (used in)/from financing MEEH IR FIERE
activities REEE (39.511) 20,360
NET (DECREASE) /INCREASE IN CASH AND ﬁﬁ&iﬂﬁ%fﬁlﬁ A
CASH EQUIVALENTS WA, INE R (25.200) 4,585
Cash and cash equivalents at i%ﬂﬁ%&fﬁﬁﬁfﬁlﬁ B
beginning of year 28,157 24,587
Effect of foreign exchange rate fE R B8 2 7 FER
changes, net 494 (1,015)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRESRESLEEER
END OF YEAR 3,451 28,157
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND ReRkBREESEEBEHRIN
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTHEH 23 3,451 28,157
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited (the *Company”)
was a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 15 March 2000 under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands. The shares of the Company were listed on
the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 2 August 2000.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the shareholders
of the Company at an extraordinary general meeting held
on 6 August 2015, the domicile of the Company has been
changed from the Cayman Islands to Bermuda by way of
de-registration in the Cayman Islands and continuation as
an exempted company under the laws of Bermuda. The re-
domicile was completed on 21 August 2015.

The change of domicile has no impact on the continuity
and the listing status of the Company.

The registered office of the Company was located at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda.

The principal place of business of the Company is located
at Unit 2004-6, 20/F, Strand 50, 50 Bonham Strand, Sheung
Wan, Hong Kong.

The Group is principally engaged in (i) e-commerce
and provision of on-line sales platform; (ii) operation
of intellectual properties ("IP") rights licensing and
infernational IP development, media infegrated marketing,
distribution agency and trading of sports and related
products business; and (iii) money-lending business.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

PEIREBEHN
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

Year ended 30 June 2021 HE=ZT=_—FA=THILFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ATIRKEEEH @

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries MR RER
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as RATEEMB AR ZFFBEHINAT
follows:
Place of incorporation/ Paid up issued/ Proportion ownership
registration/ registered inferest held by
Name of subsidiary operations capital the Company Principal activities
e/ ER/ ARERT/
WEARER Feny EREE ARAREZRERERLS TERH
Direct Indirect
& A%
2021 2020 2021 2020
ZB--F CEORF B CTOIF
EPRO E-commerce Group Limited Brifish Virgin Islands US$500 51 51 - - Investment holding
EBRTHE 500%7T RERR
EPRO Ecommerce Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - - 51 51 E-commerce and provision
HEETARARLT ) 100737 of onine sales platform
ETARR
REELHETR
Geekdigg Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - - 51 51 Investment holding
EARTREXERAA & 10,000/ RALR
FER)EERTERAT The People’s Republic 15$100,000 - - 51 51 E-commerce and provision
(notes a) (M a) of China (the "PRC") 100,000%7 of onine sales platform
MEARLAE ((RE]) ETHBR
REELIHETS
AT EEFEEERAR PRC RMB500,000 - - 51 51 E-commerce and provision
(notes a) (R a) G ARH500,0007T of onvine sales platform
ETARR
REBLHETR
Dragon Champ E-commerce Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - - 51 51 E-commerce and provision
EEETERERAN ) 1T of onine sales platform
ETHBER
REBLHETA
Success Beauty Limited Brifish Virgin Islands Us$2 100 100 - - Investment holding
REERAT EBRIEE 2XT RERR
Ever Great Finance Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - - 100 100 Money-lending business
EEHBARAR B 15T EE2H
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

iR ISR M

Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARIREEBEEH »
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MEARER #)
Place of incorporation/ Paid up issued/ Proportion ownership
registration/ registered inferest held by
Name of subsidiary operations capital the Company Principal activities
e/ ER/ #ARERT/
Gl P Feny EREE ARAREZRERERLS TERH
Direct Indirect
R A%
2021 2020 2021 2020
CEC-F T CBC-F CEOER
Sense Media Group Limited Brifish Virgin Islands Us$1 100 100 - - Investment holding
ZRERARLA EBRTHE 157 RERR
Sense Media Group Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - - 100 100 Investment holding
ZRERARAA B 1ET RERR
HERERZ X BRERLT PRC RMB5,000,000 - - 100 100 [P rights licensing and
(note a) (P& o) ME AR%5,0000007 inferational development,
media infegrated markefing
business
AAERRERALHE
BREAEHER
Strong Nefwork Infernafional Limited Brifish Virgin Islands US$200 100 100 - - Investment holding
EBRIEE 057 RERR
FERRXtEFERAA PRC RMB20,000,000 - - 100 100 Distribution agency, sales and
(note 0) (Kita) PE  AR%20000,0007 marketing channel of licensed
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Apart from the above subsidiaries, the Group has a

structured entity during the year ended 30 June 2021 and
its information is as follows:

iR WIS ERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2021 HE=ZT=_—FA=THILFE

1. REIREBEN »

MEARER @)

BERHBARSN  REE-—B=—FXA
SHBRLEFER  AEEES —MEKER
R AF - ABHERDOT :

Place of
incorporation/ Paid up issued/
registration/ registered share Proportion ownership interest Principal
Name operations capital held by the Company activities
EMERE/ BrERn/
£B B/ EEE ETEN FARREZERRERLY TEEH
Direct Indirect
B 5k
2021 2020 2021 2020
“E--f -TTZF EC-f —E0%
Shenzhen Huakai Fugui Information PRC RMB8,700,000 - - 51 51 Dormant
Technology Limited (nofes b) i AR H8,700,0007C HEEY
R EREEEERMBRAR
(M3t b)
Notes: Bt 5

(a) These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign owned
enterprises under the PRC law.

(b) Shenzhen Huakai Fugui Information Technology Limited
("Shenzhen Huakai Fugui®) is a structured entity controlled
by the Group. The Directors are of the opinion that the Group
has the power to govern the financial and operating policies
of Shenzhen HuaKai Fugui and is required to consolidate
its result into the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year.

(@ WENBRRDRESEEEEMAIE
BEMX-

(o) RIERBERCEEMERA R (DRIIFE
REE] 2 b ASEESZHHRER
RILAT - EFRBAEEEREIRIIE
AEENFBREERRRBEAHEE
REAREZEEMBHRRA -

EZRR - LRMIMARRHMBAREE
TEASENFESIEE -BEERA H
HAHE AR FE RS RIEBRITE o

ENBARRFERBETERNETES -
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) (which include all
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs")
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"), and accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM (the "GEM Listing Rules”) of the Stock
Exchange and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention except for financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss which has been
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (*"HK$") and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company have considered the future
liquidity of the Group in view of its recurring losses incurred
and net current liabilities position as at 30 June 2021. The
Group incurred a consolidated net loss from operations of
approximately HK$48,487,000 for the year ended 30 June
2021, and had consolidated current liabilities exceeded
current assets by HK$10,383,000 as at 30 June 2021. These
conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt of the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and therefore, the Group
may not be able to realise its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the normal course of business.

The Directors are of the opinion that the Group is able
to continue as a going concern and to meet in full their
financial obligations, having considered that:

(1) On 10 September 2021, The Company issued
a convertible bond with a principal amount of
HK$8,000,000 carrying coupon rate of 1 % for 1 year;
and
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

2.1 fRIEEE

ZEGAVBRRDBEEBSHMNAE (&
BEIMAG]) Bh BBV BRE LR
(IBEMBHMESENN]  TREREEEY
B SRR B EER ([HBEHER))
k2B RBEBLERRA IS RAMAELR -
AN - R BT IR B A5 X T GEME 5 |
mARAI(TGEM EMAR AL AR Z @A 5
REEDAHEPI Z WBERTE © BRIZ D FER
ABRZ EREERZREMRIE A FERT
B MBmMRIDBIBESLBAE I HEER -
BREERIN  ZEGEEMBIHRRAET (TF
D25 AR FREEUT TREM -

MR E M IS HRER - AR RESERAT
EEZEFEEBBEERR-_Z=_—F A=+
BzrRBEEFERAMERAEEBZ K
RRDES AEBHE_T=-—F A
STRLFESERETHREFHEEYN
48,487,000t WR=_T=_—F A=+
BAELHZERE A EBiERE & E 10,383,000
EIC c X EMRNKE - FEAIEEANER T
BIREZEENEEBRARENENTEE M -
Eitt  AEBATREAR M EER EREBKBREF
BRHBERSEEARE-

REBNATRIE EERRAEEAFHEL
ERBBBEITEMBAE

(1) RZZEZ—FhA+H XRAREIT
R&%8/48,000,000 8 TEEEEXA1%
ZRE—FMARRES &



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

Year ended 30 June 2021 HE=ZT=_—FA=THILFE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1 REER ()

(2) On 29 September 2021, the maturity date of one
of the bonds payable with principal amount of
HK$4,000,000 agreed to extend for one more year to
1 July 2023.

Having taken into account of the abovementioned, the
directors of the Company adopted the going concern
basis in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
in light of the aforesaid arrangement implemented to
date, the Group will have sufficient working capital for its
current requirements and it is reasonable to expect that
the Group will remain as a commercially viable concern.
Accordingly. the directors of the Company are satisfied
that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2021 on a going
concern basis. Should the Group be unable to continue
to operate as a going concern, adjustments would have
to be made to write down the value of assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for future liabilities which
might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and non-
current liabilities to current respectively. The effect of these
adjustments has not been reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
and a structured entity (collectively referred to as the
"Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2021. A subsidiary
is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. A subsidiary is
not consolidated into the Group’s consolidated financial
statements when the control is considered to be temporary.
Control is achieved when the Group has power over the
investee; is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and has the ability to use
its power to affect its return.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries and a
structured entity are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Group, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries and a structured entity are
consolidated from the dafe on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attribufed to the owners of the Company and
fo the non-controlling interests, even if it results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balances. All intra-
group assetfs and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-conftrolling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group'’s equity therein, which represent
ownership interests entiting their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon
liquidations.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (Confinued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
fo one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary
and a structured entity, without a loss of conftrol, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group losses control over a subsidiary or a structured
entity, it derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary or non-controlling interest, (ii)
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The
Group’s share of components previously recognised in
ofther comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following amendments to
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments fo HKFRS 3 Definifions of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Ratte Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendment fo HKFRS 16 Covig-19-Related Rent Concessions

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8  Definition of Material

The applications of the Amendments to Reference to
the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

iR ISR M

Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these consolidated financial statements.

Amendment fo HKFRS 16

Amendments fo HKFRS 3

Amendments o HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,

HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

HKFRS 17

Amendments o HKAS 1

Amendments fo HKAS 8

Amendments fo HKAS 12

Amendments fo HKAS 16

Amendments fo HKAS 37
Amendments to HKFRS Standards

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

N Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June
2021

¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a datfe to

be determined

The Directors anticipates that the application of new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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Reterence fo the Conceptual Framewort?

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2!

Sale or Contribution of Assels between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture®

Insurance Contrac’s and the relofed Amenaiment?

Classifcation of Liobilties as Current or Non-
current and reloted amenaments fo Hong Kong
Inferpretation 5 (2020

Definifion of Accounting Estimares®

Deferred Tox reloted fo Assets and Libilities arsing
from a Single Transaction’®

Property, Plant and Equijpment - Proceedss before
Infendled Use?

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfiling o Confrac?

Annual Improvements fo
HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle?

Disclosure of accounting polcies’
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Interests in associates

An associatfe is an entity in which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee,
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity
of the associate, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulfing
from fransactions between the Group and its associates
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in
the associates, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates is
included as part of the Group’s investments in associates.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration fransferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group fo the former
owners of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
inferests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of net assets in the event of liquidation either at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-confrolling inferests
are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
confractual terms, economic circumstances and perfinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separafion of embedded derivatives in host contracts by
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity inferest in the acquiree
is remeasured at its acquisition datfe fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contfingent consideration payable to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration payable classified as an
asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration payable that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent setflement is accounted for
within equity.

Gooduwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity inferests
in the acquiree over the net amount of identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of
the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is,
affer reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 30 June. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of
cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
unifs or groups of units.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (groups of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group
of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

When goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value
of the disposed operatfion and the porfion of the cash-
generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly tfransaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or fransfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
info account a market participant’s ability fo generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best
use or by selling it to another market participant that would
use the asset in its highest and best use.
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Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant fo
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities;

Level 2 - based on valuation tfechniques for which

the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for
which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets,
and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
the asset’s or cash generating unit’'s value in use and its
fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case, the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific fo the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset and certain financial assets is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation), had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal
of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with
the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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ire SRR IR

Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related o the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group and that
person,

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiiy  is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of the Group’s parent.

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary or the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s the
parent.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises ifs purchase price and any directly affributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its infended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection
is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at infervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 20% to 50%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%
Computer equipment and software 18% to 33'/,%
Motor vehicles and yacht 20% to 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, estimated useful
lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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A

BB HRRM

Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (Other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intfangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of infangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the infangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at each financial year end.

Intangible assetfs with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash
generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not
amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If
not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite
fo finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Concession rights on intellectual properties

The concession rights on infellectual properties represented
the concession rights to use certain intellectual properties
in the Greater China Region, which were granted by the
owners of the intellectual properties for a period ranging
from 3 to 5 years. Concession rights on intellectual
properties granted separately are measured on initial
recognifion at cost. The cost of concession rights on
intellectual properties acquired in a business combination
is the fair value at the acquisition date.

The useful lives of concession rights on intellectual
properties are assessed to be finite. The concession rights
on intellectual properties with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the concession rights on intellectual properties may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for concession rights on intellectual properties with
a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial
year end.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Lease

The Group assesses at confract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the confract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into modified on or after the date of
initial application or arising from business combinations,
the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms, and
conditions of the confract are subsequently changed. As a
practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics are
accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group reasonably
expects that the effects on the consolidated financial
statements would not differ materially from individual leases
within the porifolio.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-tferm leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assefs
Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms
and the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Office premises 3 to 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset tfransfers to the Group
by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects
the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is
calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.
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Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Lease (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

®)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate. The variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rafte are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate af the
lease commencement date because the inferest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
intferest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities
is remeasured if there is a modification, a change
in the lease term, a change in lease payments
(e.g.. a change to future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Lease (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c) Shortterm leases and leases of low-value assefts
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of office premises
(that is those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the
recognition exemption for leases of low-value assets
to leases of office equipment that is considered to be
of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying
asset to the lessee are accounted for as finance
leases.

Investments and other financial assets

Inifial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s confractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of accounts receivable
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset af its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss, fransaction costs.
Accounts receivable that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied
the practical expedient are measured at the fransaction
price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the
policies set out for "Revenue recognition” below.
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BB HRRM

Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)
In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs fo give rise fo cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest ("SPPI")
on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with
cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers fo how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are
held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contfractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which
are not held within the aforementioned business models
are classified and measured at fair value through profit or
loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits fo purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assefts at amortised cost (debt instruments)
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the consolidated statement of financial position
at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected
to classify at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Dividends on equity investments classified
as financial assets at fair value profit or loss are also
recognised as other income in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Confinued)
A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from
the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if the
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related
to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms
as the embedded derivative would meet the definition
of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured
at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives
are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. Reassessment
only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the
confract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a
financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss
category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing
a financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The
financial asset host together with the embedded derivative
is required fo be classified in its entirety as a financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)
is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the statement
of financial position) when:

0 the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
0 the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash

flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay tfo a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
tfransferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the fransferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the fransferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
fo repay.
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Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses ("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the
original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other
credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
ferms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible within
the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures which there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life
of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information.

At each reporting datfe, the Group evaluates whether the
debt investments are considered to have low credit risk
using all reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort. In making that
evaluation, the Group assesses the internal and external
credit ratings of the debt investments. In addition, the
Group considers that there has been a significant increase
in credit risk when contractual payments are past due.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when
infernal or external information indicates that the Group is
unlikely fo receive the outstanding contractual amounts in
full before taking info account any credit enhancements
held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement of
ECLs except for accounts receivable and contract assets
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs;

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs; and

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach

For accounts receivable that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on ifs historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific o the debtors and the economic environment.

For accounts receivable that contain a significant financing
component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as
its accounting policy fo adopt the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables,
other payables and accruals, confract liabilities,
convertible bonds and contingent consideration payable.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classificafion as follows:
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for tfrading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for frading if they
are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near
term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships
as defined by HKFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives
are also classified as held for frading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or
losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. The net fair value
gain or loss recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income does not
include any inferest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in HKFRS 9
are satisfied. Gains or losses on liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss, except for the gains or losses arising from
the Group’s own credit risk which are presented in other
comprehensive income with no subsequent reclassification
fo the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
does not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking info account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective inferest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability in
the statement of financial position, net of tfransaction
costs. On issuance of convertible bonds, the fair value of
the liability component is determined using a market rate
for an equivalent non-convertible bond; and this amount
is carried as a long ferm liability on the amortised cost
basis until extinguished on conversion or redemption. The
remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion
option that is recognised and included in shareholders’
equity, net of transaction costs. The carrying amount of the
conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent years.
Transaction costs are apporfioned between the liability
and equity components of the convertible bonds based
on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity
components when the instruments are first recognised.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss (Continued)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

If the conversion option of convertible bonds exhibits
characteristics of an embedded derivative, it is separated
from its liability component. On initial recognition,
the derivative component of the convertible bonds is
measured at fair value and presented as part of derivative
financial instruments. Any excess of proceeds over the
amount initially recognised as the derivative component
is recognised as the liability component. Transaction
costs are apportioned between the liability and derivative
components of the convertible bonds based on the
allocation of proceeds to the liability and derivative
components when the instruments are initially recognised.
The portion of the transaction costs relating fo the liability
component is recognised initially as part of the liability. The
portion relating to the derivative component is recognised
immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
ferms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition
of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to seftle on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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No’res to Consolidated Financial Statements

A

BB HRRM

Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories is determined on the weighted
average basis in finished goods. Net realisable value
represented on estimated selling prices less all estimated
costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an infegral part
of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, including ferm deposits, which are not
restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constfructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required fo seftle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group on
certain products are recognised based on sales volume
and past experience of the level of repairs and returns
discounted to their present values as appropriate.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred ftax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit
or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking intfo consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

- when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
fransaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

- in respect of faxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be confrolled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

- when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
fransaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

- in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised
tfo the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced fo the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset fo be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is seftled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate
fo the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all aftaching conditions will be complied with.
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised
as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the
costs, which it is infended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released
fo the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and released to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from confracts with customers

Revenue from confracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is fransferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring
the goods or services to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at confract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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A

BB HRRM

Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from confracts with customers
(Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit
of financing the fransfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing fransaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the
Group a significant financial benefit for more than one
year, revenue recognised under the contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method. For a contfract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the
fransfer of the promised goods or services is one year or
less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.

E-commerce and provision of on-line sales
plafform

Revenue arising from sales of goods arising from
E-commerce service is recognised at a point in time when
the performance obligation is satisfied upon delivered of
goods and received in advance are normally required
before the sales of goods.

Franchise income arising from IP rights licensing,
service income arising from infernational IP
development and media integrated marketing
business

Revenue from franchise income arising from IP rights is
recognised over time based on a scheduled period on a
straight-line basis because the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefit provided by the Group.
Revenue from service income arising from international IP
development and media infegrated marketing business
is recognised over time when the IP related services are
rendered to the customers.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Distribution agency and frading of sports and
relafed products

Revenue from distribution agency and trading of sports
and related products is recognised at a point in time when
the performance obligation is satisfied upon delivered of
goods/products fo the customers.

Revenue from other source

Interest income arising from money lending business

Loan interest income is recognised on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can
be measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier).
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of
the related goods or services fo the customer).
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Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Loyalty programs

The Group operates loyalty programs (the “Loyalty
Programs”) to customers arising from its e-commerce
business which entitles them to redeem the reward
points as a sales credit for future purchases. Revenue is
recognised when the reward points are redeemed at sales
fransactions. Contract liabilities are recognised until the
reward points are redeemed.

Employee benefits

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity or
paternity leave are not recognised until the fime of leave.

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits schemes (the "MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible fo
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer conftributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The confributions are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the cenfral
pension scheme.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards fo eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions™).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is defermined by an
external valuer using a "Binomial Model”.

The cost of equity-settled fransactions is recognised in
employee benefit expenses, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the year in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the
end of the reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit tfo the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for a year represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at
the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken info account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to
an award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance conditions.
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Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been
met, no expense is recognised. Where awards include
a market or non-vesting condition, the fransactions are
freated as vesting irrespective of whether the market or
non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the ferms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification, that increases the total fair value of the share-
based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee
as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the datfe that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are freated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (*HK$"), which is the Company’s
functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines
itfs own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded
using their respective functional currency rates ruling at
the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency rates of exchange prevailing at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on
settlement or franslation of monetary items are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial fransactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary itemn measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., franslation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the derecognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating
fo an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction
is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.
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Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (Confinued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated info Hong Kong dollars af
the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are translated
into HKS at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation,
the component of other comprehensive income relating
to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
freated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
franslated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
info Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into HK$ at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could require
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following judgment,
apart from those involving estimations, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Revenue recognition

The Group applied judgements in determining the
amount and timing of revenue recognition arising from
(i) E-commerce and provision of on-line sales platform;
(i) operation of IP rights; (iii) licensing and international
IP development, media integrated marketing, distribution
agency and frading of sports and related products; and
(iv) money-lending business. The Group concluded that (a)
revenue from e-commerce and provision of on-line sales
platform, distribution agency and trading of sports and
related products are recognised at a point in time upon
the delivered of goods/products to the customers; (b) loan
interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective intferest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument; and (c) the
remaining revenue are recognised over time when services
are rendered to the customers.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Provision for expected credit losses on loan and
interest receivables

The Group assesses impairment of loan and interest
receivables based on an estimate of the recoverability
of these receivables. Impairment is applied to loan
and interest receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of impairment of loan and
interest receivables under both HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39
requires the use of estimates and judgement.

The Group uses judgement in making assumptions and
selecting the inputs to its ECLs calculation, the Group
assesses whether the credit risk on loan and interest
receivables has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the loan and
inferest receivables as at the reporting date with the risk of
a default occurring on the loan and interest receivables
as at the date of initial recognition and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The impairment loss of loan and interest receivables
at 30 June 2021 amounted to HK$38,607,000 (2020:
HK$33,016,000). More details are given in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Confinued)

Impairment loss on goodwill

The management of the Group determines whether
goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis. This
requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units fo which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. During the year ended 30 June 2021, impairment
loss on goodwill of (i) HKSNil on the Sense Media CGU (as
defined in note 15) (2020: HK$65,860,000); (i) HKSNil on
the Strong Network CGU (as defined in note 15) (2020:
HK$8,648,000) and (iii) HK$1,000,000 on money-lending
business (2020:Nil) were provided. Further details are stated
in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The management of the Group assesses whether there are
any indicators of impairment for all non-financial assets
(including the right-of-use assets) at the end of each
reportfing period. Indefinite life intangible assets are test
for impairment annually and at other times when such an
indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on available data from binding sales fransactions in
an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.
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Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Group is principally engaged in (i) e-commerce and
provision of on-line sales platform; (ii) operation of IP
rights licensing and international IP development, media
infegrated marketing, distribution agency and trading
of sports and related products business; and (iii) money-
lending business.

For management purposes, the Group is organised
into business units based on their nature and has three
reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) e-commerce and provision of on-line sales platform;

(b) IP rights licensing, international IP development and
media infegrated marketing, distribution agency and
tfrading of sports and related products business; and

(¢) money-lending business.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of adjusted
profit/(loss) before tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before
tax is measured consistently with the Group’s loss before
tax except that interest income, non-lease related finance
costs, gain/(loss) from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, as well as head office and corporate
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude convertible bonds, unallocated
head office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are
managed on a group basis.
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Year ended 30 June 2021 HE-F=—FXA=1TAILLFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BREFWBER =

(Conftinued)
Year ended 30 June 2021 BE-2--FAA=TRALEE
Continuing operations
RRAEEH
TP rights
licensing,
international
development and
media integrated
marketing,
distribution
agency and
E-commerce and trading of sports
provision of and relafed )
ondine sales  products business Money-lendin
platform segment sigﬂ!nent business segmen Total
HEERRE
ARARERAER
BiRGoes .
ug
A\ ; A
BEYSNE  EERRERAD kEERSS 3
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
THR THR T#ER TEn
Segment revenue ABUA
Segment other income SHEBUA
Segment results AH%E
Unallocated other income and gains iﬁ@ﬂ%ﬂﬁl)\&%
Unallocated expenses AL ER
Loss from operations EEEE
Finance co?fs @EM
Loss before fox BRIEE
Income fax credit Fﬁ%ﬁf%&ﬁ
Loss for the year TERER
Segment assefs HHEE
Unallocated assefs RO EE
Total assefs BEE
Segment liabiliies ARaE
Unallocated liabilties AobizBE
Total liabiliies £8E
Amount included in measurement of segment AR BERFSDEEHE
profit or loss or segment assefs ) Zﬁﬁ
Capital expendifure LY
Unallocated capital expenditure AOREFRR
Depreciation and amortisafion ‘ nEREE
Unallocated depreciation and amortisation AR MEREH
Impairmentloss on goodwil BEREER

Impairment loss on loon and inferest receivables R EF R A S B 5B ERE
Impairment loss recognised/ (reversed) on frade ?ﬁﬁ%ééﬁﬁ@wﬂ (Bm)z

receivables

Impaiment loss (reversed)/recognised on ofher ?}Lﬁ%ﬁuﬁl?ﬂlﬁ (BE) /%322
feceivables nEEE

Unallocated impaiment loss AAEREEE

Shore profit of an associate EEREREN

\ 2021 4 | FREBZRERAT 15
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n\/T\

BB HRRM

(Continued)
Year ended 30 June 2020

Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

Conhnumg ope%ghons

} & & 4 AN

IP rights

licensing,

infenational
development and
media |ntegra fed

marketing,
distribution
ogenoy and
E-commerce and frading of sporfs
provision of and relafed
onine soles products buswness Money-lendin
platform segment - %men business segmen Tofal
BlE
BR5E EF??;&
E1En :
R P
HETAND EEERAY st
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
Ti7 TR T
Segment revenue 43,09 56,114 9,350 108,560
Segment other income 2,187 956 3 3146
Segment resulfs (31,485) (8,549) (7.698) (41732)
Unallocated other income and gains AREBIARYE 650
Unallocated expenses f (%, 081)
Loss from operations (142,163
Finance cosfs (13,390
Loss before fax (195,593)
Income tox credit 875
Loss for the yeor (154,678)
Segment assets PHEE 35,246 8,109 110,598 153,953
Unallocated assefs APREE 59,157
Total assets BEE 23110
Segment liabilifies ﬁi[i & 52876 4811 129 57816
Unallocated lichiltes AP EE 134,712
Total liobilifies gk 192,528
Amount included in measurement of segment it A2 BERFABEEHE
profit or loss or segment assets 2%H
Capital expendiure BRRR 33 10 - 342
Depreciation and amorisafion nEREE 1528 1465 242 323
Unallocated depreciation and amortisation AN TEREH 357
3592
Impaimmentloss on goodwil HEREEE - 74,508 - 74,508
Impairment loss on other EEVEERESR
infongible assets - 1,006 - 1,006
Impairment loss on loan ond interest receivables B EF R FI S B EEE - - 9421 9.421
Impaiment loss on frade receivables EWEFERAEER - 5,502 - 5502
Impairment loss on other receivables MR EERE 168 376 - 504
Unallocated impaiment loss AAEREER 1938
2482
Shore loss of on associate EEBREATEE - 10 - 10
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
rra IS ERER MY

Year ended 30 June 2021 HE-F=—FXA=1TAILLFE

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BREFWBER =

(Conftinued)
Geographical information HEE R
(a) Revenue from external customers (@) REINEFER KA
The revenue information of continuing operations is REREEBZWABHEREPHE
based on the location of the customers: D
Year ended 30 June 2021 BE-_Z-—FXA=+tHLEE
North South
America America Africa Europe Asia* Oceania  Consolidated
TEH R il Bt [y KM A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tn TEn TER TEn TEn TEn TEn
Segment revenue: ABUA:
Ecommerceand provision  E AR R
of ondine sales platform BLEETa
Money-ending business BEER
IPrights icensing REEERER
and international IP RAZERER
development, media oeRs
integroted markefing, B HERE
distribution agency and REEEHR
frading of sports ond RERREH

relafed products business

e The Group is domicile in PRC. - AEBEB M RRE -

\ 2021 4 | FREBZRERAT 17
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

iR ISR M

Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, BEFHBEH »
(Continued)
Geographical information (Continued) HEER #)
(a) Revenue from external customers (Continued) (a) RESIESEF ZIKA (&)
Year ended 30 June 2020 HE-Z-_ZFA=THLFE
North South
America America Africa Europe Asia® Oceania  Consolidated
N BEH 3l Bl i RN =i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEn TERL ThnL TEn TERL ThnL
Segment revenue: AHUA
Ecommerceand provision ~ EFEH R
of onvling scles platform BLEETs 7938 5747 589 24,300 2363 2159 43,09
Money-ending business REEH - - - - 9,350 - 9,350
IPrights icensing and RAEERER
infernational IP development, BB MEEER
media integrafed markefing, % FEEA
distribution agency and B HERE
frading of sports and reloted ~ REEEH R
products business RERREH - - - - 5,114 - 5,114
7,938 5747 589 24,300 61827 2159 108,560
* Further geographical information of continuing & BREGEWMABE®ION T HERE Y

operations on sales which accounted for more than
10% of the total revenue are as follows:

FEKERS E—SHRERAT -

2021 2020

—EB-—F —E-THF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FET

PRC (include Hong Kong) PE(BREEE) 22,782 55,898

’ The domicile in Asia is PRC.

Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

Year ended 30 June 2021 HE=ZT=_—FA=THILFE

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BEFWMER =)

(Continued)
Geographical information (Continued) HEER #)
(b) Segment non-current assets (b) ZEH BB E
Year ended 30 June 2021 BE-Z-_—FXA=1tHLEE
North South
America America Africa Europe Asia® Oceania  Consolidated
TEM BEN il B il KEN &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn T Tén TEn T Tin TEn
Segment non-current assets  ABERBEE - - - - 13,792 - 13,792
Capifal expenditure EXEX - - - - 1,626 - 1,626
Year ended 30 June 2020 BE-_Z_ZFA=TRHILFE
North South
America America Africa Europe Asia® Oceania  Consolidated
b5 EEY El Bl e REN af
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
T TR Thn TR TR THL TR
Segment non-current assets A FEFHEE - - - - 14743 - 14,783
Capifal expenditure EABX - - - - 3 - 3
* The domicile in Asia is PRC. & RIEME MR RFE -
Information about major customers EBREXEEFZESR
Revenue from customers that contributing over 10% of the HAEEBKRAIO%IA EZFFRALT

fotal revenue of the Group is as follows:

2021 2020
—EB=-—F —TFF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Customer A* EFA* N/A* 28,137
TEA*
Customer B* =B 10,083 N/A*
T
’ Customer arising from IP rights licensing and international # BB ERRENBERANSREREMR  HE
IP development, media integrated marketing, distribution REEHE PHREREEEHRAER®
agency and frading of sports and related products business. REELETIRE
“ Revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue of * A K FE S 25 HA RS U A S B A AR B AU A

the Group for the corresponding reporting period. 10% A E °
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No’res to Consolidated Financial Statements

ire SRR IR

Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and
gains is as follows:

WA ~ Bt i A B W &=

REBE WA - B A RS ST

2021 2020
—E-—& —E-TE
HK$'000 HKS'000
FTEx FET
Revenue from confracts with customers: REEPEHZWA
E-commerce and provision of on-line BYEBERIEHE LHE
sales platform Fa 12,644 43,096
Franchise income arising from IP rights licensing, %1 EE R EE £ ML
service income arising from international BZWA - BB AESERE
IP development and media integrated FEREREEEHER
marketing business* EENRBKA 22,565 26,216
Distribution agency and trading of DEREREBEPHR
sports and related products R - 29,898
Revenue from other source: R EE AR 2 WA
Interest income arising from money-lending EEEBMESNTIR
business WA 8,773 9,350
43,982 108,560
Other income and gains: HARA 5
Bank inferest income RITHSHA 5 13
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value BATEFABRZEHMA
through profit or loss EATERE - 84
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 34(a)) HENB AR 2 &F
(Ff5E 34(a)) - 28
Reversal of provision for litigation and legal fee BEFAREREREE - 665
Reversal of provision of long services payment BORBRGRE - 354
Government grants received B U # B) 244 1,033
Ancillary service income wERBA - 87
Management fee income EEEWA - 1,206
Reversal of provision of maintenance service BERERGEE 3,600 -
Foreign exchange gain, net HNEE %505 BB 1,308 -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BEREE
equipment Z Wz 548 -
Written off of lease liabilities, net HEBEIMETE - 14
Others Hith 518 312
6,223 3,796
Total revenue, other income and gains AU - E YA R Mz 50,205 112,356
- Included in the amount of approximately HK$22,565,000 * N #22,5665,000 L (Z T =T F :
(2020: HK$26,216,000) was approximately HK$4,151,000 26,216,000/ JT) I sR A F ,151,00!

(2020: HK$23,391,000) represented the franchise income
arising from its IP rights licensing and remaining balance
of approximately HK$18,414,000 (2020: HK$2,825,000)
represented service income arising from international IP
development and media infegrated marketing business.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

iR WIS ERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2021 HE=ZT=_—FA=THILFE

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA - HittWr AR U 2= )
(Confinued)
Disaggregated revenue information DIFBRAEHR
2021 2020
=B —F —ECTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fax FHET
Timing of revenue recognition: WA R 2R
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEHZBA
Sales of goods through its on-line sales RE—RERERE -
platform at a point in time HETAHEER 12,644 43,096

Franchise income arising from IP rights

licensing, services income arising from

international IP development and
media integrated marketing business
tfransferred over time

Distribution agency and trading of
sports and related products at
a point in time

Revenue from other source
Interest income

Information about the Group’s performance obligafions is

summarised below:

E-commerce and provision of on-line sales

platform

Revenue arising from sales of goods through its on-line FERH
sales platform is recognised at a point in fime when the R
performance obligation is satisfied upon delivered of o

goods and a full payment received in advance is normally

T BREBAERE A3
EREREE & 2 FRRT
EEIA - BIFR AN E
EREMEREEREE
SHEERSE L 2 BRIGUA

RE-—HBMSERER
BEEEYRABAR

B E A AR A

B UA

required before the sales of goods which is classified as

contract liabilities.

22,565 26,216
- 29,898
35,209 99.210
8,773 9,350
43,982 108,560

g - 4

FHAEERNE T ZERBAINT -

EFEBRRERABLHEETS

& SRR R A B 2 K — I B
Q/,\EA%%E?&I CIES = SENSELIE A

Ei HETAHEERELEZBATS

BRAMAR

2021 £ | FEEBEZERARAAF
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BB HRRM

Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(Confinued)

Franchise income arising from IP rights
licensing, service income arising from
international IP development and media
infegrated marketing business

Revenue of franchise income arising from IP rights licensing
recognised over time based on a scheduled period on a
straight-line basis because the customers simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefit provided by the Group.
The payment received in advance is normally required.
Revenue of service income relating to international IP
development and media infegrating marketing business
is recognised over time when the IP related services are
rendered to the customers. The payment is generally due
within 90 days after the related services rendered to the
customers.

Distribution agency and trading of sports and
related products

Revenue arising from distribution agency and trading of
sports and related products is recognised at a point in
fime when the performance obligation is satisfied upon
delivered of goods and related products fo the customers
and the payment is generally due within 180 days after the
goods/products are delivered to the customers.

Revenue from other source

Inferest income arising from money-lending
business

Loan interest income is recognised on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ire R

Year ended 30 June 2021 HE=ZT=_—FA=THILFE

LOSS BEFORE TAX

6. BRBIAIGE

The Group's loss before tax from continuing operations is AEBREFBELCEEK F??R A& 18 T
arrived at affer charging/(crediting): i[5 4 (E’H\) TR AT A
2021 2020
—B--F S 23
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHT
Cost of sales and services ﬁE&HEﬁﬁk$
Cost of sales I 6,149 30,121
Cost of services HEfJ‘%ﬁX$ 10,000 50,426
16,149 80,547
Technical expenses included in “Cost of sales” in - BIEELRA BRI 2 HEMR A
the consolidated statement of profit or loss Hiir& A 1,373 2,822
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment %1% BERFEZITE
(nofe 13) GEAR) 753 1,103
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 14(a)) %ﬁﬁ&ﬁ??ﬁ% 15£14(0)) 1,121 1,785
Amortisation of other infangible assets (note 16)  Eft & & A # $45(Ki7E16) - 704
Auditor’s remuneration B 830 1,050
Lease payments not included in the measurement I &t ATRE & E:t 8 2 EMK
of lease liabilities (note 14(c)) (W&M(o)) 101 30
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets at fair fzﬁjr quMﬁﬁﬁZ%mEﬁF
value through profit or loss AF] EESTE/ Wiz 6,328 (84)
Loss on disposal of financial assets at fair value  HEZAFETAER Z%mﬂﬁ?
through profit or loss pd it 87 3,771
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and HENE MERBEZ
equipment CeVe i (548) 447
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (note 34(b)) HE—FAMNBARz EB(HE
34(0)) - 960
Written off of property, plant and equipment VEN Lk e
(note 13) (F3£13) - 100
Impairment loss on goodwill (note 15) HEREBEE5) 1,000 74,508
Impairment loss on other infangible assets HitEEERERE
(note 16) (FfEE16) - 1,006
Impairment loss on loan and inferest receivables %H&%?K&ﬂ SEFUREERE
(nofe 18) (18 5,591 9,421
Impairment loss (reversed)/recognised ontrade  (2#&E) /EHAEKE B R
receivables (note 20) BEEHE 20) (1,060) 5,502
Impairment loss recognised on other receivables B #E 72 E U B RIE B 18 1,513 2,482
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration BTHRA(BIEMT8 2
in note 8) i)
Wages and salaries TERE® 11,335 17,611
Housing allowances il=: 25 400
Equity-settled share option expenses relatingfo  EAEEEZSEERE
directors or employees of the Group PR 4 8 s R ) 52 2,872 3,763
Net pension scheme contribution* RS EIHTERE 491 809
14,723 22,583
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss, net SNE(Kz) /BiEERE (1,308) 991
Bank interest income HATHBUA 5 (13)
Government grants received B HUT R (244) (1,033)
Ancillary service income HENRRIS A - 87)
Reversal of provision of maintenance service BORERBKEE (3.600) -
Reversal of provision for litigation and legal fee BB N AR E AR - (665)
Reversal of provision of long services payment BB RERE S & E - (354)
Written off of lease liabilities, net (note 14(c)) HEaE 2 MEFEE4C) - (14)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 34(a)) HE— R B AT 2 BRI
34(q) . 28)
¢ At 30 June 2021, the Group did not have forfeited : EA*”*—ixxﬂ B - REEEBR
contributions available to reduce its contribution to the Yoz 5% - BT HEA R

pension scheme in future years (2020: Nil).

AEIRR(ZT=FEF

/FJZEE)XEJ*Z BRE
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A

BB HRRM

Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

7.

FINANCE COSTS R & R A

2021 2020
—E=— T -TF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FER FHET

Imputed interest expenses on RRES 2 HEER SR
convertible bonds (note 28) (Bfi5E28) 5,046 13,390

Imputed interest expenses on bond EREFZHEER SR

payables (note 29) (Bt 3£ 29) 2,162 -
Interest on lease liabilities (note 14(b)) HEREZFIE (MEFE14(b)) 42 119
Interest on other borrowing HibfEEZH 8 874 -
8,124 13,509

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, Sections 383(1)(a).
(). (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

EERFETBAEH=

RAFE - BIEEHRE - FERRUERIE
383(1)(@) * (0) * () B () AR AT (B
ERNEER RAFE2HRBENESTREE
THAB®MFHMAET

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-FTF

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FHET FHET

Fees e 430 432

Other emoluments: HAaEN S -

Salaries, allowances and benefits e FUREDHN =

in kind 2,611 2,691

Equity-settled share option expenses 5% 78 4% & B A A 5 52 193 -

Pension scheme confributions RINEBETEIMER 46 59

2,850 2,750

3,280 3,182

Certain directors held share options granted in respect of
their services fo the Group under the share opfion scheme
of the Company, further details of which are sef out in note
33 to the consolidated financial statements. The fair value
of such options recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss over the vesting period was determined
as af the date of grant and the amount included in the
consolidated financial statements for the years have been
included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

Year ended 30 June 2021 HE=ZT=_—FA=THILFE

8. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERIFETBAEME =
REMUNERATION (continued)

(a) Executive directors (o) BITESE
Salaries,
allowances  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits  share option scheme Total
Fees in kind expenses  contributions  remuneration
e
BER REEH BHhe
1t BENRE BRERX HEIf aye
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MizE FET TAER FER TAR TER
2021 —BZ-F
Mr. WANG He FHFEAE 0} - 939 - 21 960
Mr. BAI Long HEExE (ii) - 480 - - 480
Mr. HUANG Qing BEELE (iii) - 432 193 7 632
Mr. LO Pak Ho BELE - 760 - 18 778
- 2,611 193 46 2,850
2020 ZBIEF
Mr. WANG He THEE @ - 342 - 29 37
Mr. Al Kuiyu VEFE4E (v) - 1,240 - 12 1,252
Mr. HUANG Qing BEELE (iii) - 189 - - 189
Mr. LO Pak Ho ERELAE - 920 - 18 938
- 2,691 - 59 2,750
Notes: P aE
0) appointed on 28 February 2020 and resigned on 8 0) RZEZTF A=+ \HEZEE
December 2020 ER-ZZ=ZFF+=A/\BEE
@iy  appointed on 14 July 2020 @iy RZZ-TFLtAT+EHAERZEE
(i)  appointed on 20 December 2019 (i) RZZT-NF+-_A-+HEZHE
(iv)  resigned on 28 February 2020 vy, RZZ_ZEF_A-+N\HEMHE
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Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

8. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid fo independent non-executive directors

8. EERTETHAEME @

(b) BUFHTES

AEAEFEESNBUFRNTESTZH

during the corresponding years were as follows: E N
2021 2020
—sE-—F —E-THE
Notes HK$'000 HK$’000
o FTHET FET
Mr. CHIAM Tat Yiu EEREKAE () 70 -
Ms. XU Yilei H—ERA (i) 93 -
Mr. WEI Wei RB|ELE (i) 68 -
Mr. TONG Kar Hing EREEA @iv) = 80
Ms. LIU Pui Shan E 2+ 144 144
Mr. LOU Sai Tong EHEREEE () 50 144
Mr. YEUNG Wing Nam BXFEEE (vi) 5 64
430 432
Notes: B 5T
(i)  appointed on 4 January 2021 )y RKRZZE=_—F—ANBEZRE
(i)  appointed on 6 November 2020 @iy RKRZZE-ZEF+-ARBEZRHE
(i)  appointed on 14 July 2020 and resigned on 4 January @iy RZZE-_ZTFLATHHEZAER

2021
(iv)  resigned on 20 January 2020
(v)  resigned on 6 November 2020

(vi) appointed on 20 January 2020 and resigned on
14 July 2020

There was no other emolument payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2020: Nil).
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Year ended 30 June 2021 HE=ZT=_—FA=THILFE

8. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Independent non-executive directors

8. EERTETHAEME @

(b) BUHAGESE )

(Continued)

No further emolument was paid by the Group to the
executive directors and independent non-executive
directors either as an inducement upon joining or to
join the Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year (2020: Nil).

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

The independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company.

The number of directors, whose remuneration fell
within the following bands is as follows:

AEEBERLERTEERBLIE
HITESEINEMEMIMS  AER
HEIMA SR INARE B85 2 2B s (F
ASBEEL 2 B AE

F A0 M 1 I A ] 2 R R B A ER Bk

RAERETAMS (ZT_FF H\) -

LFRPIRAITESIE DB B ESE
EEARE RAEEFEBH MR IR o

LFRPTREBLATESETHNE VAR
REERARBEEMEZH-IRT o

MEeENFTHEBEANZESAZNT

Number of Directors

EEAH
2021 2020
—B=-—F TECTF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000/ 7T 10 7
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 ;T2 2,000,000/ 7T - 1
10 8
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Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two
directors (2020: two directors), detail of whose remuneration
are set out in note 8 above. Detail of the remuneration for
the year of the remaining three (2020: three) highest paid

TEEAEFES

FREEBRFEEREMEES (2=
TF WEBES)  BHEZFHMFBIEN L
XA - H#H =R (T _TF =8 &
=EHER BREARRESTNIESTRITR

employees who are neither a director nor chief executive of AB)HFERNFMFBLOT :
the Company are as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHT
Salaries, allowances and benefits e ERREYNE
in kind 1,580 1,812
Equity-settled share option expenses H& 745 E BB AL #5A <2 1,255 3,010
Pension scheme contributions RINGRTEIER 34 93
2,869 4,915

The number of non-directors, highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:

HENFTIBERNZEERSHMES
ZHBEHENTX:

Number of employees

EEAH
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
Nil fo HK$1,000,000 Z£ 21,000,000/ T 2 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7% 1,500,000 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001;&7c 22,000,000/ 7T - 2
3 3

Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2021




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2020: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year, except for one
subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying entity under
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime effective from the
year of assessment 2019/20. The first HK$2,000,000 (2020:
HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits of this subsidiary is
taxed at 8.25% (2020: 8.25%) and the remaining assessable
profits are taxed at 16.5% (2020: 16.5%).

Under the Law of PRC on Enferprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the

tax rate of PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2020: 25%).

The Japan Income Tax is calculated at 15% (2020: 15%) on

iR WIS ERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2021 HE=ZT=_—FA=THILFE

10. FiBHER (ER)

BERME %R)E‘ﬁtzliifﬁé/%%iz fl &t
JERTURFHE16.5% (Z B -2 F : 16.5%)
ZHREREE  EAKE -HIE AR
S RRRBTE E_T N/ —ZRBIF
[E AR AR M AR IR A5 %‘JVZE‘%E %
ff /&8 = &) & 2,000, 000/’%75 (ZF_FF:
2,000,000/% 7o) 2 MR g F$28.25% (=
ZTF : 8.25%) TLEBT MR T EERTUR
%l #16.5% (B =FF : 16.5%) B T -

RIBHELEMSTE ([REMBIED K
EEMSHEAERG - & BB R NX
R 25%(Z T —FF : 25%) ©

BAMSHIRE W B B B 1 Bl il 5T AR

the estimated assessable profits of the Japan subsidiary

during the year.

BB FIR16% (Z B -2 4F :

15%) # ©

2021 2020
—E-—F —T-FTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FET
Current tax - Hong Kong BT — BB
Charge for the year REEHRZ 133 8
Over-provision in previous year EFEBEREE - (434)
Current tax - Elsewhere BUERT 75 — H Ath 3 =
Charge for the year REEHZ 95 131
Under-provision in previous year EFERETR - 150
Deferred tax IRIE T IE
Charge/(credit) for the year REFEZH(ER)
(note 30) (FF7E30) 3,721 (1,083)
Over-provision in previous year LFEEERE - 353
Total tax charge/ (credit) for REEHEH,(HEE)
the year ] 3,949 (875)
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Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)
(Continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to loss before
fax from continuing operations using the statutory rate for

10. FAI8HER (BR) =

HERANKEFELEEE BB RERUA
XA S EL BB A R P R B 2R 2 0K E B R AT

the countries in which the Company and its subsidiaries BoRIERTEFNERBRGEE 2B

are domiciled to the tax expenses at the effective tax rate is PO

as follows:

2021 2020
—E--F —Z%E
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET
Loss before tax R AT R (44,538) (155,553)
Tax caleulated at Hong Kong tax rates REEREGENRR (7.348) (25,673)
Effect of different taxation rate in overseas TREIHEZZE (308) (989)
Income not subject to tax ERTLV N (1,009) (478)
Expenses not deductible for tax TAMBZEZ 3,305 17,624
Tax effect of temporary differences not recognised ~ ABREEEEENH KT E 53 -
Unrecognised deferred tax assets AERRLEREEE 9,256 8,572
Under-provision in previous year, net TEERETR FE - 69
Tax charge/(credif) ot effective fax rate RERBESEZRETL, (B8) 3,949 (875)
11. DIVIDENDS 11. B2
The Directors do not recommend any dividend for the year EETERRBEECS —FXA=+AHL
ended 30 June 2021 (2020: Nil). FREIRBEMMRS (: T_TF E)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

12. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic loss per share amounts is based on
the loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company, and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share are
based on:

iR WIS ERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2021 HE=ZT=_—FA=THILFE

12.

ARFEBEABISEBRER

BRERBESBIIRA QR EEBRERR
BEABEARFERE URFRABHTER
Bz i BEtE -

BREAREEERRATELESE

2021 2020
—E—— —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Loss attributable to ordinary equity BETESRENSEN
holders of the Company, used AAREBRERTE ARG
in the basic loss per share 18
calculations (44,227) (139,371)
Numbers of shares
gyt S ¢c]
2021 2020
=B —F —E-FF
(Restated)
(fE7))
Shares gn)
Weighted average number of AU ESREREEBZFA
ordinary shares in issue during BT EARINE T8
the year used in the basic loss per
share calculation 233,744,251 157,324,561

Note: The weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year ended 30 June 2020 has been adjusted for
share consolidation on 24 November 2020. Detail of share
consolidation are set out in note 31.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share
amounts presented for the years ended 30 June 2021
and 2020 in respect of a dilution as the impact of the
share options and convertible bonds outstanding had an
anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share amounts
presented.

Mz : RBE_Z-_TF A=-1THLFENDEHE
TERRMETFHEER T _TF+—
A=+ M5 & GHEL A - R15E OFsF
BEERKTEIT ©

BHE-_Z-_—FkK-_Z-_ZTFA=+HL
FE WERETHIBHNERENEES
FIEHAE  RA/MRITE 2 ERERA
BREH 2w BB ERERNEEESE
BEET REHEVE -
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Year ended 30 June 2021 HE—T=—FXA=+TAILLFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. V% - BERRE
Furniture, Computer Motor
Leasehold  fixturesand  equipment vehicles
improvements  equipment and software  and yacht Total
BAH - EMRE
HEEE BV ET RE# RERER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TET TET TERT
30 June 2021 “E--5XA=+H
At 1 July 2020: RZEZZFLA—-H:
Cost %
Accumulated ZHHE
depreciation
Net carrying amount FREFE
At 1 July 2020, net of RZEZZFLA-A-
accumulated BB ZETE
depreciation
Additions NE

Depreciation provided ERERE
during the year (note 6)  (fif7E6)
Disposal during the year ~ RAFEFEHE

Exchanges realignment  [EXHE

At 30 June 2021, net of RZZE-—%X A=1A8"

accumulated EMRZETE
depreciation
At 30 June 2021: RZEZ-F A=+H:
Cost A
Accumulated ZEiE
depreciation
Net carrying amount FREFE
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Year ended 30 June 2021 HE=ZT=_—FA=THILFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. V1% - MERRE=®

(Continued)
Fumniture, Computer Motor
Leasehold fixtures and equipment vehicles
improvements equipment  and software and yacht Total
R EMEE
HERE RENGEE R TE R @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000
TR TR FER TR TR
30 June 2020 “ZE-ZEXA=TH
At 1 July 2019: RZZ-NFLA—H:
Cost AR 1,083 3,633 3,344 2,038 10,098
Accumulated ZEHiTE
depreciation (855) (1,765) (2.483) - (5,103)
Net carrying amount BEFE 228 1,868 861 2,038 4,995
At 1 July 2019, net of RZZ-nEtA—-A8"
accumulated BHREHIE
depreciation 228 1,868 861 2,038 4,995
Additions NE 8 - 44 290 342
Depreciation provided FRTERE
during the year (nofe 6)  (Ii3£6) (197) (178) @313) @15) (1,103)
Disposal during the year ~ RAFFEHE - (1,236) (136) - (1,372)
Disposal of a subsidiary HEME AR
(note 34(b)) (P £:34(b)) - - - (1,681) (1,681)
Written off during the year A E 4
(note 6) (Ff5x6) (10) (90) - - (100)
Exchanges realignment (B X B 3 (53) (20) - (70)
At 30 June 2020, net of RZZZZFRXA=1A
accumulated BB R TE
depreciation 32 311 436 232 1,011
At 30 June 2020: RZZZZFRA=TH:
Cost A 1,082 1,334 3,100 290 5,806
Accumulated 2EHE
depreciation (1,050) (1,023) (2,664) (58) (4,795)
Net carrying amount EmFE 32 3N 436 232 1,011
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Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

14. LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for office premises used in
its operations. The terms of the leases generally require the
Group to pay security deposits and have lease terms of two
to three years (2020: two to three years) with fixed monthly
rentals. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning
and subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

(a) Right-of-use assefs

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use

14.

HE

REBEREEA
AEEFARAELE I HAENE AR
4 - BEEK— &EXﬁEliﬁ%“u’

HHARE=F (T -_TF WE=F)H
BAXMNEERSE - —MimE AEETE

RAKESNEZEROBHEEE -

(@) EABEAE
AEERFARBERAZNEZ @

assets and the movements for the leasing of office AEE REERESHNT
premises during the years are as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
As at 1 July 2020 RZZEZZTHFLH—H 1,180 3,385
Addition for the year $¢F£w~ 820 -
Depreciation charge (note 6) FEER (o) (1.121) (1,785)
Written-off for the year AN FE g = (420)
Exchanges realignment M 5 A & 17 -
As at 30 June RANA=+H 896 1,180
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEEE

The carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the
movements during the year are as follows:

FRHERBEZREAERESHMT

2021 2020
—E-—F —T-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET
Carrying amount at 1 July REtA—HZEEE 1,200 3,385
Addition for the year KEERE 820 -
Accretion of interest recognised 4 R R F B 1L bl
during the year (note 7) (W G 7) 42 119
Payment 3% (1.167) (1,870)
Written-off for the year AN4E FE = (434)
Exchanges realignment P 5 S B 18 -
Carrying amount at 30 June RANA=+RHZEEE 913 1,200
Analysed info: DT
Current portion BIHAER 5> 462 1,087
Non-current portion FERNEA &R 7 451 113
913 1,200
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in HEBBZ BB MRS M ®RM 43
note 43 o the consolidated financial statements. wEE -
The weighted average incremental borrowing rate HE B EE M F 1538 2 E R =

applied to lease liabilities is 3.95% (2020: 4.95%).

The total cash outflow for lease is HK$1,268,000 (2020:

HK$1,900,000) during the year.
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Year ended 30 June 2021 HE=ZT=_—FA=THILFE

14. LEASES (continued) 14. HE »
(C) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to (¢) REZAEREWBEEZFENT :

leases are as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F —T-FF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Interest on lease liabilities HERBGBEZHNE 42 119
Depreciation charge of EREEEZITEER
right-of-use assets 1.121 1,785
Expense relating to short- HEMESEERERAX
term leases (included in (GFATfTEER)
administrative expenses) 101 30
Written off of right-of-use assets  { FI 4 & & 2 i 5 - 420
Written off of lease liabilities HE A EZ - (434)
Total amount recognised in profit A Bz A fER 2 4258
or loss 1,264 1,920
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Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

15. GOODWILL 15. B8
HK$’000
FET
Af 1 July 2019 —NFE+tHA—H
Cost BN 148,326
Accumulated impairment REHRE (65.949)
Net carrying amount BREFEE 82,377
Cost at 1 July 2019, net of ZE-NFEA—B2ZKRA
accumulated impairment Bk 2ERIE 82,377
Written off i 3 -
Impairment during the year RARFEERIE (74,508)
Cost at 30 June 2020, net of accumulated  R=ZZT=—ZF A=+ HZKRA
impairment 2Bk 25T RE 7.869
At 30 June 2020 R-ZZTE-_ZTF,A=+H
Cost B AR 131,917
Accumulated impairment ZEHREE (124,048)
Net carrying amount BREFE 7.869
HK$’000
FHET
Cost at 1 July 2020, net of RZEZTFLA—BZHA
accumulated impairment BBk 2FTRE 7.869
Impairment during the year (note 6) RAEZRE (51 6) (1.000)
Cost at 30 June 2021, net of accumulated RZZTZ—F A=+ HZMA -
impairment Bk 2ERE 6,869
At 30 June 2021 RZEZ—FA=+H
Cost (DN 131,917
Accumulated impairment ZEHREE (125,048)
Net carrying amount BREEE 6,869
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15. GOODWILL (Continued)

iR WIS ERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2021 HE=ZT=_—FA=THILFE

15. 52 »

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash generating units
("CGUs") that are expected to benefit from that business.
A summary of goodwill by each reporting operating CGU is
presented below:

ReELEN (BEEE)RMENR
BEHRENEERNTEREHREOR

SELEMN((REELBEM]) - REBREL
ERSELEMIONEEMERINWT

As at 30 June

RAA=+H
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ER T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT

IP rights licensing and international
IP development, media integrated
marketing, distribution agency
and tfrading of sports and related
products business

- arising from the Sense Media Group — H Sense Media Group

Holdings Limited if & 4

(=R EEReEESN]) 6,869 6,869
— F Strong Network

International Limited i

E 4 ([ Strong Network 3. &

Holdings Limited (the “Sense
Media CGU")

- arising from the Strong Network
International Limited (the “Strong
Network CGU")

EEEM])

Money-lending business BEHEG

Goodwill acquired through business combination is
allocated to the Group’s CGUs that are expected fo benefit
from that business. The net carrying amount of goodwill
as at 30 June 2021 represented HK$6,869,000 (affer
impairment of HK$65,860,000), Nil (after impairment of
HK$58,188,000) and Nil (after impairment of HK$1,000,000)
respectively, arose from the acquisition of subsidiaries in
(i) the Sense Media CGU; (ii) the Strong Network CGU;
and (iii) the money-lending business CGU, regarding IP
rights licensing and international IP development, media
infegrated marketing, distribution agency and trading of
sports and related products business and money-lending
business.

B E R E R BB AR ERE
P - HEHREEH

B A
LEEEPRBERRER

- 1,000

6,869 7,869

EBEHMERSZREIEERHHR A
REZEB2AEENREELSBN R -F
——HFRAZTRH BEZEREEFEREEE
FHMBERRENRFERANBERRME K
BaRSEE DHEREREEEDRIEHAM
mEBUREERBZ ) =BEEREEE
B : (ii))Strong Network & EAE B &
(NEEXBREELBNZHB AR D5
B 2 6,869,000 7% 7T (72 65,860,000 7% 7T 2
EE) - T T (7258,188,000 % 7T 2 R &
&) %= (721,000,000 7T 2 A EE)
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Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

15. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill (Continued)

(a) Sense Media CGU and Sfrong Network

cGU

The Sense Media CGU is a comprehensive operation
platform for IP rights and is also specialising in media
integrated marketing business, including provision of
infegrated marketing, planning and design service
for brands. The Sense Media CGU is also a pioneer
of the “Intellectual Property + Augmented Reality +
Food & Beverage” business concept in the PRC. Its
concession rights on infellectual properties, namely
“Le Petit Chef”, ""Dinner Time Story” and Marco Polo”,
has generated revenue to the Group.

The Strong Network CGU provides key distribution
channels to the Sense Media CGU and the Group
for their downstream businesses and provision of
steady expansion of commercialised IPs within the
PRC, through engagement with various cooperation
partners which covers different provinces in the PRC.
In addition, the Strong Network CGU also involved
in the distribution agency and trading of sports and
related products.

The recoverable amounts of the Sense Media CGU
and the Strong Network CGU have been determined
on the basis of their value in use using discounted
cash flow method.

The Directors also engaged an independent valuer,
Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited ("Ascent
Partners”) to determine the recoverable amounts of
the Sense Media CGU and Strong Network CGU.

The cash flow forecasts are prepared based on the
most recent financial budgets approved by the senior
management of the Group for the next five years
from 2022 to 2026 (2020: 2021 fo 2025) (the “Sense
and Strong Network Budget Period”) with the residual
period.

Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2021

15. 52 »

ReE+CEN (BEEE) EIR

(&)

(Q) SEMEESELERT
Strong Network ¥ & & 4 & fi
—REERSEABUANBERES
EEATE BN ERBREEH
X% pEADEEREEEH A
BIRREARE = BEEREELAS
A7 N2 R B A0 A 4+ 38 R 3R B AT
+ BRI CEE ML - HANBERE
R & - BN [ Le Pefit Chef] -
[T & E] K& Marco Polo| » B AA
EEARBA -

Strong Network IR & E4A B B =R
BERCEEEMRANEERN T
BRHTEBOHERE TEBERE
RENEE DS RAIERHEZER
AR OR R B P AL AN A R o AN
Strong Network 38 & & 4 B 758 &
DHRBEREEEGHLAMA®

=B BEER$ELEENMKStrong
Network B & 2 £ B A1 2 Al I = & 58
ERAUNBERSREERBEELFERAE
BEET -

EENZEB(EMYATERS
BRAF ([XAFED UEE=8E
138 & &= 4 B (7 ) Strong Network 38
SEABNZAIREISEE -

RERERADERBAEESRE
EEME_ST _—_FE_FT - NFX
x£¢<:z_2¢ ZECFFC

— A F) ([ = B KStrong Network
?EEHEJ) RFEIsSHEBEz A BEE
fEH o



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

15. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill (Continued)

(a) Sense Media CGU and Sfrong Network
CGU (Continued)

The key assumptions for the discounted cash flow
method are those regarding the discount rate,
growth rate, terminal growth rate, gross margin and
turnover during the Sense and Strong Network Budget
Period. The Group estimates discount rates using pre-
tax rates that reflect current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the
CGUs. The terminal growth rafe is based on historical
growth rate of the geographical area in which the
businesses of the CGUs operate. These rates do not
exceed the average long-term growth rates for the
relevant markets. Budgeted revenue based on past
performance and expectations regarding market
development and expenses are based on historical
performance of the CGUs projected with growth rate.

Pursuant to the valuation report of the Sense Media
CGU (the "Sense Media Business Valuation”), the
recoverable amount of the Sense Media CGU as
at 30 June 2021 was assessed to be RMB9,300,000
(2020: RMB17,400,000) (equivalent to approximately
HK$11,169,000 (2020: HK$19,044,000)). As the
recoverable amount of the Sense Media CGU was
higher (2020: lower) than its carrying amount, no
(2020: HK$65,860,000) impairment loss on goodwill
arising from the Sense Media CGU was considered

necessary during the year.

Pursuant to the valuation report of Strong Network
CGU, the recoverable amount to the Strong
Network CGU as at 30 June 2020 was assessed
to be RMB7,650,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$8,373,000). Accordingly, an impairment loss on
goodwill of HK$8,648,000 arising from the Strong
Network CGU was provided in prior year. As the
goodwill of the Strong Network CGU was fully
impaired in prior year, no impairment tests for Strong

Network CGU in current year.

iR WIS ERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2021 HE=ZT=_—FA=THILFE

15. B& »
BeELEEN (BEEE) BENR

(#)
@

= REREEELENR
Strong Network 3 % E £ & i/
(%)
HBERENEEZNFERRE=ZB R
Strong Network 78 & 5 A 8 37 & - 1%
RE BIRERE EMELBATH -
REERB A R B 71T 5 E S B
MEENFERRECEEEMTER
% B B AU L 2 A BT RE IR 3K o AR g
REDURSELBULEEBME
ERNELEREGELE - ZELX
WAEEEATISH P RBERE -
BEWEDDATSEROBERR R
REAREERAXIENRREGESLE
UZBERRET  WAEREET
TEA o

RE=FEERcELEMN ZHE
BE((=ZREHEEXBGHED =8
BERERSELABMN _T - —FRX
A=tHZAKRESEEFE/AR
9,300,000t (ZE_F & : ARK
17,400,0007T) (#8272 %911,169,000
) (ZZZF4 :19,044,00087T) °
HR=BAEREELSEM 2AKRE
EHE (ZT2F ) REKREE
At FARRIIBH =R ERBECE
SEMELNRBELRERBE(ZF
Z T4 : 65,860,000/ 7T) °

18 #% Strong Network 38 & E 4 B &
{HE R % - Strong Network i € & &
BURZTE_TFARA=THZAK
[B] & &8 4% 77 i /& A R #5 7,650,000 7T
(1B& 478,373,000 L) - Atk - &
£ —4F [Z 5t Strong Network I8 € 2
A B8 7 B A A 2R B B 18 8,648,000
78 JC /B H B o B3 7 Strong Network
ReEFBUNEHERLE—FEER
HURE - R A E 30 R Bt Strong
Network 35 & /& 4 B A E TR BRI ©
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Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

15. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill (Continued)

(b) Money-lending business CGU

The Directors prepared the cash flow forecast
to defermine the recoverable amount of the
money-lending business CGU.

The Directors also engaged an independent valuer
to determine the recoverable amount of the money-
lending business CGU.

The cash flow forecasts are prepared based on the
most recent financial budgets approved by the senior
management of the Group for the next five years
from 2022 to 2026 (2020: 2021 to 2025) (the "Budget
Period”) with the residual period.

The key assumptions for the discounted cash flow
method are those regarding the discount rate, growth
rate, terminal growth rate, gross margin and revenue
during the Budget Period. The Group estimates
discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the CGU. The terminal growth rate
is based on historical growth rate of the geographical
aread in which the businesses of the CGU operates.
These rates do not exceed the average long-term
growth rates for the relevant markets. Budgeted
revenue (i.e. the loan interest income for the range
from 8% to 12% on loan portfolio) and expenses
are based on historical performance of the CGU
projected with growth rate.

Pursuant to the valuation report of the money
lending business CGU (the "Money Lending Business
Valuation”), the recoverable amount of the money-
lending business CGU as at 30 June 2021 was
assessed to be Nil (2020: the recoverable amount
is higher than the carrying amount). The decrease
in the recoverable amount of the money-lending
business CGU was mainly due fo the decline in
budget revenue. Accordingly, impairment loss of
goodwill of HK$1,000,000 (2020: Nil) arising from the
money-lending business CGU was provided during
the year.
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Year ended 30 June 2021 HE=ZT=_—FA=THILFE

15. GOODWILL (continued) 15. B2 »)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units REeELBEN (BREHE)RENR
containing goodwill (Continued) (%)

BrEaiESN ARFTE=REEEBEHE -
Strong Network 7% 18 & f& B 145 78 Al #Y
FERRBIFEFHERE  KRipigRE
RHBIATERIR &) T AR -

Apart from the above, the key assumptions used in the
calculatfion of the Sense Media Business Valuation, Strong
Network Business Valuation and Money-Lending Business

Forecast, (i.e. average growth rates, terminal growth rates
and pre-tax discount rafes calculations) are as follows:

Average Terminal
growth rate growth rate
in the beyond the Pre-tax
CGUs budget period budget period discount rate
REHAN HEEBEN BiA
ReEEEN FHERE RIGIERE BB =
IP rights licensing and international IP development,
media integrated marketing, distribution agency
and frading of sports and related products
business:
FHMEREELBERNGSERAE KEGRAEHE 2
HRBERESEYRIBEMARER:
- Sense CGU 5.44% 2.51% 18.46%
—=RReELEN (2020:-12.41%) (2020: 2.71%) (2020: 21.14%)
(ZB=FF: (ZZ=FF: (ZZ=FF:
-12.41%) 2.71%) 21.14%)
- Strong Network CGU N/A N/A N/A
—Strong Network I8 € 4 B i1 i A @A A3
(2020: -21.76%) (2020: 2.71%) (2020: 22.47%)
(Z2=FF: (ZZ=FF: (ZZB=FF:
21.76%) 2.71%) 22.47%)
Money-lending business N/A 2.4% 10.90%
EEES i A (2020: 3%) (2020: 19.82%)
(2020: -6%) —ETF —ETF
(ZZ=%F: 3%) 19.82%)
-6%)
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Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. HittEF EE

Concession
rights on
On-line sales intellectual
platforms properties Total
HBEEZ
WEHETA BRTRERE =X
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
Af 1 July 2019 —NEtHA—H

Cost AR 24,875 5,591 30,466

Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (20,975) (3,655) (24,630)

Net carrying amount BREFE 3,900 1,936 5,836
At 1 July 2019, net of RZZE—NFELA—H "

accumulated impairment BB R2EHRE 3,900 1,936 5,836
Amortisation provided FREIERE

during the year - (704) (704)
Impairment during the year RARFERAE (M5 6)

(note 6) - (1,006) (1,006)
Exchange realignment P 5 F B - (226) (226)
At 30 June 2020, net of RZEZTFAA=+AH"

accumulated impairment Bk 2ERIE 3,900 - 3,900
At 30 June 2020 RN_Z_TFRA=1H

Cost AR 24,875 4,235 29,110

Accumulated impairment KETRE &

and amortisation (20,975) (4,235) (25,210)

Net carrying amount BREFE 3,900 - 3,900
At 1 July 2020 R-ZE_ZTF+H—H

Cost %N 24,875 4,235 29,110

Accumulated impairment ZEHREIE (20,975) (4,235) (25.210)

Net carrying amount BREEE 3,900 - 3,900
At 1 July 2020, net of R-ZTE_TF+A—H -

accumulated impairment Bk RETREAE 3,900 - 3,900
Amortisation provided AR

during the year - - -
Impairment during the year RAFERE (M5 6)

(note 6)

Exchange realignment M 5 3 %
At 30 June 2021, net of RZEZ—FA=+8"

accumulated impairment Bk REHRE 3,900 - 3,900
At 30 June 2021 R-ZEZ—FXHA=+H

Cost AR 24,550 4,623 29,173

Accumulated impairment KETRE &

and amortisation (20.650) (4.623) (25.273)

Net carrying amount BREFE 3,900 - 3,900

Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited
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Year ended 30 June 2021 HE=ZT=_—FA=THILFE

16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 16. HittEFEE =)

The cost of other intangible assets mainly represents (i)
three online sales platforms for tfrading of merchandises
through internet acquired by the Group during the years
ended 30 June 2016 and 2012 respectively; and (ii) several
concession rights on infellectual properties leased during
the year ended 30 June 2018.

On-line sales platforms

The Directors are of the opinion that the online sales
platforms have indefinite useful life as there is no expiring
date for each of the on-line sales platforms.

Platform 1

The Group made a full impairment of HK$19,260,000 in prior
years on the carrying amount of one of its on-line sales
platforms relevant to a subsidiary to facilitate the trading
of merchandises between sellers and buyers through the
internet platform, which had been closed down in prior
year.

Platform 2

The Group closed down its another on-line sales platforms
relevant to a subsidiary fo facilitate the trading of luxury
goods through internet platform in prior years due to (i) the
unsatisfactory performance of the luxury goods platform;
and (ii) keen competition in the e-commerce business. As
a result of the closure of the luxury goods platform, a full
impairment of HK$1,715,000 on the carrying amount of the
luxury goods platform had been provided in prior years.

Hih B\ BEEXNAREEEOAEEDRIRE
BT RER_FT—_—FXA=ZTHLF
ERENRBEERR SN AR LHEEFE
RURBE-B—NEAA=+BILFE
FAERE THMERE 2T EEE-

WEHETSE
EZRR ANSEPLHEE AL ERER
BE - SEAEERAEAFES -

FaI
AEERBEFEERARMBARMEF
—ERAREHERELYE (ERLFEME B
BEEIREET —EARBXZFaZKRAE
fEH 28145 19,260,000 7 7T R B & -

F52
AEERBEFERENEA TS —EHE
EHEGREROBLTANELHETS -
REE () REGATANLERMEE : &
(i) BT ARG LB BB R - ARREER
THEME RBEFEERRELATA
2 REMELHE 1,715, 000587 2 2 BORERE

o
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Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

On-line sales platforms (Continued)
Platform 3

The Directors engaged Ascent Partners to determine the
recoverable amount of this on-line sales platform relevant
fo business of e-commerce segment.

The fair value measurement is using Level 3 inputs which
are not using significant unobservable inputs and there
is no change in the fair value hierarchy as compared to
previous years.

The key assumptions for the relief-from-royalty method are
those regarding the discount rate, growth rate, royalty rate
and budgeted turnover during the budget period. The
Group estimates discount rate using pre-tax rate that reflect
current market assessments of the fime value of money and
the risks specific to the e-commerce segment. The growth
rate used in the budget is referenced to the growth rate
of the geographical area in which the businesses of the
e-commerce segment operate. The royalty rafe is based on
market information specific to the e-commerce segment.
Budgeted gross margin and turnover are based on past
practices and expectations on market development.

The discount rate applied to the cash flow projection
is 15.89% (2020: 15.65%), the royalty rate applied to the
royalty savings from owing the platform was 5.38% (2020:
5.38%) based on turnover, and cash flow beyond the five
years period is extrapolated using a zero growth rate (2020:
zero growth rate).

Pursuant to the valuation report (the "IA Valuation”), the
recoverable amount of this on-line sales platform as at
30 June 2021 was nearly same as (2020: higher than) its
carrying amount of HK$3,900,000. Accordingly, no provision
for impairment loss on this on-line sales platform was
considered necessary.
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FE3
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FRABDBEBE2MAEMERIEZIERE -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Concession rights on intellectual properties

As at 30 June 2021, the concession rights (the “IP
Concession Rights”) on intellectual properties (*IPs”)
represented (i) Le Petit Chef Series and Marco Polo; (ii)
Cocktail Factory; and (iii) Picxel with net carrying amount of
Nil (2020: Nil), Nil (2020: Nil) and Nil (2020: Nil), respectively.

The Directors were of the opinion that the IP Concession
Rights are considered to have a useful life, which are
referenced to their corresponding concession period in
according with the Copyright Agreements or with reference
to similar IPs. The IP Concession Rights are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any.

Le Petit Chef Series and Dinner Time Story:
Marco Polo

The IP Concession Rights, namely Le Petit Chef Series (‘Le
Petit Chef”) and Dinner Time Story: Marco Polo (*“Marco
Polo”) were granted by the original IPs’ owner to £ & &
EH = XLEHE AR AR, a subsidiary of the Group, for a
period ranging from 3 to 5 years. Pursuant to copyright
agreements dated 28 April 2017 and 23 June 2017
(collectively, the "Copyright Agreements”), respectively, the
Group were granted concession rights to use Le Petit Chef
and Marco Polo in the Greater China Region, including but
not limited to the drawings, written works, story boards and
layouts, videos characters, videos games, video games
printed books, on-line publications and videos.

The Directors considered that Le Petit Chef and Marco Polo
were not able to generate income to the Sense Media CGU
and the Strong Network CGU during the year. Accordingly,
an impairment loss on Le Petit Chef and Marco Polo of
HK$355,000 and HK$570,000 were provided for the Sense
Media CGU and the Strong Network CGU, respectively
during the year ended 30 June 2020 and no reversal during
the year ended 30 June 2021.

iR WIS ERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2021 HE=ZT=_—FA=THILFE

16. Hit P EE »)

AHERBTREER

RZBZ—FRXA=+H MHAE#E(H
BERD ZHFLERE (NRERFTL
%1 |) 45 (i)Le Petit Chef Series &2 Marco
Polo : (ii)Cocktail Factory : K (iii)Picxel
E%Ei%fﬁ”\ﬂllﬁgi’éﬁ(zgigi g
i) - ’ém( Z_ZFF :FTEDEE
/%71:( fi g/%TE) ©

RIBIRE 2 E KRR T E HfEE
PMBERE EFRL FHERTIRE
BRRRAEEAFEY - MBERTITEER
RS R R AT 5 BORE (08 ) 1) B -

Le Petit Chef Series J¢ i &2 % -
Marco Polo

NG EE R R R4S & #E (B Le Petit Chef Series
(lLe Petit ChefJ) K Z % : Marco Polo
([Marco Polol)) B IR ABE#EER AKT
AEEBZWBAR LEEEHRLEES
RAR R AIESFE -RERHEIAAE
—E—+tFMA=Z+NBR=ZZT—+tF~A
Z+t=HzhriEmE RE I RERZE]) - A
FEEERFTCERE AR E [ A
Le Petit Chef & Marco Polo * BB RER
BE XNFER WARGRD REFTH -
RABHEE, - RIBRERLEN R 48 - R L RY)
RARHE

EER E%Le Petit Chef & Marco Polo A

MR g BE I3 € &= & 8 (7 & Strong
Nefworkﬁﬁ%iﬁ UEERA AL &
E-T_TFRA=FTHILFE  HBE=
BEEER S E & F47 K Strong Network 35 &
E 4 B {5t i2 Le Petit Chef & Marco Polo
Z 1B & 18 8 #% 355,000 7% st & 570,00075
TUAEREBEE—Z-_—F"A=1TRHLLEE
Rik::JEI
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16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Concession rights on intellectual properties
(Conftinued)

Cocktail Factory and Picxel

In previous year, the Group was further granted rights to
use another 2 IPs namely Cocktail Factory and Picxel from
the original IPs” owner at a consideration of HK$55,000 and
HK$2,500,000, respectively. Pursuant to license agreements
dated 1 May 2018 and 10 April 2018, the Group was
granted concession rights to use Cocktail Factory and
Picxel in the People’s Republic of China.

The Directors considered that Cocktail Factory and Picxel
were not able to generate income to the Group upon the
expiry of the existing contract with its customers. According,
an impairment loss on Cocktail Factory and Picxel of
HK$26,000 and HK$55,000 respectively was provided during
the year ended 30 June 2020 and no reversal for the year
ended 30 June 2021.
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Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

16. HittE\MEE =)

AREREIBEERE®

Cocktail Factory & Picxel

FFE AEBE—SPERANAERESR
N JE 5 (R R B 5N M T8 &0 3% 2 42 Cocktail
Factory K& Picxel - X f& % 5l /55,000 7% 7T
12,500,000 - RIEBRE-_FT—N\F
FA—BR-ZE—N\FMA+BZRERZ
NEBERFTEEE  AIRPEARIRN
B (i Ff Cocktail Factory & Picxel

T £ A Cocktail Factory F Picxel 7 2
HEPZRBENEMEREATNEEES
WA -Hlt RBHE-_Z-_TFA=+H
1E 4 £ 7 Bl 5 £2 Cocktail Factory & Picxel
Z R 1B B 18 1 % 26,000 7% 7T & 55,0007 7T
NERBEZZ=_—FA=1tHLFEL
R o
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Year ended 30 June 2021 HE=ZT=_—FA=THILFE

iR WIS ERR ML

17. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE 17. REtE AR 2=
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-FTF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE T TET
Share of net assets EREEFE 850 783
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TRINAAEEFENTEBNEE QA F 28
information of the Group’s associate that are not EEFIEL :
individually material:
2021 2020
—EB=-—F —TFF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Share of the associate’s profit/(loss) — FELEE A RIAFEEH, (&E)
for the year 67 (10)
Aggregate carrying amount of the REBEREH S NR 2 AKRAEME
Group's investments in the associate 850 783

Summarised financial information of the Group’s associate REEBERRNMBERBIERIMNT -

is set out below.

2021 2020
=B —F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHET
As at 30 June RAA=+H
Current assets TENE E 4,655 4,162
Current liabilities nEBBE (2.530) (2,204)
For the year ended 30 June BEXNA=1+THILLEE
Revenue A 191 321
Profit/ (loss) for the year REEHH(EE) 167 (25)
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Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

18. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

18. BEMK T B AR

2021 2020

—E-—F —T-FTF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FER FHET

Loan receivables JE U B SRR 3K 123,862 131,829

Interest receivables JE U ) B BR R 7,731 2,784
Impairment WA (38,607) (33.016)

Net carrying amounts BREFE 92,986 101,597

Less: Current portion of loan and B ERE R EFBERRZ

interest receivables mEE D (92,986) (101,597)

Non-current portion of loan and
inferest receivables FEMENER

Loan and inferest receivables represented outfstanding
principal and interest arising from the money-lending
business of the Group. All of the loan receivables were
entered with contractual maturity within 6 months to 24
months. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
loan and interest receivables in order to minimise credit risk
by reviewing the borrowers’ financial positions.

The loan receivables are interest-bearing at rates mutually
agreed between the contracting parties, ranging from
8% to 12% (2020: 8% to 12%) per annum. As at 30 June
2020 and 2021, all loan receivables of the Group were
unsecured.
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Year ended 30 June 2021 HE=ZT=_—FA=THILFE

18. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 18. EINE R R FI 2R &)
(Continued)
The loan and interest receivables at the end of the RBEMRR RESRIBEATHRAGE
reporting period are analysed by the remaining period to ZEWERRMERRZATAT

contractual maturity date as follows:

2021 2020
—EZ—fF —ERTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Loan and interest receivables with JEWERERFERER A
maturity date:
Past due [mFcp:t 1,091 175
Within 3 months =@ARA 21,844 2,645
3 months to 1 year —@RAE—%F 70,051 98,777
92,986 101,597
Less: Current portion of loan and B ERERRFEERRZ
interest receivables mEER S (92.986) (101,597)
Non-current portion of loan and EWERRFERRZ
interest receivables ERBE S - -
The movement for loss allowance of loan and interest FEWERRIEER 2 EERESISHOT -
receivables is as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F T T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
At beginning of year REF]] 33,016 23,595
Impairment loss recognised (note 6) R RMEEE (i 6) 5,591 9,421
At end of year RER 38,607 33,016
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Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

18.

19.

LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES
(Confinued)
Impairment under HKFRS 9

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible within
the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since inifial recognition, a loss allowance is
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life
of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information.

INVENTORIES

At 30 June 2021, the Group’s inventories with carrying
amount was Nil (2020: HK$393,000) represented
merchandises for sales which were stated at the lower of
cost or net realisable value.
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20. TRADE RECEIVABLES

iR WIS ERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2021 HE=ZT=_—FA=THILFE

20. B E 5 IR

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-TF

HK$'000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Trade receivables FEWE 5 BR R 1,440 2,534
Impairment (note 6) A (M5 6) (1.440) (2,500)
- 34

The Group's terms on credit sales primarily range from 30 fo
180 days (2020: 30 to 180 days).

Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact
that the Group’s tfrade receivables relate to diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit
risk. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing.

Included in the balance of tfrade receivables was
approximately Nil (2020: approximately HK$212,000) due
from certain companies, of which, a subsidiary’s director is
also a director of these companies. The amount due from
these companies have been fully impaired in previous
year.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables (net of
provision) as at the end of the reporting period, based on
the invoice date net of loss allowance, is as follows:

AEEZREER - HBI0OAEIBORTE
(ZB=T4% :30KZ180K)

SREREESRRA ARG  EN LR
AR AEEZBEESERTDESHEFPA
MY ESAEERRETRZEN - B
BHERRRPEE

A B SRR R BIE RS T A RR
MAEZ(ZZ T 492120008 7T) ' &
H-ENEARZEE T RRERRIZES
LEE  BRZERRRIAEBERE °

REIR  REZHH (HMREBEERE) &
H 2 EWE SRR (R EE) 2 fRilk 54T 0
T

2021 2020

—EZ—F I

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT FHT

0 - 30 days 0-30%k - 2
31 - 60 days 31 -60K - -
61 - 90 days 61 -90X - -
91 - 180 days 91 - 180k - 32
Over 180 days HBE 180K - -
- 34
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Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movement in the loss allowance for the impairment
of trade receivables during the reporting period are as
follows:

No’res to Consolidated Financial Statements

20. BWE SR =)

HEMREEWE SRFONAEBRBEEZ S
T~

2021 2020

—E-—F —T-FF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTERT THET

At beginning of year REH) 2,500 2,579
Impairment loss (reversed)/ (B#E) BHRRERERE

recognised (notfe 6) (K& 6) (1.060) 5,502

Amount written off as uncollectible MR TR E 2 & 58 - (5,581)

At end of year RER 1,440 2,500

Impairment under HKFRS 9

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses. The provision raftes are based on days past due
for groupings of various customer segments with similar
loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type,
customer type and rating). The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money
and reasonable and supportable information that is
available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
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20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk
exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using a

provision matrix:

As at 30 June 2021

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

iR WIS ERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2021 HE=ZT=_—FA=THILFE

20. BRE SR =
T SRR PR S 19187 2 SR L A
ESERERARZ AR

R-ZFE--FXA=1H

Neither past Past due Past due Past due
due nor 1to3 3to6 Over
impaired months months 6 months Total
FBHR bl gt bk
RAE 1Z23{8A 3Z6fHA HBiB6EA @t
Expected creditlossrate  FEHIEEEEE 0.37% 1.49% 3.34% 100%
Gross carrying amount REBEE(TET)
(HK$'000) - - - 1,440 1,440
Expected credit losses HHEERE(TERD)
(HK$'000) - - - (1.440) (1.440)
As at 30 June 2020 RZE_ZTFA=+H
Neither past Past due Past due
due nor 1103 3to6 Over
impaired months months 6 months Total
AEHR faki] e
AAE 12318 A 3Z6{EA BiB61EA st
Expected creditlossrate  FAHIEEHREZ 0.44% 1.78% 3.99% 100%
Gross carrying amount REAE(TAT)
(HK$°000) - 2 33 2,499 2,534
Expected credit losses BHEEEE(TEL
(HK$°000) - - m (2,499) (2,500)
- 2 32 - 34
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ire SRR IR

Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

21. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES

AND OTHER ASSETS

21. AR

X1 - HAtEUWR IR
Hitt &=

2021 2020

—E-—fF —ERTF

HK$'000 HK$’000

FET FHT

Prepayments TEfT 3K IE 14,280 2,693

Trade deposits B HiRe 21,428 21,517

Consideration receivables (note (a))  FEUA(E (KT (o)) - 850

Deposits and other receivables Ze kA M KIE

(note (b)) (W 3E () 19,387 27,399

Tax recoverable Qe 99 347
Impairment WA (3.885) (2,482)

51,309 50,324

Notes: BT

(a) As detailed in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements, amount represented outstanding balance of
consideration receivables for the disposal of subsidiaries in

prior year.

(b) Included in the balance of deposits and other receivables
was an outstanding management fee receivable of
approximately Nil (2020: HK$1,196,000) due from a company,
of which, a subsidiary’s director is also a director of this

company.

The financial assets included in the above balances relate
to receivables for which there was no recent history of
default and past due. As at 30 June 2021 and 2020, the
loss allowance was assessed to be minimal.

The movement in the loss allowance for the impairment of
deposits and other receivables during the reporting period

are as follows:

(O) BRI MEM ML - ZR
HEEEHENBA TZV%K1Zh$
(BB

B B H 8 R IR A R PJ%TEHSZ F‘i
TZr‘ﬁi BRIREBRBENRE(ZF=
T 1,196,000 L) * A — Fﬁﬂﬁ%
ZERNRZARIZIES -

®) ?

EiES RIS SR E E Ty R ST EAER
LB ERFIERR R_T_—%F
NZE-_ZTFEXA=+TH  BERBRTE
R -

s B e N H e UK TR R (B S 1R
RSN -

2021 2020

—E-—F —T-FF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT THET

At 1 July mtA—H 2,482 -
Impairment loss recognised B R A EEE 1,513 2,482
Exchange realignment M 5 S (110) -
At 30 June =+A 3,885 2,482
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Year ended 30 June 2021 HE=ZT=_—FA=THILFE

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 22. AT EFABSZEME
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS =3
2021 2020
=F=- —EEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHx FHET
Listed equity investments, ERAKRE - ZRHRENTE
at market value in the PRC B!

The fair values of the equity investments were determined
based on the quoted market prices. The above equity
investments as at 30 June 2021 and 2020 were classified
as held for trading and were, upon initial recognition,
designated by the Group as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

- 14,141

BARE 2 RAFEDRBEERTSERERE -
RZBEZ—FR-ZZF-_TF A=+
MEARERDBRIFIEEE  EHER
B WABRAREEERRZAFER AER
ZEMEE -

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23. RERIRNELEEIEH
2021 2020
—EZ—F —E T
HK$’'000 HKS$'000
FHET FHET
Cash and bank balances Re RIBITEHEH 3,451 28,157

At the end of the reporting period, cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi
("RMB") amounted to approximately HK$912,000 (2020:
approximately HK$1,047,000) in the PRC. RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies. However, under the PRC’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Seftlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

RBEHR - ARERTEUARE (AR
) RHE 2 RS RIRTTAL 2 912,00078
T (ZZEZFF: 41,047,000/ 7T) - AR
AR AR SEMINE - AW - RIE
FR B S B R TR AR K A RE - T A I B IR
BE  AREREBBEREETINERS
ZHRITHARE A BB EAMINE o

2021 £ | FEEBEZERARAAF

155



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

24. TRADE PAYABLES 24. B E SR
An ageing analysis of frade payables as at the end of ERESERERNBEHRENRBBAGTZ
the reporting period, based on payment due date, is as BRERDITAAT ¢
follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-FTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Current BIHA 828 886
31 - 60 days 31 -60K 514 254
61 - 90 days 61 -90K 1,602 1,258
91 - 180 days 91 -180k 2,412 6,662
Over 180 days HBiE 180K 26,654 18,814
32,010 27,874

25. OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED  25. H{ttfE{3 K18 - EWiz& R E

AND ACCRUALS sTEH
2021 2020
—E-—F T TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Other payables E e 3B 5,818 2,167
Deposits received BEWIES 29 308
Accruals FEETE A 17,649 13,525
23,496 16,000
Other payables and accruals are non-interest-bearing and HMENRBREAEARES  AER—
normally settled within one year. FRZAT
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Year ended 30 June 2021 HE=ZT=_—FA=THILFE

26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 26. €8N &E
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FHET
Received in advance from customers T84t B & F U ER
(note (a)): (B &E (a))
E-commerce and provision of on-ine & F B RIEMHE FEEF S
sales platform 818 1,019
Media integrated marketing business  f£82 4574 & ¥ 15 17,562 2,830
Loyalty programs (note (b)) B E (M (b)) 9.303 11,737
27,683 15,586
Notes: Bt 5
(@) Normally, a full payment in advance is required from (@ —®ms -OEFEABEF(EFEFD

27.

®)

(i) e-commerce customers (the "e-Customers”) upon placing
orders and (ii) customers relate to the media integrated
marketing business upon confirming orders. As at 30 June
2021, the contract liabilities of (i) approximately HK$818,000
(2020: HK$1,019,000) primarily relate to the amount received
in advance from its e-Customers for merchandises delivered
by the Group; and (ii) approximately HK$17,562,000 (2020:
Hk$2,830,000) primarily relate to the amount received in
advance from its customers relate fo the media integrated
marketing business for the services provided by the Group.
Contract liabilities are expected to be settled within 1 year.

Amount represented value attributable fo the reward points
of the loyalty programs arising from its e-commerce business
as part of initial sales tfransaction which is deferred to
unearned revenue until such fime as the customers redeem
their reward poinfs.

OTHER BORROWING

The other borrowing was loan from an independent third

party
annu

which was unsecured, with fixed interest rate 7% per
m and repayable on 30 August 2021.

27.

BETERR(NVBREBGREEHERZ
REBAGERRAERZHALEMNK - R=F
——FXA=1+A8 " 448 %E ()% 818,000
B (ZE=ZF : 1,019,000 0) £ EH
RAEBMEXZERBELEEE TR WE
MRIERE Ko (i) #717,562,0007 7t (=
T T4 22,830,000/ 7T) =B EBMALE
RUEZREELSEEBESLHEERKE
ENEFPBBMRIESME - AHNBEEETR
1FEREH -

(b) ZREBEREAHERG WO ZEETF
PITSRETSE £ 2 BHME R B REVE D 2 (BE -
TEEEREGRA EEFP L EREIR
DLk

H &R
HipERARE—LBIE=FOER - &
R EEFHEIERR B —FN\fA
=tameE-
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Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

28. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

In prior year, the Group issued 2 convertible bonds in
August 2017 (the "August 2017 CB") and December 2017
(the "December 2017 CB"), respectively, with details as
follows:

The August 2017 CB

On 7 August 2017, the Company issued a zero coupon
redeemable convertible bond with nominal value
of HK$70,000,000 due in August 2020, as part of the
consideration for the Sense Acquisition. The August 2017
CB is conditionally convertible into the ordinary shares of
the Company at an initial conversion price of HK$0.138 per
conversion share (subject fo adjustments in accordance
with the terms of the August 2017 CB).

Based on the conversion price of HK$0.138 per conversion
share (subject to adjustments), a maximum number of
507,246,376 conversion shares shall be allotted and issued.

During the year ended 30 June 2019, part of the August
2017 CB with nominal value of HK$40,000,000 had been
converted into 289,855,072 new ordinary shares of the
Company on 14 September 2018.

Pursuant fo the convertible bond instrument, the Company
has been granted a redemption right (the “Redemption
Right”) to redeem the August 2017 CB. The Directors were
of the opinion that the fair value of the Redemption Right
was not material to the consolidated financial statements
as at the date of inception and at the end of the reporting
period and no recognition of the fair value of the
Redemption Right was made in the consolidated financial
statements.

The present value of the liability component of the August
2017 CB was calculated using a market interest rate for an
equivalent non-convertible bond. The liability component
of the August 2017 CB is subsequently stated at amortised
cost until extinguished on conversion or maturity of the
bonds. The residual amount represented the conversion
option and was included in shareholders’ equity.

Imputed inferest expense on the August 2017 CB is
calculated using the effective interest method by applying

the effective interest rate of 9.90% per annum.

During the year, all the August 2017 CB was settled.
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28.

R ES

LEE AREHHR-B—LENA (=
T-LEN\ATHBRESD R-B—+F
+ZA (=Bt F+ = ATRRES) %
TORARRES - EIT

—E-tENATERRES

W-B—+ENA+H - $”ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ%
70,000,000 WA —ZE=—_ZF N\ AEIHKN
TEEABEEARRES  EASBKRES
BHOBHRE —T—+F N\ AATRRES
A R R ) S IR B 5 IR AR AR 15 0.138
BT (TRE-Z—tF/\ AT RRES K
RT AR iR AR A A LB o

1R BT RIRAAR 17 0.138 B 7T (A FHE )
T H - &% 507,246,376 R # IR BR 19 #§ T LA
Ao 3% R AT ©

RBE-ZT-NFRA=THIFE HE
7340,000,0008 T2 &bt —FE—+EFN\AH
BREFERZE-N\FNA+HBEEEH
A2 7] 289,855,072 AR E AR

RIBAMRBRESXE AR RER T EDE
(TE@##]) > TEE - —tF )\ AR
B - BEEZRA NEHREMARABRE
R BOEZ A TEEGESMBRERNS
WAER - RN AR A B TSR T R A
B2 AFE -

—E-tEFNARRES CBEBHERE
NERERATBRESF 2 THAETE -
Tt FNANRRESF B EBHER
R SH A AN D) AR B 2= A E R o B B By
HRALE - Fer BB R ERE - 55 AR
HiE o

SR \ATRBRES I EERERE
TYRBERRIE L HERERIE9.00%HE -

RER ABE-E
AT e

—tFN\AABRKRESE



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

28. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

The December 2017 CB

On 1 December 2017, the Company further issued a
convertible bond with nominal value of HK$100,000,000
carrying a coupon rate of 2.5% due in November 2020. The
December 2017 CB is convertible info the ordinary shares of
the Company at an initial conversion price of HK$0.181 per
conversion share (subject fo adjustments in accordance
with the tferms of the December 2017 CB).

Based on the conversion price of HK$0.181 per conversion
share (subject to adjustments), a maximum number of
552,486,187 conversion shares shall be allotted and issued.

The present value of the liability component of the
December 2017 CB was calculated using a market interest
rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond. The liability
component of the December 2017 CB is subsequently
stated at amortised cost unfil extinguished on conversion
or maturity of the bonds. The residual amount represented
the conversion option and was included in shareholders’
equity.

Imputed interest expense on the December 2017 CB is
calculated using the effective interest method by applying

the effective interest rate of 11.90% per annum.

During the year, all the December 2017 CB was settled.

iR WIS ERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2021 HE=ZT=_—FA=THILFE

28.

AR ESR =

—E—tE+-AUERES
RZF—tF+=—A—H ARAE—FH
77 T {& /% 100,000,000 & 7T ¥ 7] 4 i & % -
EBRA25% N_E-_TF+—AFIH-
ZE—tF T ABREFTIRVI SRR
EBERIRRARH 0181 BT (IR —E—+F
T AAMREFNGRTAFAR) Bk A
AREEBE -

R B FRIRAAR 17 0.181 BT (A FHEE)
5T H » 5% 552,486,187 R # IR FR 19 #§ T LA
Ao 3% R AT ©

—EtEF+ - ARNBRKRESZBERHNR
BERER AR ES 2 TI5MEGFTH
—EtEF+_ANBRRESZBESHE
BRILEHRAT RE ENE S EE RN E
BHR R LE - RS R RBEIRE - T15A
PR -

—EtEF+ - ARBRRES 2 EEN SR
TR EBRMNEE - mERFENE1.90%

| s
=T 'H o
u+7—r

RERN BT —tF+-_AnRES
B -
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Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

28. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

28. i IR{EEH »

The liability components of the August 2017 CB and the T tFNATEREFR =T —tF
December 2017 CB were as follows: TZARBEESZBERIWT
August 2017 CB December 2017 CB Total
ZE-LENR e
TARES TRRES @i

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

S¥--F CTC%F | SRS-F | CTCTF | RS- CTC%E

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T T Tiax TAL TiEn Tt

Liobility component at T July RtA-BZ8ESR 29,726 27,049 97,527 89,314 127,253 116,363
Imputed inferest expense (nofe 7) HEFISFx (M57) 274 2677 4,172 10713 5,046 13,390
Interest poid Efffle - - @29 50 @29 (250
Repayment & (30,000) - (100,000) - (130,000) -
Liability component ot 30 June H\ " H TANEESH - 29,726 - 97,527 - 127,253
Less: Classified as current portion GERRITS - (29.726) - (97.527) - (127,253)
Clossified as non-current porfion SEAERHEH - - - - - -

29. BOND PAYABLES 29. E{ESH

2021 2020

—E-—F —TFF

HK$'000 HK$’000

FET FET

At 1 July EMCH A 4,000 -
Proceeds from issuance of bonds &H P15 I8 54,043 4,000
Imputed interests ?’E % 8 2,162 -
At 30 June mANA=+H 60,205 4,000
Less: Classified as current portion B BERARBE D (58.860) (4,000)
Classified as hon-current portion SBEAERBID 1,345 -

During the year ended 30 June 2021, the Group issued
bonds with principal amount in a total of HK$54,400,000
carried interest at 3%-12% per annum (2020: HK$4,000,000
carried interest at 0% per annum). Total transaction cost
attributable to the issuance of the bond amounted to
HK$357,000 (2020: HKSNil). The bonds are unsecured with
maturity date falling from 6 months to 3 years (2020: 1 year)

of the issue date.

The Directors have assessed that the fair value of the Bond
approximate fo its carrying amount largely due to the short

term maturity.
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—FRA=THLEFE KA&H

TR #8578 /3 54,400,0008 THEF - 1%
F R 3%12% 52 (ZF =F4 : 4,000,000

BT REMEO%ETR) °

fﬂf%)ﬂﬁﬁ@
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BAREAAZE=F(=F

=

BExEE BErza
TEMRERHADE -

A 7%?5?17 EI
—TE:—F) -

FEEREERS



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

30. DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax liabilities

At 30 June 2021, there were no significant unrecognised
deferred tax liabilities (2020: Nil) for taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings of certain of the
Group’s subsidiaries.

Deferred tax assets
The movements in deferred tax assets during the year are
as follows:

iR WIS ERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2021 HE=ZT=_—FA=THILFE

30. EFEHH

EEBEER
R-B-—FXA=Z+A FAEEYERE
F 08 23 5] 2 5K B {1 2 ) 1t 2 B OB T 7 B
BMzEARBRECHARE(CF-F
Fi ) -

EEBBEE
FRELEREEEZEHMT :

Tax losses

RIEEE

HK$'000

FHT

At 1 July 2019 RZZE—-NFEA—H 2,991
Deferred tax credited to consolidated FARGAEBRERITAZELERE

statement of profit or loss during the year (P&

(note 10) 730
At 1 July 2020 RZE-_FTF+A—H 3,721
Deferred tax charged to the consolidated FARNGFAEERRNR ZIRLEHIE

statement of profit or loss during the year 3.721)
At 30 June 2021 n=

The principal components of the Group’s deferred tax
assets not recognised calculated at deferred tax rates in
Hong Kong, Japan and the PRC at 16.5% (2020: 16.5%),
15% (2020: 15%), and 25% (2020: 25%), respectively,
on cumulative temporary differences at the end of the
reporting period, are as follows:

E-—FXA=1+H -

BERREHRZ RETHEREEZR  BEES -
HARRFBEZBELERED R A165%(ZF=
TE:165%)  15% (ZE=FF : 15%) &
25%<f777¢ 25%) ' T EAEEAKRE
BERIBEE L EEZHHAT :

2021 2020

B —F TECTF

HK$'000 HK$’000

FEx FHET

Tax losses RIEEE 57,277 51,473
Accelerated depreciation IRITE R FHiFE

allowances 88 35

57,365 51,508
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Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

30. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had tax losses
arising in Hong Kong of approximately HK$339,425,000
(2020: approximately HK$303,788,000), which are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. The Group also has
tax losses arising in the PRC of approximately HK$4,270,000
(2020: approximately HK$4,634,000) that will expire in one
to five years for offsetting against future taxable profits and
the Group had tax losses arising in Japan of approximately
HK$1,365,000 (2020: approximately HK$1,266,000), which
can be carried forward for 10 years. Deferred tax assets
have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they
have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for
some time and it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses can be
ufilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group,
the applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is therefore
liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect
of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 30 June 2021, no deferred tax has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the
unremiftted earnings that are subject fo withholding taxes
of the subsidiaries in the PRC (the "PRC subsidiaries”). In
the opinion of the Directors, it is not probable that the PRC
Subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable
future. The aggregate amount of unremitted earnings from
the PRC Subsidiaries was amounting to approximately
HK$20,378,000 (2020: HK$18,646,000).
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30. EFEHLH (=)

RBREHR NEEREBELETES
E4339,425,0008 T (ZZE = F : 4§y
303,788,000/8 7T) © 7% % 518 AT PR 29 A
RIRSHER S BB 2 A Bl AR RERFEF o &
& B Jh A AP B E A Fi A E5 18 49 4,270,000 7
T(ZE =T F : 494,634,000 7T) #57H —
ERFAAREERRERT G RAS
IEAElZISFE%RIEEH?E%’U1.365,000?@7%(:
T-FTF 491,266,000 T) © Mz ZEE
AAE+F  WERZSEBRRELHIE
BE FAELBRCHEEAEZHBARIESR
B—BRRME URATKAIESELERTE
S M DA S P B R 2 B IE A AR o

RIBHBEMEMRFEE - 5O B A LAY
SR ECEARMINTREEZTIRHK
SHM10%TANT - ZBRKBE_FTTNF—
A—BER IFEFHE/\_YYJCEF'F A
=T —HREANRN - FHEAMESNT
REEMBRIEEREVBIME IR E
EURBRERERMRE - REBEMNERH X
5% 10% - Et - REBARZFNFH
RRIZHRBARE TN NFE—H—H
FEEEM R D IKAI R SBATRINE

RZZBEZ—FRA=+HB #HERNTELN
MEAR ([HEMELRDHRELRMN (A
BRI E) TR 5 # TR H 1 A SRR T
H-EBEZERR PEMBRRANAREERD
RNA gD IRE @AM - KA EKER R
ANE H & # 5B %) /320,378,000 T (=&
ZZ4 118,646,000 7T) ©
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Year ended 30 June 2021 HE=ZT=_—FA=THILFE

31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. g

2021 2020

—E--F —%-%
Number Nominal Number Nominal
of shares value of shares value
RH#E HfE Tk #A HiE
Notes HK$'000 HK$ 000
k3 TER TFiEn
(audited) (audited) (audited) (oudiTed)

(BE®) (BE#) (BE7) (BE%)
Authorised: BE
At beginning of year, ordinary — IAEH) - BREE001E T2

shares of HK$0.01 each LER 10,000,000,000 100,000  10,000,000,000 100,000
Share consolidation (note (b))~ & (M (b)) (9,500,000,000) - - -
Atend of year, ordinary shares A& » iﬂﬁﬁ B02%T

of HK$0.2 each (2020: HKS0.01  (ZZ=Z% : §REE

each) 00187) 2 L@k 500,000,000 100,000  10,000,000,000 100,000

Issued and fully paid: BRITRMR:
At beginning of year, ordinary — FAEH) - BREE001E T

shares of HK$0.01 each LER 3,679,278,496 36,793 3,066,070,496 30,661
Exercise of share opfions TEBERE (K ()

(note (ay)) 206,592,000 2,066 - -
Share consolidation (nofe (b)) BifA & # (& (o)) (3,691,576,972) - - -
Placing of shares (c) RERS (c) 75,000,000 15,000 613,208,000 6,132
Atend of year, ordinary shares  RER + BEEE02ETL(Z

of HK$0.2 each %4 BREE0O

(2020: HK$0.01 each) BT 2 EBR 269,293,524 53,859 3,679,278,496 36,793

(@ On 16 November 2020, the options holders (@ R-ZE-_ZTHF+—-F+XE BRE
subscribed for an aggregate of 206,592,000 shares F ﬁ}\ LA TEESROO0N B ITRE
of the Company at an exercise price of HK$0.011 AN QA E #£206,592,000 8% B 15+ BT
per share with gross proceeds of HK$2,272,512 of B IE R 52,272,512% 0 0 H A
which HK$2,065,920 was credited to share capital 2,065,920 7T 5T A B AR K& 206,592 7%
and HK$206,592 was credited to the share premium TLET ABR 1 i (B AR o
account.

(b) At the special general meeting of the Company (o) EARAR-_ZE_ZF+—-H_-+H

held on 20 November 2020, the relevant resolution
was passed in respect of the share consolidation of
20 issued and unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each in the share capital of the Company into one
consolidated shares of HK$0.20 each in the share
capital of the Company. Immediately after the share
consolidation effective on 24 November 2020, the
issued and fully paid ordinary share capital of the
Company was 194,293,524 shares of HK$0.20 each.

BIOZBERFRIARE £ ARFRBE
BHERZR ADEBBARBRA
H 20 EBIREEC.01 BT 2 B #HITR
ARBETEBRAHAERRRANF —
& G AR E E0.208 T 2 & ik 19 2 AR
NEG - RERODAHR _T_ZF
TAZTHAAENE  ARFD#H
1T R R B AR 7N 73194,293,524 %
BRI (E0.20 % T 2 X 15 -
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31. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

©

On 9 October 2020, the Company entered into a
placing agreement (the "Placing Agreement”) with
DL Securities (HK) Limited (the “Placing Agent”),
pursuant to which, the Placing Agent conditionally
agreed fo place (the "Placing”) on a best effort basis
up to 1,500,000,000 ordinary shares (the “Placing
Shares”) of HK$0.01 each to not less than six placees
at a placing price of HK$0.016 per Placing Share.

At the special general meeting of the Company
held on 20 November 2020, a resolution was
passed in respect of confirming and ratifying the
Placing Agreement dated 9 October 2020 entered
info between the Company and DL Securities (HK)
Limited (as amended and supplemented by the
Supplemental Agreement dated 23 October 2020),
and all tfransactions contemplated thereunder,
including the Specific Mandate to allot and issue
up to 75,000,000 Consolidated Shares (instead of
1,500.000,000 new Existing Shares) to be placed
to not less than six Placees at the Placing Price of
HK$0.32 per Consolidated Share (instead of HK$0.016
per Existing Share) on a best effort basis.

The Placing was completed on 2 December 2020.
A total of 75,000,000 Placing Shares were placed fo
not less than six independent placees at a placing
price of HK$0.32 per Placing Share. The net proceeds
from the Placing amounted to approximately
HK$23,160,000, of which HK$15,000,000 and
HK$8,160,000 were credited to the share capital and
the share premium account respectively. The net
proceeds are intended to be used for the settlement
of the December 2017 CB matured on 30 November
2020 or the Group’s other debts and liabilities as they
fall due. As at 30 June 2021, all outstanding principal
and interest of December 2017 CB were seftled.
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31. BA&

©

Eé_;:_ji-f'ﬂjlﬁ EAN/NER 2

MES (BB)ARAR (TERERE)
R EE W (TRESHED - &t
RRERERGRIRBIRENEEUR
EBEREERH0.016E TH T
WA 75 % A B A Bt & & % 1,500,000,000
BEREECOET TR ([AEE
i) ([ERERE]) -

EARARRR-_ZE_ZEF+—HA=1H
BT ZRREFNARE L ANREEB
—15/9% R NDEHEmRAKRER
NEEENESR (BF) BRAFM
AVEHAZZ-_TFET+ANBLZ
B & 1 % (5<“E|Hr@795r_7_7¢+ﬂ
Zt=BRZBHRBRETRER)
HETRETZMERS ’FE?%@E?X
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

32. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current year are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 66
and 67 of the consolidated financial statements.

Share premium

The share premium account of the Company includes
premium arising from the new issue of shares in the current
and prior years netted of share issue expenses.

Under Section 34 of the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman Islands, the special reserve and share premium
account is available for disfribution to shareholders
subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association of
the Company which was in effect before the Change of
Domicile (defined as below) becoming effective on 20
August 2015 (Bermuda time) and no distribution may be
paid to shareholders out of the special reserve and share
premium account unless, immediately following the date
on which the distribution or dividend is proposed to be
paid, the Company shall be able fo pay its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 6 August 2015,
the change of domicile of the Company from the Cayman
Islands to Bermuda was approved by the shareholders.
The change of domicile of the Company was subsequently
completed on 21 August 2015 (the "Change of Domicile”).
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the funds
in the share premium account of the Company may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Convertible bonds equity reserve

The convertible bond equity reserve comprises the value
of the unexercised equity component of convertible bonds
issued by the Group recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for convertible bonds in note
2.4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Contributed surplus/Capital reserve

The capital reserve account of the Company includes
the difference between the consolidated net assetfs of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant fo the group reorganisation
upon listing in July 2000 and the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company issued in exchange therefore.

32.
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Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

32. RESERVES (Continued)

Contributed surplus/Capital reserve (Continued)
Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 6 August 2015,
the amount of approximately HK$44,756,000 standing fo
the credit of the share premium account of the Group was
cancelled and transferred to an account designated as
capital reserve account. Upon the Change of Domicile
of the Company, such account was fo be renamed as
“Contributed surplus accounts”.

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the capital reserve account of the Company is
distributable to the equity shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the distribution or
payment of dividend, the Company is able to pay its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

After the Change of Domicile of the Company, under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed surplus
account is available for distribution to shareholders.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend,
or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

- the Company is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

- the realisable value of the Company’s assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities
and its issued share capital and share premium
account.

Treasury share reserve/capital redemption
reserve

Balance represented an amount equivalent fo the par
value of the shares cancelled of HK$3,526,000 which
was fransferred from the retained profits to the capital
redemption reserve during the years ended 30 June 2012
and 2013, pursuant to Section 37 of the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands. Upon the Change of Domicile, such
account was to be renamed as “Treasury share reserve”
account.

Share options reserve

Share options reserve comprises the portion of grant
date fair value of unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Company recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments.
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33.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

RESERVES (Continued)

Fair value reserve (non-recycling)

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
instruments designated as measured at FVOCI under HKFRS
9 that are held at the end of the reporting period with the
accounting policy set out in note 2.4 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Other reserve

The other reserve account of the Company includes the
difference between the proceeds from the subscription
for 245 new shares of EPRO E-commerce Group Limited
("EPRO") by a subscriber and the 49% carrying value of
EPRO and its subsidiaries (collectively the "EPRO Group”)
of approximately HK$8,344,000 recognised upon the
completion of the subscription in August 2017. The Group’s
equity interest in EPRO was diluted from 100% to 51% and it
is considered as a deemed partial disposal of EPRO by the
Group which did noft resulf in any loss of confrol and was
accounted for as an equity fransaction.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company, pursuant to a resolufion passed on
1 November 2016, adopted a share option scheme
(the "Share Option Scheme”) to issue up to 10% of the
shares in issue on the grant of options under the Share
Option Scheme. The Share Option Scheme should, unless
oftherwise terminated or amended, remain in force for ten
years from 1 November 2016.

In order to give the Company the flexibility fo grant share
options to eligible participants under the Share Option
Scheme as incentives and/or rewards for their contribution
to the Group, the Company refresh the scheme mandate
limit (the "Refreshed Mandate”) pursuant to a resolution
passed on 1T November 2018 which allowed the Company
to grant up to 306,607,049 share options pursuant to the
Share Option Scheme, representing 10% of the issued
shares as af 1 November 2018.
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Share options granted to Directors, chief executives,
substantial shareholders or any of their respective
associates are subject to approval by the independent
non-executive directors (excluding the independent non-
executive directors who are the grantees of the options).
In addition, any grant of share options to substantial
shareholders or independent non-executive directors or
to any of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of
the shares of the Company in issue on the date of offer
with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of
the Company’s shares quoted on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (the "HKSE") at the date of grant) in excess of
HK$5 million made within any 12-month period from the
date of grant (inclusive) would be subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options under the Share Option
Scheme may be accepted within 28 days from the date of
offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of HKST in
fotal by the grantee.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
board of Directors, but may not be less than the highest
of (i) the nominal value of shares of the Company; (ii)
the average closing price of the Company’s shares for
the five trading days immediately preceding the datfe of
grant of the share options; and (i) the HKSE closing price
of the Company’s shares on the date of grant of the share
options.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

During the year, 206,592,000 share options
(2020:100,000,000 share options) were granted under the
Share Option Scheme, the movements of number of share
options under the Share Option Scheme during the years
ended 30 June 2021 and 2020 are as follows:
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Number of share opfions
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Name or category of asat during during asot during during fing asof grant of period of of share
parficipant Tuy2019  theyear  theyear 30June200  theyear  theyeor  theyear Adjustment (d) 30June2021  shareopfions share options options*
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TEFRE(Q) ENE O Nfen g 2020
(Resigrec on ZRiR ik
28 Feruory 2020)
( EZfzT)E
Employees (o) 50000000 (50,000,000) - 12Februoy2018 12 August 20180 07
8I(0) I-NE Nfen uchUZO
B =
Employees (b) and () - - 100000000 100000000 (1,500,000) (93000000) 3500000 4December 2019 4December A9 3
EI(h)R() ZENE epbmber ()
+ZARR EE
Ei
/ﬁ;E_(o)
Employees (c) - - - - - 172160000 (172.160000) - 13November 2020 13Novernber X00to o
8I(0) ZEIEE Nowmber 2021
+-A1=8 CRIEE
Otherparhupants(u) 147000000 (147000,000) 12 Februory 2018 12 August 2018 o 0y
22 (0) ENE Nfen uary 2020
ZRtZA
20000000 (222000000 100000000 100000000 (1,500000) 206592000 (206592000) (%000000) 3500000
* The exercise price of the share options is subject to * R 2 AT B AT AR TR AR S B ATALRR - =k

adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other
similar changes in the Company’s share capital.
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Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(@

®)

©

C))

©)

The closing price of the shares of the Company
immediately before the date on which these share
options were granted was HK$0.26 per share.

The closing price of the shares of the Company
immediately before the date on which these share
options were granted was HK$0.133 per share.

The closing price of the shares of the Company
immediately before the dafte on which these share
options were granted was HK$0.11 per share.

As a result of the share consolidation which was
effective on 24 November 2020, the exercise price
per share and number of outstanding share option
granted on 4 December 2019 were adjusted from
HK$0.15 to HK$3.00 and 100,000,000 to 5,000,000
respectively.

The first 12.5% of these share options shall become
exercisable from 4 December 2019 to 3 December
2021; and the remaining 87.5% of these share options
shall be divided intfo 7 equal batches of 12.5% share
options and each batch shall vest on the 1st day
of every three months starting from 4 March 2020;
each batch of 12.5% share options shall become
exercisable within 2 years from the date when the
share options become vested.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The following assumptions were used to calculate the fair
value of share options granted on 12 February 2018 under
the Share Option Scheme:

33. IBMR st
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Year ended 30 June 2021 HE=ZT=_—FA=THILFE

w3 7

8l =)

AEREREGEN - N\F-A+=H
Bz EREz A FERESERATERR

Directors and employees Others
EEKkER Hit
Exercise price HKS$0.27 # 7T HKS$0.27 % 7T
7B
Expected volatility 68.712% 68.712%
TR B 18
Vesting date 12 August 2018 12 August 2018
55 8 H Af T-N\FNA+T=H —E-N\FN\A+=AH
Expected life 2 years 2 years
TEERF HA 2% 2%
Risk-free rate 1.287% 1.287%
k&
Expected dividend yield Nil & Nil &
8 BA[a] ¥ &
Exercise multiple Directors: 1.068 1.095
TIEIEE EE:1.068
Employee: 1.084
EE8 :1.084

The fair value of the 277,000,000 share options granted fo
the directors and employees, and other participants on
12 February 2018 under the Share Option Scheme were
estimated at HK$0.02 and HK$0.033 per share respectively
using the Binomial Model. The expected volatility used the
historical voldtility of the stock price of the Company. Risk-
free rate represents the yields to maturity of respective
Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note as at the valuation date.

REREFENR - A\F_A+-_BET

EF=N{EBAKHEMSEE 2 277,000,000

EREZ A TFETRZERERX S B
A EA%0.0278 T & & /R0.033 8 7T - RHIK
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Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The following assumptions were used to calculate the fair
value of share options granted on 4 December 2019 under
the Share Option Scheme:

33.

BTS2
HE BRI AR R A= AMmE
1 B AR AR 2 A TERS B (8 AL T -

Employees

(==

Exercise price
1TEE

Expected voldtility
TR HAR 1R

Vesting date

SEHH

Expected life

TRHEASFHA

Risk-free rate

Rk x

Expected dividend yield
& BAE] ¥ %

Exercise multiple

TR &R

The fair value of the 100,000,000 share options granted
to the employees on 4 December 2019 under the Share
Option Scheme were estimated at HK$0.05 to HK$0.064 per
share respectively using the Binomial Model. The expected
volatility used the historical volatility of the stock price of the
Company. Risk-free rate represents the yields to maturity
of respective Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note as at the
valuation date.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The following assumptions were used to calculate the
fair value of share options granted on 13 November 2020
under the Share Option Scheme:
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Year ended 30 June 2021 HE=ZT=_—FA=THILFE

33.

BTS2
HERERE AR B — A=
B BRI AT AN SR TEE

Director and employees

EERkER
Exercise price HKS$0.11 77T
1TEE
Expected voldtility 180.68%
TERRK 1@ 180.68%
Vesting date 13 November 2021
558 H A —E_—F+—A+=H
Expected life 1 years
TE BRI BB 14
Risk free rate 0.10%
[ B 0.10%
Expec’red dividend yield Nil £
8 B [0 3 3
Exercise multiple Director 3.34
(R EET F£3.34
Employee 2.86
E52.86

The fair value of the 206,592,000 share options granted fo
the director and employees on 13 November 2020 under
the Share Option Scheme were estimated at HK$0.0056
and HK$0.0054 per share respectively using the Binomial
Model. The expected volatility used the historical volatility
of the stock price of the Company. Risk-free rate represents
the yields to maturity of respective Hong Kong Exchange
Fund Note as at the valuation date.

The Group recognised total expenses of approximately
HK$2,872,000 (2020: HK$3,763,000) during the year ended
30 June 2021 in relation to share options granted by the
Company in which, as to (i) HK$193,000 (2020: none)
was included in the directors’ remuneration; and (ii)
approximately HK$2,679,000 (2020: HK$3,763,000) was
included in staff costs.

As at the date of these consolidated financial statements,
the total number of shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme was 26,929,352 (2020: 206,607,049),
representing approximately 10% (2020: 5.6%) of the issued
share capital of the Company.

BEREFEN_Z_TF+—-HA+=A%K
TEE M E 8 2 206,592,000 i ik #E 2 A
FEIE -BEAEAS EU:FFEW?%#HXOOOS()
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Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 4. HEMBAR

Year ended 30 June 2020 BE-_Z_ZHFXA=1THLEE

(a) Full Profit Property Services Company (Q) EBEYFRREERIA (&
Limited ("Full Profit”) 757])
In April 2020, the Group entered into a sale and RZZE_ZTFNA AEEE-ZF
purchase agreement with an independent third URE=FANEEBZ B A&
party, pursuant to which, the Group disposed B LAIR & K {E 50,000 % 7T i & AR A
(the “Full Profit Disposal”) of 100% equity interest in MEAR=E&R2100%KE(ERLE
Full Profit, a subsidiary of the Company, at a cash FH]) BREEFER-_Z-ZTF
consideration of HK$50,000. The Full Profit Disposall WMA+ER(EREESEEEAEH])
was completed on 15 April 2020 (the “Full Profit SERK ©

Disposal Completion Date”).

Details of the Full Profit Disposal as at the Full Profit REAHEEEETKNEBH s 28 HE
Disposal Completion Date are as follows: FHZFEHINAT
HK$'000
FAET
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHEH 31
Accruals fEstE A ©
Net assets disposed of: ENEEEFE: 22
Less: Consideration o RE (50)
Gain on disposal of subsidiary (note 5) H BT B A A1 s (5T 5) (28)
An analysis of the net inflow of the cash and cash FHEEREEEE Re KB EEE
equivalent in respect of the Full Profit Disposal is as HRZRANFEATEHIAT
follows:
HK$’000
FHET
Cash consideration* HeRE™
Cash and bank balances disposed of P E 2 R e RIRTTHR €D

Net cash outflow of cash and cash equivalents HHEERHEZE BE RELSE

in respect of the Full Profit Disposal BRZBRERLFHE [€D))
. As detailed in note 21(a) to the consolidated financial : ANAR & B R M RE 21 (a) P RE
statements, the consideration for the disposal of Full it ’%EQZK{ RZETFX

Profit has not been received as at 30 June 2020. A=4H #RKER -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Year ended 30 June 2020 (Continued)
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Year ended 30 June 2021 HE=ZT=_—FA=THILFE

M. HEMBAE »
BE-—Z_ZFXA=1tHLFE®)

(b) Alpha Global Interactive Limited ("Aloha

Global”)

In April 2020, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third
party, pursuant to which, the Group disposed (the
"Alpha Global Disposal”) of 100% equity interest
in Alpha Global, a subsidiary of the Company, at
a consideration of HK$800,000. The Alpha Global
Disposal was completed on 15 April 2020 (the “Alpha
Global Disposal Completion Date”).

Details of the Alpha Global Disposal as at the Alpha
Global Disposal Completion Date are as follows:

(b) Alpha Global Interactive

Limited ([Alpha Global /)
RZZEZTFMA AEHEE—-ZF
VE=ZARVEEWZ B A&
| LA X {8 800,000 7 7T i & 2~ & &) fit
B A 7 Alpha Global z 100% A% ##
([ Alpha Global & £ 18 ]) ° Alpha
Global B EFHER T _FTFMA
+ A H ([Alpha Global & =18 5 X,
HE]) e ©

7 Alpha Global & FIR5E R H #i 2
Alpha Global i & %18 2 F 5 #5140
T

HK$'000

FAET

Property, plant and equipment (note 13) M - BB KRR (MEE13) 1,681
Deposit e 40
Cash and bank balances Re KR 47
Accruals fEstE A @A)
Tax payables FEI TR IE (5)
Net assets disposed of: BEHEEEFE: 1,760
Less: Consideration o RIE (800)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (note 6) BT A B &R (5 6) 960

An analysis of the net inflow of the cash and cash
equivalent in respect of the Alpha Global Disposal is
as follows:

AR Alpha Clobal & FEE S K&
ReFMBEEB ZRAFES MM
T

HK$'000

FET

Cash consideration* WERE " -

Cash and bank balances disposed of & 2B & RIRITHEER 47)
Net cash outflow of cash and cash equivalents & B Alpha Global & FE 2 R &

in respect of the Alpha Global Disposal EREEBEEE 2B ML FE 47)

As detailed in note 21(a) to the consolidated financial
statements, the consideration for the disposal of Alpha
Global has not been received as at 30 June 2020.

. AN AR S B R R M R 21 (o) P
it - & Alpha Global Z R {B % =
ToTEANA=1+A AWK -
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35. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 35. BFEERFERER 2B 2
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS WE 2B QE
The Group has material non-controlling interests as follows: REEBHEA A TERIEZERER
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
Percentage of equity interest held HIEERERFEZ
by non-controlling interests: fRER D
EPRO E-Commerce Group Limited EPRO E-Commerce Group
and its subsidiaries Limited X E Kff &~ &) 49% 49%
2021 2020
—E-—F T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Year ended 30 June HENAZ=ZTAHILEE
Allocated loss for the year and totall DEAFEEBRAFE
comprehensive income for the year SEHWHBES
to non-controlling interests SRR &
The EPRO Group EPRO & (4.315) (14,997)
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Year ended 30 June 2021 HE=ZT=_—FA=THILFE

35. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 35. MEEARFERESZHS

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(Continued)

The following tables illustrate summarised financial
information of the EPRO Group. The amounts disclosed are
before any inter-company eliminations:

BEZMB 2R @)

TRIIREPROKE Z HHEERBEE - T
BB E AR AR B

2021 2020
—E-—F —T-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Year ended 30 June HEXAZt+HILFE
Revenue PN 12,644 43,096
Other income E Mg A 5,092 2,190
Total expenses B (26.376) (76,509)
Loss for the year REFEE (8.640) (31,223)
Total comprehensive income for the NEE MK HBE
year (165) 616
(8.805) (30,607)
At 30 June HANA=+H
Current assets MENVEE 29,411 31,144
Non-current assets FERBEE 4,488 4,350
Current liabilities RBEE (61,942) (54,732)
Total net liabilities BEFELATE (28,043) (19,238)
36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 36. ZRIRERERM:E

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$820,000

(2020: Nil) and HK$820,000 (2020: Nil), respectively,
in respect of lease arrangements for office properties
and staff quarters.

(Q) RAFE BRPLAEZDEREIRFS
ZHEREmME AEBZEAR
BERMEERBZERESAES R
/&820000 L (ZE-FF ) &
820,000 L (ZE-_FF : &) o
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36. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

financing activities

36. ZARERERMEE @

(b) MEEFBHELE ZEEHR

Convertible Lease Bond Other
bonds liabilities payables borrowing Total
ARRES HEEE EES H AR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR TR FET FET

At 30 June 2019 RZE-NERA=1H 116,363 3,385 - - 119,748
Issue of new bond ROIHESR - - 4,000 - 4,000
Interest expense FER% 13,390 119 - - 13,509
Inferest paid ERFE (2,500) - - - (2.500)
Capital element of lease  ERAERE AL

rentals paid - (1,751 - - (1,751
Inferest element of lease  ENHERE A S TS

rentals paid - (119) - - (119)
Writfen off of lease HEBE M

liabiliies - (434) - - (434)
At 30 June 2020 —T-TERA=TH 127,253 1,200 4,000 - 132,453
Issue of new bond ?f*ﬂ%ﬂ o - - 54,043 - 54,043
Proceed of new borrowing 74 & £ F7/5 2.8 = = = 15,000 15,000
Addition for the year KEBRE - 820 - - 820
Interest expense FEHX 5,046 42 2,162 874 8,124
Inferest paid BHFE (2.299) - = (521) (2.820)
Repayment Ex (130,000) - - - (130,000)
Transferred to the payable % % fE K 508 - - - (353) (353)
Capital element of lease  BERAERE AL

rentals paid = (1.125) = = (1.125)
Interest element of lease  ERHAER S H 835

rentals paid - (42) - - (42)
Exchanges realignment  f& i :g%& - 18 o = 18
At 30 June 2021 ~2--FxAZTA - 913 60,205 15,000 76118
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

The Group had the following capital commitment at the
end of the reporting periods:

iR WIS ERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2021 HE=ZT=_—FA=THILFE

37.

BEARERIE
AR ERNBEIREE THIARALR

2021 2020
—E-—F —T-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FET
Contracted, but not provided for: EEIA - BEREE
Acquisition of shares B B 12 - 60,000

On 14 June 2019, the Company entfered into an agreement
with a vendor, an independent third party, pursuant to
which, the Company conditionally agreed to acquire (the
"S-Grill Acquisition”), and the vendor conditionally agreed
to sell, 100% equity interest in S-Grill Management Limited
at a consideration of HK$60,000,000. A refundable deposit
of HK$5,000,000 was paid by the Company to the vendor in
August 2019. The S-Grill Acquisition has been terminated on
19 November 2020.

S-Grill Management Limited and its subsidiaries’ principal
business is a FINTECH company provides solution for
insurance sector in the PRC: including the provision of (i)
innovative management and exhibition tools for insurance
institutions: (ii) management tools and services for all
types of large fleets; and (iii) integrated vehicle services for
private car owners.

Further details of the S-Grill Acquisition were set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 14 June 2019 and 2
July 2019, 29 August 2019, 31 October 2019, 29 November
2019, 30 December 2019, 28 February 2020, 27 April 2020,
30 June 2020, 31 August 2020, 30 October 2020 and 19
November 2020.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities
as at 30 June 2021 and 2020.

38.

RZZT—NFRNA+TMB  RAREBETE
ERBERL— B B NAREE
HRBEWE ([SGrllkEEE]) MEHE
&1+ A & & S-Grill Management Limited
2 100% % # - X {8 %A 60,000,000 7T ° 4
REARZZE—NFENARES XHARER
5,000,000 7T - SCrillffEEBER=F
—TF+—At+ABKILE-

S-Grill Management Limited & £ Hff & 2 7
CEBEBDRTRERBERBBRAIRZ
SREHEAR B ) RRREBIR A
EEREBTRIA: () ASBEARBEKRHEE
BTARRE: R(i)ALREERHEE
BR

SGril kB EE 2 # — SR ERRAQAE
HE-_FT—NENATHBER-_ZE—NF
+tAZA - Z2-AENA=TAR =
T—HE+A=+—H —E—HhE+—
A=+nA -—T—h&+=A=+A =
E-TE-A-+ B —E-T&ENA
—ttB - T-FFAAZtE -FC
EZENA=+—08 —E-EE+A=+H
R-Z-BE+-A+NBZAS-

HAAE

RIB-_—FR-_F-_FEXA=TA &
SEYREFNERRAAME -
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 39. AEALX B RER
BALANCES

The Group had the following fransactions with related AREBRFANEBAEATIIIATRS :
parties during the year:

(o) In addition to the balances and transactions detailed (@) BRZFLHEEMBRRE IO Fd
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements. ZRERRZ G REEFEANE—F
The Group had the following transactions with a FEANTEITZRSMAT :

related party during the year:

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ERTF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Management fee income B—HEEERREZ
received from a related EEBWA
company - 1,206
(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the (b) AEEFEEBAEZME :
Group:
2021 2020
—E-—F T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT
Total employee benefits paidto  MEBEEABE L2
key management personnel REBSRT 3,520 4,120

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included

FHEEHe 2 FHBOEHRE

in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements. B IS RARMIFES o
The number of key management personnel whose BANFTINGEEZEEAER
benefit fell within the following bands is as follows: BT :

Number of employees

BEAH
2021 2020
—B-—-F —EEF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 7T 11 8
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7 7t 2 1,500,000 7 7T - 1
11 9
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40. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

41.

The Group has the following material events subsequent to
the end of the reporting period:

(a) On 8 July 2021, the Company grant total 14,040,000

share options fo three directors, two employees
and a legal adviser of the Group with exercise price
of HK$0.20 of each option and exercise period of
ten years. For detail, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 8 July 2021.

(b) On 10 September 2021, the Company issued a

convertible bond with nominal value of HK$8,000,000
carrying a coupon rate of 1% due in 9 September
2022 with an independent third party. The convertible
bond is convertible info the ordinary shares of the

iR WIS ERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2021 HE=ZT=_—FA=THILFE

40. FHEHAREIR

AEBRMEMREEATEREE

(@ RZZE_—F+ANR ARFRAR
SE=2EF MEEER —REEZ
8 [ #% ) & #£14,040,000 19 B A% 4 -
TEERESHEREC20E T RITE
HRtF FHEFE F2HARA
BRA-ZT_—FtANRZRE

by RZZE=Z—FNA+HB ARaHEB
NE=ZABTR-_E-__FHALANHA
F| 5 2 ™ {8 /4 8,000,000 7 T Ay A] # i
&S ZEAMNEE1% AT BRREFIE
TR 0.2 B TR ¥ Ip B IR (B 8E

Company at an initial conversion price of HK$0.2
per conversion share. For detail, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 10 September

2021.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 41.

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

MARARNERR - EWEE B
SMARTEMA-F-—FAAT
CPENTE

EMITHAZSHE

RBEHRR  SPEBTAZREENT :

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:

Financial assets
Year ended 30 June 2021

ERMEE
BE-ZE-_-—-SXA=1tHLEE

Financial assets
at amortised
cost

R 85 B AR B BR
ZERMEE
HK$'000

TER

Loan and interest receivables

Financial assets included in deposits and other
receivables

Cash and cash equivalent

FEACE 3R B R
AARERABERKHIBZ EREE

92,986

36,930

RekBeFEER 3,451

133,367

2021 £ | FEEBEZERARAAF



182

No’res to Consolidated Financial Statements

iR ISR M
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 41.

(Continued)
Year ended 30 June 2020

EMITEZSE =

BE_ T ZFAA=THILFE

Financial assets

at fair value Financial assets

through profit at amortised
~orloss ~cost Total
BATERAER HRE A AT BR ,
ZERMEE ZEMEE o
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Trade receivables e B 5 B8R K - 34 34
Loan and inferest receivables  [EUE & F B BE X - 101,597 101,597
Financial assets included AR K H b 8 YRIE
in deposits and other LEMEE
receivables - 47,284 47,284
Financial assets at fair value AT EFANERZZ
through profit or loss CREE 14,141 - 14,141
Cash and cash equivalent RBe kL %EHEEE - 28,157 28,157
14,141 177,072 191,213
Financial liabilities TRAE

Year ended 30 June 2021

BE-ZE--FXA=tHLEE

Financial
liabilities

at amortised
cost

R 8H AT IR
ZEMEE

HK$°000
TR

Trade payables

Financial liabilities included in other payables,
deposits received and accruals

Lease liabilities
Other borrowing
Bond payables

Year ended 30 June 2020

=113
’AF

>z

N

/

St w38 = N
N Gt 38

BT
2

32,010

IR - BRIRS R
mEE 23,496
913
15,000
60,205

o
L=
WD

131,624

Financial
liabilities

at amortised
~cost

1R 9 R AN BE
ZEBMARE
HK$'000

FHT

Trade payables

Financial liabilities included in other payables,
deposits received and accruals

Convertible bonds
Lease liabilities
Bond payable

3

%K 27,874

JIH - DR E R E

7 ﬁ"ﬂiﬁﬁ 16,000

127,253
1.200
4,000

2w

o 1B = N
[
BT
\‘—HH'

&t e
LS >~ 2T
pun=sy

TR
I

176,327
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42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 42. €M TEAXAFER2TFE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s
financial instruments, other than those with carrying

B &
AEESBIA (FEERAFHEARES
BN MEEERAFENT :

amounts that reasonably approximate fo fair values, are as

follows:
Carrying amounts Fair values
BRTEE NFE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E_—F —ZT-F —E_—F —T-FTF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHER FAT FET FHET
Financial assets tREE
Financial assets at fair value 2 FEFF ABE
through profit or loss ZEREE 14,141 - 14,141

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, frade receivables, loan and interest
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivable and other assets, frade payables, financial
liabilities included in other payables, deposit received and

EREENGRERESEEEAR  BKRE
ZERF - BREREM SRR st AEMK
A HpEESRERECEENSREE
ENE SRR ARMENRIE - BWIR
EREFAERAURENESFNEREBERT

accruals, bond payable are approximate to their carrying BEREERDEES  FZHRNZETARH
amounts largely due to the short tferm maturities of these ME|E -

instruments.

Fair value hierarchy AFEER

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

TRITAEEERTEANATFEAZER

Fair value measurement using

AVEHEEA
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active markets observable inputs unobservable inputs
(level 1) (level 2) (level 3) Total
RERTREE EXTEERARE EXTTRRRANE
(E-8) (E=®) (=8) &3t
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

“E--F -I-% “E--F  _-ZI-% “E--F  -EI-% “8--F -ZI-%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TEn TAT TR TEn Tin TEn AL

Assefs measured at BOTEHENERE
fair value
Finonciol assets BATEHARR

atfair value through LEREE
profit or loss - 14141 - - - - - 14141
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise convertible bonds, bond payable,
other payables and accruals. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise funds for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities (e.g. frade receivables and trade payables),
which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are cash flow interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Directors review and agree
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Interest rate risk
The Group has no significant interest-bearing financial
assets and liabilities with a floating interest rate as at 30
June 2021 and 2020. The Group’s results and operating
cash flows are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures as the
sales and purchases of the Group were mainly fransacted
in United States dollars ("USD"), Renminbi ("RMB"),
Australian dollars ("TAUD"), Canadian dollars (*CAD"), EURO
("EUR") and Hong Kong dollars ("HKD"). Approximately
29% (2020: 40%) of the Group's sales are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the
operatfing units making the sale, and almost 38% (2020:
37%) of costs are denominated in the units’ other functional
currency.
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 43. 2RIEREERRREE @

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end
of the reporting period fo a reasonably possible change in
the exchange rates of AUD, CAD, RMB and EUR fo HKD, with
all other variables held constant, of the Group’s loss before

oM mLER ()
TRETEZPEMERER TR ZERT -
AN B 7 1A A 1R A R 5 AR R T -
T ARBRERTHBTEXRHRART4
LB 2 GUEE -

tax.
Increase/

Increase/ (decrease) Increase/

(decrease) in in loss (decrease)

exchange rate before tax in equity

ExtH BREAIER BHEm/

(T  #m/ (ED) 2

% HK$'000 HK$"000

% T FET

30 June 2021 —E-5XA=+H
If HKD weakens against AUD i T R T 85 5 m 1
If HKD strengthens against AUD /87T 5 R L i 5% 5) 1 )
If HKD weakens against CAD BT RIS 5 m 1
If HKD strengthens against CAD  {ii# 70 i i o838 (©) 1 )
If HKD weakens against RMB BT HAREES 5 8d (33)
If HKD strengthens against RMB {7t 5 A R 858 (5) (33) 33
If HKD weakens against EUR 7 7T R BT H 55 5 (128) 128
If HKD strengthens against EUR & T BT % (5) 128 (128)
30 June 2020 —EB-EEXA=ZTH

If HKD weakens against AUD T 7T R T 85 5 M 1
If HKD strengthens against AUD  {ii 8 70 38 o838 5) 1 m
If HKD weakens against CAD AT 5 T 8S 5 m 1
If HKD strengthens against CAD {7 7T % inc g 5) 1 m
If HKD weakens against RMB BT AR5 5 869 (869)
If HKD strengthens against RMB i/ 70 3L A R B 838 5) (869) 869
If HKD weakens against EUR (b =L 5 (87) 87
If HKD strengthens against EUR BT BT ER 5) 87 (87)

R-E-——FNA=ZTHEK-_Z=-_FF XA

The Group has no forward foreign exchange contracts
outstanding as at 30 June 2021 and 30 June 2020. =+H AEBEWEERKRER ZRPIMNE

R -
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk

The Group'’s credit risk is primarily aftributable to trade
receivable, deposits and other receivables, loan and
interest receivables and bank balances. As at 30 June
2021, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk, which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties arising from
the carrying amounts of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements to cover its credit risks associated
with its financial assets.

The Group deposited bank balances with approved and
reputable banks. Bankruptcy or insolvency of the banks
may cause the Group’s right with respect to bank balances
held to be delayed or limited. The directors monitor the
credit rating of these banks on an ongoing basis, and
consider that the Group’s exposure to credit risk as at 30
June 2021 and 2020 were minimal.

For deposits and other receivables, the directors make
periodic individual assessment on the recoverability of
deposits and other receivables and based on historical
settlement records, past experience, and also quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information. The directors
believe that there is no significant increase in credit risk of
the Group’s outstanding balances of deposits and other
receivables since initial recognition and the Group provide
impairment based on 12m ECL. Based on the assessment,
impairment of deposits and other receivables (net of
reversal) with the amounts of approximately HK$1,513,000
(2020: HK$2,482,000) was recognised in profit or loss during
the year ended 30 June 2021.

For loan and interest receivables, the directors make
periodic individual assessment on the recoverability of loan
and interest receivables based on historical settflement
records, past experience, and also quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information.
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group considers loan and interest receivables as
doubtful if the repayment of principal and/or interest has
been overdue for more than 3 months and principal. The
Group considers the loan and interest receivables as loss
if the repayments of principal and/or interest have been
overdue for more than 6 months for loan and interest
receivables; and in cases the collection of principal and/or
inferest in full is improbable.

Based on the above assessment, impairment of loan and
inferest receivables with the amount of approximately
HK$5,591,000 (2020: HK$9,421,000) was recognised in profit
or loss during the year ended 30 June 2021.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 156% (2020:
15%) and 39% (2020: 42%) of the loan and interest
receivables was due from the Group'’s largest customer
and five largest customers respectively.

The Group's policy to manage credit risk is to deal only
with credit worthy counterparties. In order fo minimise the
credit risk, the management of the Group has formulated
a credit policy and, delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limif, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
take.

Trade receivables are assessed based on provision matrix,
except for trade receivables with gross carrying amounts of
approximately HK$1,440,000 (2020: RMB2,497,00), which are
credit-impaired, that are assessed individually. The Group
performed impairment assessment for the tfrade receivables
equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a provision
matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss experience does
not indicate significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.

iR WIS ERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2021 HE=ZT=_—FA=THILFE

43. £REREEHERBE @

EERE )

WAS Rk SFSERAHBEIM/A - K
SEgREBRERRMEHRRBRE - HiE
W B R R A B BRI A R BE 5ol
HEB6MEA : RiMEH KBRS R,k F
EETKRAEE  AEEERERKERRIE
R BEE -

B& Fsi e BE_T - —F~A=+H
LIEFE - £%415,591,0008 T (ZE=_FF :
9,421,000 7T ) #) F& U & 3R K A1 B8R 502 Bl
BEEREmARER

HR15%(ZT T4 : 15%) R39% (=T =
TE  42%) M RE R KA SRR 9 Bl e
WARERZAREF RAKREFOHIE - 8K
SEAEERBSED

FEEERFEERRZBRBERGEERI
ZRGUFRH AERBEEECEHERR
BEEEZEET-—XEKREEEEEERE &
EEMUUAREMEERF - URRRIREE
178 #fEEERREERE -

BURE ST ERETG  EEKES
IRABRMARE 41,440,008 L (—ZE = F
& AR¥2,497,000T) (EEHIREERE)
BB TG AEBMRBHENEBFERN
BHEEBENSBETREKE SRR
B CERREERTEEBHREEE
B -ARBREAEENBEEEBELH
TRAS BB RABENBERL ERAZE
ZE2 FELERBERR T E ISR ER
KE—FROAEBTRNZTEBE -
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Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (Continued)
The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

43. £REMEEHE

ENBUR 2

EERR &)
AEEAHEERRTIRBENTER

Internal credit rating Description Trade receivables Other financial assets
A EEFR gk EWE SRR HttemEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of Lifetime ECL -not credit ~ 12m ECL
default and does not have any past- impaired
due amounts
1 B XU FINENVRRERE TEEME ZHBEHEEEE-FI12EABHEEEE
HR A B0 008 EERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due Lifetime ECL -not credit ~ 12m ECL
datfes but usually settle in full impaired
EEAE ERALEEIMAREN BREFe2 ZHBEHEEEFE-F 12EABHEEEE
BEE EERE
Doubfful There have been significant increase Lifetime ECL - not credit  Lifetime ECL - not credit
in credit risk since initial recognition impaired impaired
through information development
intfernally or external resources
AJ & E?ﬂﬁAﬁEmMI}Z %ﬂwﬁﬁi%ﬁﬁéﬁﬂ’ﬂ THEBREEBE - 2 HRREEHIE -3
SR EERMRAHEANEM EERE EERE
Loss There is evidence indicating that the Lifetime ECL - credit Lifetime ECL - credit
asset is credit-impaired impaired impaired
B BERERP ZEECHRESRE 2HRHEERE - 2HBENEERE—E
ERE ERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the Amount is written off Amount is written off
debtor is inservere financial difficulty
and the Group has no realistis
prospect of recovery, asset is credit
-impaired
ik BEREBRP BEALRYBRSE ME  FIEMH FOIAM

AEELTEE
RERRE -

BeEgE R BECH
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and
year-end staging classification as at 30 June 2021 and
2020. The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts
for financial assets stated in the following tablet:

As at 30 June 2021

4= AR

iR WIS ERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2021 HE=ZT=_—FA=THILFE

43. £REREEHERBE @

EERE @)
REERRFEREE

TRITR

—= —

— =

FR-ZZ-ZZTFNA
=THARBEARBEERRZERELE X
RzuaEERR (RIEBEALETBERK
ARG HNAESEMERN  THEEER
BHEMN)  URFRERIBE-M252

BRATRMIEMEEZREAE

R=ZB=Z—-FXA=+H

12-month Lifetime
expected expected
credit losses credit losses Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3  approach Total
+=@A
BHEE
BHE EHEHEERR
E—EER F-HEBR HF=MR ®BrE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TR TR TER
Trade receivables EWE S EBR - - - 1,440 1,440
Loan and inferest receivables B E R R A BRI 21,087 78,082 32,424 - 131,593
Financial assets included in RS REMERFUR
deposits and other receivables JEREE 37,321 58 3,436 - 40,815
Cash and cash equivalent ReLBeSEER 3,451 - - - 3,451
61,859 78,140 35,860 1,440 177,299
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Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 43. cREMEREEERBE @
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (Continued) EERK#)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging R e B R K R ()
(Confinued)
As at 30 June 2020 R-ZZEZZEFA=TH
12-month Lifetime
expected expected
credit losses credit losses Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3  approach Total
+ @A
BHEE
&8 cHREHEEERE
E—FEE BORER OF=EER BIE #at

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET

Trade receivables EWE S EBR - - - 2,534 2,534
Loan and inferest receivables ERE T RF R 50,130 56,004 28,479 - 134,613
Financial assets included in RS KA EKFIIE
deposits and other receivables LEREE 38,795 9,533 1,436 - 49,764
Cash and cash equivalent RekReSEER 28,157 - - - 28,157
117,082 65,537 29,915 2,534 215,068
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that TRETREE#ERNZHEREEESRE
has been recognised under simplified approach: &

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
2HES 2HEH
FEEBR FEEBR
(kEERE) (FERE) #at
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK'000
FAET FHET FHET
At 1 July 2019 RZE—-NFtH—H 1383 1,196 2,579
Impairment loss recognised EHERREEE 1 5,501 5,502
Transfer to credit impaired BREERERE (1,383) 1,383 -
Amount written off as uncollectible il 4 & A W Bl 2 & %8 - (5.5871) (5.581)
At 30 June 2020 RZZTZTFA=+H 1 2,499 2,500
Transfer to credit impaired BRERECAERE m 1 -
Impairment reversed B LR A - (1.060) (1.060)
At 30 June 2021 R=ZZB=Z—-FXA=+H - 1,440 1,440
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

43. £REREEHERBE @

EERE @)

R ARRFREE (%)

(Confinued)
The following table shows the movement in loss allowance TRAETE —RETER A EWE TSR
of loan and inferest receivables under general approach: M EE R E S
Lifetime
12 Lifetime ECL (credit-
ECL impaired) Total
2 HFEH
1218 A & 1 FEER
FEBR (FERE) HEt
HK$'000 HK$000 HK’000
FAET FAT FAT
At 1 July 2019 RZE—NFtHA—H 3.595 20,000 23,595
Impairment loss recognised B ERREEE 9,421 - 9,421
At 30 June 2020 RZEZZTFA=+H 13.016 20,000 33,016
Impairment loss (reversed)/
recognised B (Em) R REEE (5,287) 10,878 5,591
Transfer to credit impaired HEZEREREE (1,547) 1,547 -
At 30 June 2021 R-ZEBZ—-FXA=1+H 6,182 32,425 38,607

The following table shows the movement in loss allowance

TRBRIE —BORTRER IR S M H b UK

of deposits and other receivables under general approach: HHEIEREZE)

Lifetime

12 Lifetime ECL (credit-
ECL impaired) Total

HES

1218 A 1 FEBR
FEER (FERE) et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK'000
TET FET FET
At 1 July 2019 RZZE—-NF+tH—H - - -
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEIE 1,046 1,436 2,482
At 30 June 2020 RZZEZZEFA=+H 1,046 1,436 2,482

Impairment loss (reversed)/

recognised B (#E) TRREER (146) 1,659 1,513
Transfer to credit impaired HREZEORAEREE (341) 341 -
Exchange realignment BE 5 T B (110) - (110)
At 30 June 2021 R-ZB-—-FXA=+H 449 3,436 3,885
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial
assets (e.g. trade receivables) and projected cash flows
from operations.

The Group’s objective is fo maintain a balance continuity
of funding and flexibility through various fund raising
exercises.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contracted
undiscounted payments, was as follows:

43. £REREEEHERBE @

On demand Less than 3 months
RERER HR=EA

2021 2020 2021
“E--F C5-%E ZBI-F
HK$'000  HKS'000 - HK$'000

2020

“50%%

HK$'000

RBETER
FEEERERADESHETAERES
GEMER - TAXAR S BT ARSR
AE (MW E SR 2 215 B I RBEHE
BIZHLRE -

AEBZERRBREEREETAEESN
FEME R B RN R TE -

RBEMR - AREZERABREED
ABRIRFIBZ BIBE R T

3toless
than 12 months 1105 years Total
ZEAZORT=MEA -EEF it

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

SB--E CE-FE CBC-E CF-TE ZBC-E CF-FE

HKS'000  HKS'000 = HKS000  HKS'000 = HK$'000  HKS'000

Thrn ThEr TEm TEx T#Em TEx| FEn TEr TEzn  TEx
Trade payables ERESERN 32,010 - - 2,398 - 5476 - - 00 27874
Other payables, deposits HW'E B BlRE R
received and accruals R % 23496 15988 - 12 - - - - 2849 16000
Contract liabilfies AUBE - - 18668 15586 9,015 - - - 27683 15586
Lease liabilities HEaE - - 161 334 321 792 460 115 942 1,241
Convertible bonds TERES - - - 30000 - 100000 - - - 130,000
Other borrowing HifER - - 15175 - - - - - 15175 -
Bond payable ERE% - - 49240 - 17,400 4,000 1,853 - 68493 4,000
55506 15988 © 83244 48330 26736 130,208 2313 115 167,799 194,701
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decrease as a result of changes in the level
of equity indices and the value of individual securities.
As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has no
significant equity price risk.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management
is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
refurn capital fo shareholders of issue new shares.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is net debt divided by the fotal capital plus net debt. Net
debt includes trade payables and other payables, deposits
received and accruals, confract liabilities, bond payable,
convertible bonds, other borrowing less cash and cash
equivalents. Capital includes equity attributable to the
Company. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting
periods were as follows:

43. £REMEEHE

iR WIS ERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2021 HE=ZT=_—FA=THILFE

ENBUR 2

B REEE R
wﬁﬁmﬂmﬁmﬁﬁﬁh%m$&M%;
HEERZMEBRABEATERDZ

R o AR HAK - K%llﬁéﬁ&mﬁ%
B\ o

BEREHE
AEBERER 2 EEABARBAEEL
%%@%%ﬁ&ﬁh%&25$m$’ui
BEXBRABRERREE -

AEBEREEARE  UHKEBRLE
TR B o AR B W] BE F8 B (A BRI 3 2 B
B RARREEBTHRND ZES AERX
HEEEARNGERE o

AEBEFERAEARGL X (ABEBFERIN
BREANMEEBFEAE) EREARN - EH
FERRENESERAREMENKE B
WG REFTER SHEE  BHES -
R ES  HeERRekReSERA
B - BXRBEAARRGELS RNREDHR
ERBELLRNT

2021 2020

—EB-—F —T-FF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Trade payables ERESER 32,010 27,874

Other payables, deposits received  EfEMFIE - BUWIEE &

and accruals FERT &R 23,496 16,000
Contract liabilities AR 27,683 15,586
Bond payable ERES 60,205 4,000
Other borrowing HAb AR 15,000 -
Convertible bonds AR ES - 127.253
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RekReSEER (3.451) (28,157)
Net debt B FE 154,943 162,556
Equity attributable to the Company A2 &) {5 # x4 17,308 31,937
Capital and net debt BEARARERFE 172,251 194,493
Gearing ratio BEABELE 90.0% 83.6%
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Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 44. A BB ik &

THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

ARARREMRZ M BRARERAT

2021 2020
—E-—fF —ETF
HK$°000 HKSiOO_O
FET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSET RBEE
Investments in subsidiaries and a RHTE R B RIFFREEK
structured entity ZIE 44,282 66,056
Total non-current asset IEmBEELTE 44,282 66,056
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Due from subsidiaries JE U B BB A R FRIE 89,080 115,881
Prepayments, other receivables and J"EH FRIE - Ho b FE WA &
other assets HMEE o 5,821 9.753
Financial assets at fair value through & XA FEFAEBFZ 2 & REE
profit or loss - 8.452
Cash and cash equivalents Re kRS EEIEHR 1,201 21,451
Total current assets MENVEEBRE 96,102 155,537
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBE
Due to subsidiaries FER A 72,395 64,903
Other payables and accruals HAubER R IE&F.#%% 7,049 3,433
Bond payables R ESH 58,860 4,000
Convertible bonds AR ES - 127,253
Total current liabilities mENBEERE 138,304 199,589
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES FEREFE (42,202) (44,052)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BWEERARBEE
LIABILITIES 2,080 22,004
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY kRBEE
Bond payables FERES 1,345 -
Total non-current liability EnB B EETE 1,345 -
Net assets EEFE 735 22,004
EQUITY e
Issued capitall BEATIAR 53,859 36,793
Reserves & (53,124) (14,789)
Total equity BxmE 735 22,004
The Company’s statement of financial position was AR ZHMBRAER=_FT=_—FNA
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors —t+thBEEE $@Tﬁt)&&% HERZEIT AT
on 29 September 2021 and is signed on its behalf by: EERABERE
LO PAK HO HUANG QING
EARE 55
Director Director
EF EZ
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

iR WIS ERR ML

Year ended 30 June 2021 HE=ZT=_—FA=THILFE

44, AR B IFRR T =)

Note: B o
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AARIFEERZLT
Treasury
share
Convertible  Contributed reserve/
bonds surplus/ Capital Share
Share equity Capital  redemption option  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
EERH
TARES  EHEH/ fE/ER
Rt EE BREE BAGE RORE BRERR Zithi @it
HKS'000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
Tkt Tk T Tin Tkt i T
AT July 2019 R=F-N§tF-H 304,304 28,033 95192 3,526 6,351 (325,650) 111,756
Loss for the year and fotal comprehensive income REERAER2ENEAE
forthe year - - S (MA98)  (144906)
Equity-seffled share option arrangements hrgsnahez
(nofe 33) (333) - - 3,763 - 3,763
Lapse of share options - - - (6.351) 6,351 -
Issue of shares (note 31(b)) 14,598 - - - - 14,598
At 30 June 2020 RZZ-2F/A=1A 318,902 28,033 95,192 352 3,763 (464,205) (14789)
AP July 200 R-E-RELA-A 318902 28,033 95,192 3,526 3763 (4A5)  (14789)
Loss for the year and fofal comprehensive income A EBERAFE 2 AREAE
for the year - - - - - (49,574) (49.574)
Equity-seffled share option arrangements hrggnahez
(nofe 33) (Mt 33) - - - - 2872 - 2872
Lapse of share options = = = = (1,629) 1,629 =
Issue shares under exercise of share opfions 1,324 - - - a1n7n - 207
Issue of shares (nofe 31(b)) i 8,160 - - - - - 8,160
Redemption of equity component of convertible BRES
bonds - (28,033) - - - 26,033 -
At 30 June 2021 RZE--§/~A=1H 328,386 - 95,192 3526 3,689 (484,117) (83,124)

45. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29
September 2021.

45. FEMBHmR 2L E

HEPBBRRER-_ZE-_—FhA-t+IA
BEES L RIRETIH -
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Year ended 30 June 2021 BE=ZZE=_—FA=THILFE

TXEINAEEROAEMRERE 2 REREE
BEMFERERE - DHHEEE A HEERE
EUBRE - WRBEEYEFDE -

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the published audited consolidated financial

196

statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out

below.
Year ended 30 June
BEAA=TALEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
SB--& —T-%E T —Z-\FE R F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FAET FET FET T
RESULTS E3
REVENUE A 43,982 108,560 228,677 301,471 319,267
Cost of sales and services HE KRB A (16,149) (80,547) (167,547) (206,225) (215,598)
Gross profit ER 27,833 28,013 61,130 095,246 103,669
Other income and gains Hip A R Mz 6,223 3,796 37,734 11,550 4,418
Selling and distribufion costs HERAHPA (4.798) (13,247) (26,824) (54,498) (80,135)
Administrative expenses and other  TTHRER R EMER
expenses (58,695) (66,717 (82.993) (104971 (77,534)
Impairment loss recognised on EHABERERSE
goodwil (1000)  (74508)  (49.540) - -
Impairment loss recognised on other EBEZEMEFEE
infangible assets HERE = (1,006) (1,800) - (1,715)
Impairment loss recognised on loan £ el & 20
and interest receivables HE EE«TMWE EiE (5.591) (9.421) (990) (20,000) -
Impairment loss reversal/ %’élﬁl/ BHER) ERES
(recognised) on trade receivables  BRFUREEE 1,060 (5.502) (489) (99) -
Impairment loss recognised on other & 2 5t fe 78
receivables AEEE (1,513) (2,482) - - -
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary ﬁ EMBAT ZEﬁ B - (960) - - -
Share of profit/(loss) of an associate  FE{L B & A 5]
afl/ (Eﬁa) 67 (10) (219) 176 -
Finance costs RMERA (8.124) (13,509) (12,937) (10,024) (349)
LOSS BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING  RE#HELE %2
OPERATIONS @?R AlEE (44,538) (155,553) (76,928) (82,620) (51,646)
Income tax expense FEHER (3.949) 875 (4.131) (553) (31
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM $$ﬁ)§ BRELEES
CONTINUING OPERATIONS (48,487)  (154678) (81,059) (83,173) (51,677)
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRIEE2 2R
(Loss)/profit for the year from ZKEJ* T[S R s 7k
discontinued operation (Eﬁﬁ )/ B - - (1,518) 964 687
Impairment of goodwill HERE - - (8,158) (8.251) -
- - 9.676) (7,287) 687
LOSS FOR THE YEAR REEER (48,487) (154,678) (90,735) (90,460) (50,990)
Attributable to: UTEFERE
Owners of the Company iN/NGIEZSUN (44,227) (139,371) (78,728) (77,975) (50,892)
Non-controlling inferests FRRiER (4260) (15307) (12,007) (12,485) (98)
(48.487)  (154678) (90735  (90.460)  (50,990)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND BE BEREERER
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
TOTAL ASSETS BEE 161,538 213,110 318,515 457,036 326,244
TOTAL LIABILITIES weE (159,925) (192,528) (166,369) (243,819) (85,137)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS SR 15,695 11,355 (3.651) (15,842 20
17,308 31,937 148,495 197,375 201,127
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